14/135

ANNUAL REPORT % 2

SUSTAINABLE
FOREST

HOLDINGS LIMITED
AR T R IR B

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Y A 58 RE AL 2 AR A])

Stock Code Bt ftag : 723

*for identification purpose only fE {155k Al



KRMEZEBRERAT —B—N/ —FT-HFFH

Contents E &%

Corporate Information 02
AEEHR

Chairman’s Statement 04
TERE

Financial Highlights 05
BREE

Management Discussion and Analysis 06
BEENWE DN

Report of Directors 14
EEEgRE

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management 28
EEkENEEERE

Corporate Governance Report 58
TEERRSE

Independent Auditor’s Report 44
BIYREMHRE

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 49
mEBmk

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 50
meBEnkHEME2EKEE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 51
mEMBERRE

Statement of Financial Position 58
MR ER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 54
mEEREHR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 56
mERSRER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 58
e M ERRME

Five Years Financial Summary 191
hEMBRE




SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. ZHOU Jing (Chairman)

Mr. MUNG Wai Ming

Mr. LIU Shun Chuen (appointed on 5 June 2015)
Mr. YEUNG Sau Chung (appointed on 5 June 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN

Mr. WU Wang Li

Mr. NG Wai Hung

BOARD COMMITTEES
Executive Committee
Ms. ZHOU Jing (Chairman)

Mr. MUNG Wai Ming

Audit Committee

Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN (Chairman)
Mr. WU Wang Li

Mr. NG Wai Hung

Remuneration Committee

Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN (Chairman)
Mr. WU Wang Li

Mr. NG Wai Hung

Nomination Committee

Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN (Chairman)
Mr. WU Wang Li

Mr. NG Wai Hung

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. LEE Rabi (appointed on 30 September 2014)
Mr. CHENG Chun Shing (resigned on 30 September 2014)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. ZHOU Jing

Mr. LEE Rabi (appointed on 30 September 2014)

Mr. CHENG Chun Shing (resigned on 30 September 2014)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

EXg

HITES

AELt (EE)

RIERALE

BEREE (R-F—HFNAAAREE)
BERKE (R-F—AFNHAARE(T)

BYFHITES
BEHEL
KRB
S EE

EEXZEE
HITEES
At (2R)
SERE

BREES
BEHEE (ZF)
RN BA
RgH kL

FHEES
BEHEE (ZF)
RIBRAE
REMHEE

REZEG
BEHEE (ZF)
RIIBRA
RIEH K

REWE
TR E (R-F—WFENA=+ERET)
WHARKE (R-T—HFEAA=1EBHE)

BEAE

AL L

SHEEE (KR-E—WENA=ARE)
WEASE (R -E—WEAH=FER)

FEAERERLT
RBBITRHBERAREBEHT
BB LEELRITERAR
EEEmERITAERAT



KRMEZRERAR =T/ —T-HFFH

Corporate Information

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suites No. 302-305, 3rd Floor, Sino Plaza

255-257 Gloucester Road

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Tel. No.: (852) 3460 6600

Fax. No.: (852) 2838 5366

E-mail: info@susfor.com

SHARE REGISTRARS
Principal Share Registrar
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMI08

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

AUDITORS
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited

WEBSITES ADDRESSES
http://www.susfor.com
http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/sustainableforest

HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE CODE
723

AfREE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

BIRERERANERBZ

FEEEME

14738 255-257 5%

1=F1E5 3 12 302-305 5=
: (852) 3460 6600

B fEH : (852) 2838 5366

T FEAE : info@susfor.com

MR8 F B LR
FERMDBFELRE
The Belvedere Building
69 Pitts Bay Road
Pembroke HM08
Bermuda

EEROBFELITE
BERRERERAR

BB

EFANER 183 57

B 22 12

BB
HESE (58) Gt AEHHARA

Bl
http://www.susfor.com
http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/sustainableforest

BB FTRAD IR

723




SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

Chairman’s Statement

Despite the market condition and business environment in which
Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) operate remained difficult in
the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Group recorded a net
loss of HK$56.5 million for the current financial year, which was
significantly reduced from HK$490.2 million as recorded in the last
financial year. During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the
harvesting operation in Acre, Brazil remained suspended and the
Group has been actively looking for suitable lessees in relation
to the Group’s forest since the board of directors changed the
operation model in Acre from own harvesting to leasing out in June
2014. The Group will continue to actively identify potential leases
relating to the forest in Brazil.

Further to the acquisitions of new travel agency and property
investment businesses in the financial year 2014, the Group had
commenced new business on money lending in the current financial
year 2015 in order to further enhance the revenue stream of the
Group.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our staff, shareholders
and other stakeholders for their continued support to the Group
during this difficult time. It is anticipated that the Group will continue
to experience challenging times ahead. However, the Group
will work to identify new business opportunities and to divest
unprofitable business in order to restore and enhance shareholders’
value.
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Financial Highlights

2015 2014 Changes
—E-FRF —E—F ZLRE
HK$’000 HK$" 000
BETT AT
Operating results Reass
Revenue WA 7,822 63,946 (87.8)%
Loss attributable to the owners of AATHEE AEML
the Company B8 (56,508) (490,133) (88.5)%
Financial position at year end RERZBBRRT
Property, plant and equipment W - BB NE 110,569 157,769 (29.9)%
Intangible assets B EE 94 - 100.0%
Investment properties A 24,778 23,699 4.6%
Biological assets EMEE - 17,538 (100.0)%
Cash and cash equivalents HeRELEEY 50,141 8,965 459.3%
Net current assets/(liabilities) nEEE/ (AR) FE 112,296 (59,625) N/A &
Total assets BEE 305,656 251,052 21.8%
Total interest bearing borrowings from BB = B EEGH
independent third parties 24,234 28,304 (14.9%
Total interest bearing borrowings IRER - FEIERR AR ER K A
from shareholders, non-controlling Nt REE R
shareholder and related companies 836 21,427 (96.1)%
Total liabilities wafE 156,097 192,254 (18.8)%
Equity attributable to the owners of the VNG NG Aoy
Company 149,480 58,723 154.6%
(Restated)
(&E5)
Per share information BRER
Basic loss per share FRELREE
(Hong Kong cents) (L) (0.74) cents fll  (9.52) cents fll (92.2)%
Per share information FRER 1.68 cents /i 4.22 cents fll (60.2)%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group’s revenue decreased from HK$63.9 million to HK$7.8
million for the year ended 31 March 2015. The total revenue
consisted mainly of sales of forestry and timber products and
interest income form money lending business. The Group’s net loss
after tax decreased from HK$490.2 million to HK$56.5 million for
the year ended 31 March 2015. The net loss for the current year
was mainly due to a increase in fair value of the financial liabilities of
the Group of HK$38.6 million.

BUSINESS REVIEW

China

The PRC is the world’s largest consumer and importer of timber
and logs and it continues to be the primary market for our forestry
and timber products. However, demand for the Group’s timber
products remains sluggish.

Brazil

Business environment continued to be difficult for the Group in
Brazil. On 27 March 2012, the board decided to suspend harvesting
operations in Acre, Brazil for one year and until the operating
environment for its Brazilian subsidiary improves. For the financial
year ended 31 March 2015, Acre’s operations remained suspended.
On 5 June 2014, the board of directors changed the operation
model in Acre from own harvesting to leasing out the forest in
Brazil so as to enhance the income stream of the Group. The
Group is actively negotiating terms and conditions with potential
lessees relating to the Group’s forest in Brazil. However, due to
the unfavourable economic environment in Brazil, the Change in
Operation Model has not been crystallized and no lease relating
to the Group’s forest in Brazil has been entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2015. The Group will continue to
actively identify potential leases relating to the forest in Brazil.

Commence of new business on money lending

Further to the acquisitions of businesses on travel agency services
and property investment in the financial year 2014, the Group
has commenced its money lending business pursuant to the
Money Lenders Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong since late
August 2014. The Group’s money lending business is principally
the provision of mortgage loans to individual/corporate borrowers
who are mainly referred by property agents in Hong Kong. The
Group assess as the credibility of the borrowers through, among
others, (i) obtaining credit rating report of the individuals from
recognized credit reference agencies in Hong Kong; (i) requesting
the borrowers to submit supporting information about their
financial position, including the salary proof of the individuals/the
audited financial statements of the companies, the tax assessment
notice issued by the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong
or overseas tax authorities and an exhaustive list of the existing
outstanding debts payables by the borrowers; and (iii) evaluating
the market value of the underlying property to be mortgaged to
the Group. The Company expects that the interest income to
be generated from its money lending business will strengthen
the Group’s income base and therefore, the Company intends to
continue to expand in this particular sector.

-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK

Uncertain market conditions and poor demand for timber products
continued to affect the Group’s near term outlook. The Group will
continue to identify new business opportunities with the view to
diversifying its business portfolio and improving Shareholders’
value. The Company will give priority to consider investment
opportunity(ies) that can provide the Group with a stable revenue
stream as and when suitable opportunities arise.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
that amounted to HK$50.1 million (2014: HK$9.0 million).

The Group’s gearing ratio expressed as a percentage of total
interest bearing borrowings (including all interest bearing borrowings
from shareholders, non-controlling shareholder and related
companies), over equity attributable to the owners of the Company,
significantly decreased from 84.7% as at 31 March 2014 to 16.8%
as at 31 March 2015.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had HK$24.2 million (2014:
HK$28.3 million) in interest bearing borrowings from independent
third parties of which HK$5.3 million (2014: HK$5.3 million) were
repayable within one year and the remaining HK$18.9 million (2014:
HK$23.0 million) were repayable after one year. As at 31 March
2015, the interest bearing borrowings of HK$24.2 million (2014:
HK$28.3 million) from the independent third parties consisted of
HK$12.8 million (2014: HK$13.3 million) in bank loans and HK$11.4
million (2014: HK$15.0 million) in other borrowings. As at 31 March
2015, the Group’s had net current assets of HK$112.3 million (2014:
net current liabilities of HK$59.6 million). In addition, interest bearing
borrowings from shareholders, non-controlling shareholder and
related companies totaled HK$0.8 million and HK$21.4 million as at
31 March 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUND RAISING EXERCISES

(@

As further detailed in the announcement of the Company dated
18 March 2013 and the prospectus of the Company dated 11
April 2013, the Company proposed an open offer (the “March
Open Offer”) to raise i) not less than approximately HK$63.06
million and not more than approximately HK$65.56 million
before expenses by the issue of not less than 1,180,938,718
and not more than 1,227,737,503 new ordinary shares of
the Company (“March Offer Shares”) at a subscription price
of HK$0.0534 per March Offer Share to qualifying ordinary
shareholders on the basis of one March Offer Share for every
six existing ordinary shares held on 10 April 2013 with bonus
issue of ordinary warrants with exercise price of HK$0.0534
per ordinary share on the basis of one bonus share warrant
for every March Offer Share subscribed; and ii) not more
than approximately HK$2.16 million by the issue of not more
than 215,525,161 new convertible preferred shares of the
Company (“March Offer CPS Shares”) at a subscription price
of HK$0.0100125 per March Offer CPS Share to qualifying
holders of convertible preferred shares on the basis of one
March Offer CPS Share for every six existing convertible
preferred shares held on 10 April 2013 with bonus issue of
convertible preferred share warrants with exercise price of
HK$0.0100125 per convertible preferred share on the basis of
one bonus convertible preferred share warrant for every March
Offer CPS Share subscribed. The Directors consider that
the March Open Offer will strengthen the Company’s capital
base and enhance its financial position and believes that the
Open Offer will provide the qualifying shareholders with an
opportunity to maintain their respective pro rata shareholdings
in the Company and to participate in the future growth and
development of the Company. The closing price of the share
of the Company HK$0.059 per share on 18 March 2013.
The net proceeds were intended to be used as to i) 20% for
the general working capital of the Group; ii) 60% for partial
repayment of the indebtedness of the Group; and iii)) 20% for
investments in new business.

As further detailed in the announcement of the Company dated
6 May 2013, the March Open Offer became unconditional and
1,180,938,718 March Offer Shares, 1,180,938,718 ordinary
share warrants, 215,525,161 March Offer CPS Shares and
215,525,161 convertible preferred share warrants were issued
on 7 May 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUND RAISING EXERCISES (continued)

As at 31 March 2015, among the net proceeds of
approximately HK$60.8 million (representing a net price
of approximately HK$0.0497 per March Offer Share and
approximately HK$0.0096 per March Offer CPS Share),
approximately HK$44.0 million had been utilised for repayment
of the indebtedness of the Group (the deviation from the
intended use was due to the full repayment on 8 May 2013 of
a loan that bore interest of 18% per annum. Due to the low
interest rate environment in 2013, the Board considered that
it is in the interest of the Company to apply available funding
to fully settle such high interest-bearing loan), an aggregate of
approximately HK$1.6 million had been utilised for acquisition
of new businesses and approximately HK$15.2 million had
been utlised for general working capital of the Group.

As further detailed in the announcement of the Company
dated 27 February 2014 and the prospectus of the Company
dated 16 April 2014, the Company proposed an open offer (the
“February Open Offer”) to raise i) not less than approximately
HK$44.5 million and not more than approximately HK$53.0
million before expenses by the issue of not less than
139,178,247 and not more than 165,665,906 new ordinary
shares of the Company (“February Offer Shares”) at a
subscription price of HK$0.32 per February Offer Share to
qualifying shareholders on the basis of one February Offer
Share for every ten existing ordinary shares held on 14
April 2014 with bonus issue of five bonus shares for every
February Offer Share; and ii) not more than approximately
HK$1.7 million by the issue of not more than 172,420,129
new convertible preferred shares of the Company (“February
Offer CPS Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.01 per
February Offer CPS Share to qualifying holders of convertible
preferred shares on the basis of five bonus convertible
preferred shares for every existing February Offer CPS
Share subscribed. The Directors consider that the February
Open Offer will strengthen the Company’s capital base and
enhance its financial position and believes that the February
Open Offer will provide the qualifying shareholders with an
opportunity to maintain their respective pro rata shareholdings
in the Company and to participate in the future growth and
development of the Company. The closing price of the share
of the Company was HK$0.150 on 27 February 2014. The net
proceeds were intended to be used as to i) approximately
HK$16.5 million for the repayment of the indebtedness of the
Group; ii) approximately HK$16.5 million for future investments
opportunities; and iii) approximately HK$9.6 million for the
general working capital of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUND RAISING EXERCISES (continued) £EEH (&)

As further detailed in the announcement of the Company
dated 12 May 2014, the February Open Offer became
unconditional and 139,179,601 February Offer Shares with
695,898,005 bonus shares, 150,867,613 February Offer CPS
Shares with 754,338,065 bonus convertible preferred shares
were issued on 13 May 2014. Up to 31 March 2015, among the
net proceeds of approximately HK$42.6 million (representing
a net price of approximately HK$0.296 per February Offer
Share and approximately HK$0.0093 per February Offer CPS
Share), i) approximately HK$16.5 million had been utilised for
repayment of the indebtedness of the Group; ii) approximately
HK$16.5 million had been utilised for investment in new
business; iii) approximately HK$7.7 million had been utilised for
general working capital of the Group; and iv) the rest of the net
proceeds of approximately HK$1.9 million had been placed in
bank deposits and are intended to be utilised as the general
working capital of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUND RAISING EXERCISES (continued)

©

As further detailed in the announcement of the Company dated
9 October 2014 and the prospectus of the Company dated 28
November 2014, the Company proposed an open offer (the
“December Open Offer”) to raise i) not less than approximately
HK$118.8 million and not more than HK$123.7 million before
expenses by the issue of not less than 371,147,618 and not
more than 386,428,602 new ordinary shares of the Company
(“December Offer Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.32
per December Offer Share to qualifying shareholders on the
basis of one December Offer Share for every six existing
ordinary shares held on 26 November 2014 with bonus
issue of seventeen bonus shares for every December Offer
Share; and ii) not more than approximately HK$4.0 million
by the issue of not more than 402,313,634 new convertible
preferred shares of the Company (“December CPS Shares”)
at a subscription price of HK$0.01 per December Offer CPS
Share to qualifying holders of convertible preferred shares
on the basis of one December Offer CPS Share for every six
existing convertible preferred shares held on 26 November
2014 with bonus issue of convertible preferred shares on the
basis of seventeen bonus convertible preferred shares for
every existing December Offer CPS Share subscribed. The
Directors consider that the December Open Offer will provide
the qualifying shareholders with an opportunity to maintain
their respective pro rate shareholdings in the Company and
to participate in the future growth and development of the
Company. The closing price of the share of the Company
was HK$0.133 on 9 October 2014. The net proceeds were
intended to be used as to i) approximately HK$80.0 million
for the expansion of money lending business in Hong Kong;
i) approximately HK$20.0 million for investment(s) in and/
or working capital for new business, including but not limited
to, catering business in Hong Kong as and when suitable
opportunities arise; and iii) approximately HK$17.9 million for
general working capital of the Group.

As further detailed in the announcement of the Company
dated 18 December 2014, the December Open Offer became
unconditional and 371,150,205 December Offer Shares with
6,309,553,485 bonus shares, 402,313,634 December Offer
CPS Shares with 6,839,331,778 bonus convertible preferred
shares were issued on 19 December 2014. Up to 31 March
2015, among the net proceeds of approximately HK$117.9
million (representing a net price of approximately HK$0.30716
per December Offer Share and approximately HK$0.0097 per
December Offer CPS Share), approximately HK$76.3 million
had been utilised for expansion of money lending business in
Hong Kong and the rest of the net proceeds of approximately
HK$41.6 million had been placed in the bank deposits and
are intended to be utilised as expansion of money lending
business, investment in new business and the general working
capital of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2015, property, plant and equipment of HK$3.0
million (2014: HK$ 3.2 million) and investment properties of HK$24.8
million (2014: HK$23.7 million) of the Group were pledged to secure
bank mortgages. As at 31 March 2015, certain area of the freehold
land with carrying value of HK$23.9 million (2014: HK$33.1 million)
was filed with a precautionary injunction by a claimant.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND LITIGATIONS

The Group’s contingent liabilities and litigations at 31 March 2015
are disclosed in Notes 40 and 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s continuing operation mainly operates in Brazil, China
and Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, revenue from operations
was denominated mainly in Renminbi while its costs and expenses
were primarily in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and Brazilian Reais
where the Group’s operations are based. The Group is exposed to
potential foreign exchange risk as a result of fluctuations between
those currencies that are not pegged.

In addition, the main operational assets of the Group are located
and denominated in local currencies in Brazil and China while
the Group’s reporting currency is in Hong Kong dollars. This
also exposes the Group to potential foreign exchange risk upon
translation of those assets on each reporting date.

The Group did not enter into any arrangements or financial
instruments for the purpose of hedging against the potential
foreign exchange risks during the year under review. Management
believes that the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risks are
minimal since Renminbi has been in strength while Reais have been
weakening somewhat against US dollars during the current period.
In the event that Reais were to rise substantially against US dollars,
the risk can be mitigated by increasing local sales denominated
in Reais. As for the operational assets of the Group, any foreign
exchange gain or losses due to translation of the carrying value
of the assets to the Group’s reporting currency on reporting dates
are unrealised and non-cash in nature. As such, active hedging
activities are not considered warranted. Nonetheless, management
will monitor closely its foreign currency exposure to ensure
appropriate measures are taken promptly against any significant
potential adverse impact.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had approximately 15 employees
(2014: 24) mainly in Hong Kong, China and Brazil. The total
remuneration paid by the Group to its employees (including
directors) for the year was approximately HK$5.8 million (2014:
HK$10.3 million).

The Group rewards its employees according to prevailing market
practices, individual experience, performance and requirements
under applicable labor laws in the Group’s operational locations. In
addition to the provision of annual bonus, provident fund scheme
and medical insurance coverage, discretionary bonuses and share
options are also available to employees.
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Report of Directors

The board of directors (“Board”) of Sustainable Forest Holdings
Limited (“Company”) has pleasure in presenting to the shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”) its annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company comprise
sustainable forest management; investment and leasing in natural
forests; manufacturing and sales of timber products including but
not limited to wooden door, furniture and wooden floor panels;
leasing of properties; the business of licensed travel agent under
the Travel Agents Ordinance (Chapter 218 of the Laws of Hong
Kong); and money lending business pursuant to the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
March 2015 by geographical and business segments is set out in
Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 49 to 50.

The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: HK$Nil per ordinary share
and HK$Nil per convertible preferred share).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the results and the financial position of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 191.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS, PROPERTY, PLANTS AND
EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the biological assets, property, plant and
equipment and investment properties of the Group during the year
are set out in Notes 20, 17 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws of
the Company (“Bye-laws”) or laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 March 2015.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statement and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

On 31 March 2015, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
the distribution to owner of the Company calculated in accordance
with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended) was HK$Nil
(2014: HK$Nil).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors (“Executive Director(s)”)

Ms. ZHOU Jing (Chairman)

Mr. MUNG Wai Ming

Mr. LIU Shun Chuen (appointed on 5 June 2015)
Mr. YEUNG Sau Chung (appointed on 5 June 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
(“Independent Non-Executive Director(s)”)

Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN
Mr. WU Wang Li
Mr. NG Wai Hung

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 5 June 2015, Mr.
LIU Shun Chuen and Mr. YEUNG Sau Chung were appointed as
Executive Directors of the Company.

In accordance with Bye-law 87(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. NG Wai
Hung and Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN shall retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the
Company and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM.
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Report of Directors

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. LIU Shun
Chuen and Mr. YEUNG Sau Chung, who have been appointed as
Executive Directors after the last AGM, shall hold office until the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) and the Company considered all of them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Other than statutory compensation, no Directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 28 to 32.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested in any
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the year.
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Report of Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at the date of this report, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, “SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO;
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code (“Model Code”) for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

EERBSTTRABRKRAM RAEBERD
ZREmNRE

RAREBH  EERADARZESITHRAERARRD
RIS EEAAB AR (E& RBBENE 571 &
%}&Hﬁ =& ([ B R HAEEA]) 8 XV 38) 2%
- FERER% 1D &Ea’%ﬂh Tzﬁﬁﬂi%}%m%&ﬁ =gl
%7&8"* SARQR REERZAT s ERER
A RIRIERE %&Hﬂ 1%%%352 BEREMTEZ
EROM - SR ET AR AIKTER 10 AT LT ITAZ
$Lﬁ E5HR SHR%ESER| ([R2ESFR]]) BHEAR
NE| MR EmSORE T

Number and
class of shares
and underlying

Approximate
percentage of
issued shares

shares held HERTRG

s & BABESE

Name of Directors Nature of interest AR 2 (Note 1)

EEHR Rt EERE Y (KizZ 1)

Ms. ZHOU Jing (“Ms. Zhou”) (Note 2) Beneficial owner 703,218,459 7.89%
gt ([Axt]) (#at2) E=mAA

Mr. MUNG Wai Ming (“Mr. Mung”) (Note 3) Beneficial owner 52,316,838 0.59%

SERKE ([REL]) (BFZ3) ESBEAA
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Notes:

The percentage figures were calculated based on 8,909,839,886 ordinary shares
(“Shares”) of the Company having a par value of HK$0.01 each in issue as of the date of
this report.

Ms. Zhou was entitled to share options to subscribe for a maximum of 52,316,838 Shares
upon exercise of the options in full. Ms. Zhou was also the registered holder of ordinary
share warrants with nominal value of HK$54,754,149.13 and convertible preferred share
warrants with nominal value of HK$2,157,945.67 convertible into 644,166,460 and
6,735,161 underlying Shares respectively. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Zhou was
therefore interested and deemed to have interests in 52,316,838 Shares and 650,901,621
underlying Shares upon exercise of the ordinary share warrants and convertible preferred
share warrants.

Mr. Mung was entitled to share options to subscribe for a maximum of 52,316,838 Shares
upon exercise of the options in full.

All interests stated above as at the date of this report represented long positions of
Shares or underlying Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short

posit

ions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company

or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exch

ange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO or as recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING BEIR 1D 2 S

SHARES

As at the date of this report, the following persons, other than a Director RAAHREBHEH  BEFE AR AlmESITEA
or chief executive of the Company, had interests or short positions in the  §4) » LA A TRAZARNABIRES s HRERZ 5
Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would be required to  EH IR IE &4 N EFEEFIE XV BE 2 KE S
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of 3%~ (& BRA A THE » KB DERD
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be )45 = 25 % 1 By &5 (4£(5] 5 336 (KAF S 2 &
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO: RS S A R T

FTERRREMATRERG KA

Number and
class of shares
and underlying

Approximate
percentage of
issued shares

shares held HERTRG
P IR AR &% BMRABED
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest HERGZ (Note 1)
REEE AR REmME A RER (Kia 1)
s. Loh Jiah Yee, Katherine (“Ms. Loh”) (Note 2)  Interest of controlled corporation 1,294,849,338 14.53%
LRELL ([8t]) (Fid2) XEEhEE
Mr. Lau Jack ( “Mr. Lau” ) (Note 3) Interest of spouse 1,294,849,338 14.53%
BRE&RE ([BEE]) (B 3) it as
Assure Gain International Limited Beneficial owner/Interest of 1,256,270,910 14.10%
(“Assure Gain”) (Note 4) controlled corporation
Assure Gain International Limited BEnle A/ SRR B
([Assure Gainl) (#1:£4)
Ocean Honor Limited (“Ocean Honor”) (Note 5)  Beneficial owner 2,274,052,584 25.52%
Ocean Honor Limited ([OceanHonor|) (#7:25)  Ezm#A A
Mr. Chan Yuen Ming (“Mr. Chan”) Interest of controlled corporation 2,274,052,584 25.52%

REALLE ([REE])

RIEHAE 2 ek
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1. The percentage figures were calculated based on 8,909,839,886 Shares in issue as of the
date of this report.

2. Ms. Loh was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital of Assure
Gain, which held 100% of the issued share capital of Winner Global Holdings Limited
(“Winner Global”) and Splendid Asset Holdings Limited (“Splendid Asset”) respectively.
Ms. Loh was also beneficially interested in 50% of the issued share capital of Corp
Insights Holdings Inc. (“Corp Insights”) held through Corporate Insights Limited. Assure
Gain was the registered holder of 744,508,207 Shares and 2,485,386,889 convertible
preferred shares (“CPS”) of the Company convertible into 77,668,340 underlying Shares;
Winner Global was the registered holder of 213,360,741 Shares; Splendid Asset was the
registered holder of 220,733,622 Shares; and Corp Insights was the registered holder
of 1,234,509,696 CPS convertible into 38,578,428 underlying Shares. Under Part XV of
the SFO, Ms. Loh was therefore deemed to have interests in 1,178,602,570 Shares and
116,246,768 underlying Shares upon conversion of the CPS in which Assure Gain, Winner
Global, Splendid Asset and Corp Insights were interested.

3. Mr. Lau, being the spouse of Ms. Loh, was deemed to have an interest in the same parcel
of the Shares and underlying Shares in which Ms. Loh was interested under Part XV of
the SFO.

4. Assure Gain held 100% of the issued share capital of Winner Global and Splendid
Asset respectively. Assure Gain was the registered holder of 744,508,207 Shares and
2,485,386,889 CPS convertible into 77,668,340 underlying Shares; Winner Global was the
registered holder of 213,360,741 Shares and Splendid Asset was the registered holder
of 220,733,622 Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Assure Gain was therefore interested
and deemed to have interests in 1,178,602,570 Shares and 77,668,340 underlying
Shares upon conversion of CPS in which itself, Winner Global and Splendid Asset were
interested.
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FERRREMALIHARSEE
BERD 2 s e

Bt

1.

ZEBOLHBFTIRERABREAME HT
8,909,839,886 Ak H7TH °

L4+ E 25 ¥ G Assure Gain E B TIRAZ 236
# =+ 1M Assure Gain % 7l ¥ & Winner Global
Holdings Limited ([Winner Global |) % Splendid
Asset Holdings Limited ([Splendid Asset]) B
TR AR 2 & #B # 7 o 4% 22 + 71 i 18 Corporate
Insights Limited # A Corp Insights Holdings Inc.
(['Corp Insights]) BE#1TARZAZ 50% E i ©
Assure Gain &0 A 744,508,207 A% i (5 & 7] K
# /& 77,668,340 % 4H BA A% 19 2 2,485,386,889
N A B AT R AR AR SE AR ([ AT HRARE5EAR )+ Winner
Global & i #% % 213,360,741 & §% {7 : Splendid
Asset & i€ 5 A 220,733,622 fi% i% 17 i i1 Corp
Insights Bl & &2 4% A& 7] X 3% A 38,578,428 &
8 B B 17 2 1,234,509,696 MR AT AR B SEHY - 1R
BESHRAEIEGIE XV I - %2+ EHE R AR
Assure Gain * Winner Global *+ Splendid Asset
Corp Insights FT##A 2 1,178,602,570 %% 5 & 7]
1R (8 S AR S 4R 1 2E A 2 116,246,768 ARAE R AR
DR o

BREERELLZIE  RIEESEIMREME XV
ERIRAR RN EE L L P A #E 2 2 (R — HE AR £ R AR 7
Binrh AR o

Assure Gain % 5!l # 5 Winner Global % Splendid
Asset BB 1TIRA 2 250z © Assure Gain E&2HF
A 744,508,207 %A 7 % 7 53274 77,668,340 AR HE
FAR% 15 2 2,485,386,889 % A #2 i% 12 %5 A% ¢ Winner
Global & i # & 213,360,741 % i% {5 % Splendid
Asset B i2#5H 220,733,622 R - RIFEE R
HIE & BIZE XV B + Assure Gain Atk B BB M
5 &K Winner Global % Splendid Asset FiT# & )
it 1,178,602,570 AR AR {7 K AT R AR B 5t AR 34 ¥
MEE4 2 77,668,340 ARABRARR (9 HE A A o
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND IER & Hih A + R IEH R 48

OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING BIIE 5  RE2E ()

SHARES (continued)

Notes: (continued) Hiat - (&)

54 Ocean Honor was the registered holder of 2,194,847,088 Shares and 2,534,575,896 CPS 5. Ocean Honor 4 2,194,847,088 %19 A &% 2,534,575,896
convertible into 79,205,496 underlying Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ocean Honor 7 ATHRAR(E 52 AR (R] K327 79,205,496 AR FEEBAR %)
was therefore interested and deemed to have interests in 2,194,847,088 Shares and ZiEE A - BIEFEE RIS EGIE XV 2F - Ocean
79,205,496 underlying Shares upon conversion of the CPS. Honor FEIHLA 2,194,847,088 A0 KA AT iR 4R 5

ﬂ%i}ﬁgﬁ% 2 79,205,496 AR AR RARR 7 A 8 i SARAR 1F
AR ©

6.  Mr. Chan was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital of Ocean 6.  [f% 4 B 257 A Ocean Honor 2 202 B 1TRL A o
Honor. Under Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Chan was therefore deemed to have interests in WIEEFRAEEMEXVE  BEEHERE AR
2,274,052,584 Shares in which Ocean Honor was interested. Ocean Honor # Bz 2 2,274,052,584 A% (7

B s -

7. All interests stated above as at the date of this report represented long positions of 7. AARTRERE - 5|2 EiEzsty BAA TR 3R
Shares or underlying Shares of the Company. ARG EEFE

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the Company had & F X IEFTEEN - AR E BH - RA TN
not been notified of any other persons (other than the Directors or chief ®EERFREMA LT (ESHAA A EZSTT
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the g A 24N AR 7] 2 B 2k A8 78 I% 15
Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would be required to 15 iR i 2% 5 L BRI S (&5 2 XV 2E 2 % 3
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of 42~ &~ /BB AN T E @ B2 AR
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be  F)4g 2 224 1o A5 (& | 5 336 (K18 EFfiES
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO. DB S TRk o
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares”
above, during the year ended 31 March 2015, none of the Director nor the
chief executive of the Company had been granted any right to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporation and none of the Directors, their
respective spouses nor their respective children under the age of 18 had
any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company or had exercised
any such rights.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Shareholders on
27 November 2009 (“Share Option Scheme”), the Company may grant
share options to the directors, employees, executive or officers, managers,
consultants, any customers, suppliers of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interests (“Invested Entity”) who, in the sole discretion of the Board,
have contributed or will contribute to the growth and development of the
Group so as to provide incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
success of the Group’s operation.

During the year, the movements in the share options under the Share
Option Scheme were as follows:

ESRERZ &R

B EXTEZR&EHTHRABRRD RIEEH
Bin 2 #m Mok e | —BATEEEIN REE
“E-AF=-A=t—HLFE EFKX
RABZRBITHA B EEE TN T35
WS AR R Bl s A B AR B 2 B D S B S5 M
i HEFARSSAZEBARSTEAE
Rim 18 B2 F R EGEE ERRBE AR FE
T VR - TEATIRAARI L SR

RS E

RERRR _ZFTAF+— AT LAK®A
BB ER 8 ([BAERE]) - NARA
MEZSE2RRAREEAKRSUARE 2 E
RREREFLERMOAKBEERK S RALE
BEAXERAERAEacEE ((REE
Bl ZES BB -TRABSEBE &KE
BE - TAEF - EHEmEREG Z HER
B BAE - ARE O SRS HAREEK
WEBMIEL ZERR

RER - RIBEBRE B2 BIREZEHINT -

Number ofshare options
ERiE
Exercise Exercise
price price
Quistanding at Adjusted ~ Outstanding at per share per share
1 April Upon open 31 March hefore open after open
2014 offers 2015 offers offers
Nature of H-2-mE ote §) H-E-1E Note 4]
Name intorest MB-R  Gramted  Exercised lapsed ~ AFREH ZB=t-R  Date ofgrant Exercise period MR WEEE
# Fate HAfTE it 2k E&H g wRIE  RERE 8 SREE  SHOEE
(s s
Dictors
EE
M. ZHOU Jng Personel 13679311 BRI 5316858 30 August 2013 30 August 201310 K30 3204 HrS0.085
Eegt fIA E--EN\B=1R 29 August 2023 ARl AR
5-2ENR=TRE
s 3k
Ml MUNG Waibing Personel 13879311 IR 52316838 30 August 2013 30 August 201310 S0 3204 HrS0085
SEREE )\ Z2-E\A=1R M August 223 ARopuMT AR
-E\f=tRR
Sitotal 21758622 T6675,084 104833676

Bt
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EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRRETE @
Number of share opions
B
Exercise Exercise
price price
Qutstanding at Adjusted ~ Outstanding at per share per share
1 April upon open 31 March before open after open
014 offers 215 offers offers
Nature of om: B (Note 6] HoE-1F (Note 6§/
Name interest Re-A Granted  Exercised Lapsed  OFREL ZB=t-B  Dateofgrant Exercise period NERE NEREL
1 Eae HAfTE it gk R e WRIE RERE fifeH BRTEE  SHEE
(s (s
Emplojees and ofer 8610 09265 240,186 778t 13 anuay 2010 18 Jenuary 2011 to HKS5640 K1 407
paticarts R 12 vy 2020 Absdr  ENeTT
EEREkpE i
RRE-A1IR
8610 209265 240,186 778t 13 anuay 2010 18 Jenuary 2011 to HK$5.640 K1 407
BEER 12 ey 2000 Al ENeTT
k1R
51
8611 (209,269 240166 17781 18 January 2010 18 January 2013 o HiS5.640 1497
i 12 ey 2020 Aiseom  ART
“5-ch-RizRE
EEEMhR
46810 195218 176331 7May 2010 18 Jenuary 201 o6 May 2020 Hi$4.260 K191
ZREAE I T (A AN b
ZEIEERRA
46810 19521 176331 7May 2010 18 Jenuay 0130 Hi$4.260 K131
53R 1My 2020 Huor BT
I i
ZE2EERAA
46811 12952 176338 7May 2010 13 Januay 2013 1o Hi$4.260 HKS1.138
Z5-5FRRHA My 200 i R AN T
ZE-TE-fiAE
Z3EERAE
22
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EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BRERTE @

Number ofshare options
B
Exercise Exercise
price price
Qutstanding at Adjusted ~ Outstanding at per share per share
1 April Upon open 31 March hefore open after open
2014 offers 2015 offers offers
Nature of N-E-BE ote §) H-E-1E Note §]
Name interest BA-B Gramted  Exercised lapsed ~ EREH ZE=f-F  Date ofgrant Exercise period MR WEEE
# Fate it Eft 2k Xl e Wik RERH fiied SHTER  SRAER
(hi6) (hi6)
Emplojees and offer
pertipants (coniues) B3 - - (627,7%) 0 125569 14 September 2010 14 September 2010t HK$2.250 HKS0597
FaRaagE (B) EEEAR 9 ur BT
ATRAE
EE-AITE
Stb-otal
it 4341% - - (627,7%) 120134 1007753
Total
£t 810817 = = 279 7807608 105641429
Notes: Kt -
1. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options were 1. BORBEERER—FT—ZTF—A+=BREE
granted on 13 January 2010 was HK$0.950. HAlZ Wi B =B % 0.950 7T °
2. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options were 2. BRORSEERER -_Z—ZFhAA-AEHER
granted on 7 May 2010 was HK$0.700. Al 2 W {E AP 0.700 7T °
3.  The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options were 3. BROREBEBERER -_Z—ZFHATHAEHE
granted on 14 September 2010 was HK$0.385. HAlZ Wi ERE% 0.385 7T °
4. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options were 4. R EEERER —Z—F_A+/\BRLE
granted on 18 February 2011 was HK$0.415. BRI WM {ERA 0.415 JT ©
5. The closing price of the Share immediately before the date on which the options were 5. O RBEZERER " Z—=F N \A=1tEREE
granted on 30 August 2013 was HK$0.034. HAlZ Wi ERE% 0.034 7T -
6. As a result of the February Open Offer and December Open Offer, the exercise prices 6. A-ZANARBER - BN AMEE - HARITE

and number of Shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise of the outstanding
share options were adjusted in accordance with the Share Option Scheme. Please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 12 May 2014 and 18 December 2014 for
further details.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Purposes

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high caliber
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group or any Invested Entity and to provide incentives or rewards
to Eligible Participants (as defined below) for their contribution to the
Group.

Eligible Participants

Any employees (whether full time or part time), directors (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors)
of any members of the Group or any Invested Entity, any customer,
supplier of goods and services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity and such other persons or entities (“Eligible
Participants”) who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and development of the
Group or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options granted and to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme must not exceed 10% of the total number of issued Shares
as at the date of passing the ordinary resolution on 11 April 2012 (being
the date on which the mandate limit of the Share Option Scheme was
refreshed). The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted is 105,641,429, which represented
approximately 1.19% of the total number of issued ordinary Shares
of the Company as at the date of this report for the year ended 31
March 2015.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted in any 12-month
period to:

() each Eligible Participant must not exceed 1% of the total
number of Shares in issue; and

(i) a substantial shareholder of the Company or an independent
non-executive director must not exceed 0.1% of the total
number of Shares in issue and not exceed HK$5 million in
aggregate value.
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SRy
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%) FRAEEEFAKESRKREER
MEP  REEmEREZHEBLEE
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(e)

(n

(9)

(h)

(M

Period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on which
it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may specify at the
time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be
held

No minimum period for which the option has to be held before it can
be exercised is specified in the Share Option Scheme.

Period open for acceptable of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an Eligible
Participant within 28 days from the date of the offer of grant of the
option. A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptable of the
offer of grant of an option.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option

The exercise price must be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

Validity of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 27
November 2019 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 53.4% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 19.9%. The Group had only one
supplier which accounted for 100% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates or any
Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
were audited by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe Horwath”) who
retire and, being eligible, offer itself for reappointment at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company.

On Benhalf of the Board

ZHOU Jing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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Biographical Details of Directors ans Senior Management

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. ZHOU Jing

Ms. ZHOU Jing, aged 41, joined the Group in January 2013 as
an Executive Director and a member of the executive committee
(“Executive Committee”) of the Board of the Company and
subsequently she was appointed as the Chairman of the Board
of the Company and acted as the chairman of the Executive
Committee. Ms. Zhou graduated from a university in the PRC with
a bachelor’s degree majoring in accounting and was awarded
with Certified Public Accountant qualification in the PRC in 2002.
She worked in an imports and exports company responsible
for foreign trade accounting and has also joined an accountant
firm as a shareholder and carries out her duties in auditing and
asset valuation. Ms. Zhou has more than 10 years’ experience in
international trade accounting and corporate financial management.
Ms. Zhou was an independent non-executive director of Perception
Digital Holdings Limited (currently known as E-Rental Car Company
Limited, stock code: 1822) and resigned in August 2014. Ms. Zhou
was also an executive director of Yun Sky Chemical (International)
Holdings Limited (currently known as King Stone Energy Group
Limited) (stock code: 663), and resigned in February 2010. Save
as disclosed above, Ms. Zhou did not hold any other directorships
in any other publicly listed companies in the last three years and
does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Ms. Zhou is not a director or employee of a company
which has an interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, “SFO”).

Mr. MUNG Wai Ming

Mr. MUNG Wai Ming, aged 52, joined the Group in January 2013 as
an Executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee.
Mr. Mung has more than 20 years’ experience in property and car
park management. He has accumulated extensive concept in the
operation management from his operation in different industries.
Mr. Mung worked in various industries including property trading,
financing, wedding witnesses, club management, car park
operation and foot massage etc. Mr. Mung is the chairman of Eli
Car Park Ltd. and director of Pure Massage Group Ltd. He was an
executive director of Perception Digital Holdings Limited (currently
known as E-Rental Car Company Limited, stock code: 1822) and
resigned in August 2014. He devotes himself in charity and was
elected as the member of the sixth standing committee of the
Overseas Congress of Yue Xiu District of Guangzhou, member of
the forth standing committee of the Overseas Congress of Qingxin
District of Qingyuan, member of Friends of Qing Yuan Association
(H.K.) Ltd. and founding chairman of International Industry and
Commerce Experts Association Ltd. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Mung did not hold any other directorships in any other publicly
listed companies in the last three years and does not have any
relationship with any other Directors, senior management or
substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Mung
is not a director or employee of a company which has an interest in
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Biographical Details of Directors ans Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LIU Shun Chuen

Mr. LIU Shun Chuen, aged 52, jointed the Group in June 2015 as
an Executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee.
He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration
from San Francisco State University, United States of America,
and a Bachelor degree in Estate Management from University of
Reading, United Kingdom, He has more than 15 years experience in
property development and investment in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Mr. Liu will be responsible for the overall corporate strategy of the
Company. Mr. Liu was an executive director of Qingdao Holdings
International Limited (formerly known as HyComm Wireless Limited,
Stock Code: 499) and resigned on 27 September 2014.

Mr. YEUNG Sau Chung

Mr. YEUNG Sau Chung, aged 48, jointed the Group in June 2015 as
an Executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee.
He has more than 20 years experience in research and analysis of
investment portfolios and in risk management. He holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Accountancy from City University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Yeung will be responsible for the overall management of the
Company. Mr. Yeung was an executive director of Qingdao Holdings
International Limited (formerly known as HyComm Wireless Limited,
Stock Code: 499) and resigned on 20 November 2014.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN

Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN, aged 49, joined the Group in
January 2013 as an Independent Non-Executive Director. He is
also the chairman and a member of each of the audit committee
(“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) of the Board of the Company. Mr. Jacobsen is the
managing director of a licensed corporation to advise on corporate
finance matters. He has more than 20 years of experience in
corporate finance and business development. Mr. Jacobsen is an
executive director of Auto ltalia Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited, stock code: 720) and is also
an independent non-executive director of abc Multiactive Limited
(stock code: 8131) and China Financial Leasing Group Limited (stock
code: 2312). He was the independent non-executive director of
Perception Digital Holdings Limited (currently known as E-Rental
Car Company Limited, stock code: 1822) and resigned in August
2014 and of HyComm Wireless Limited (stock code: 499) and
resigned in September 2014. He was also an independent non-
executive director of King Stone Energy Group Limited (stock code:
663) for the period from 26 September 2008 to 30 September 2011.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Jacobsen did not hold any other
directorships in any other publicly listed companies in the last three
years and does not have any relationship with any other Directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Mr. Jacobsen is not a director or employee of a company
which has an interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
Biographical Details of Directors ans Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. WU Wang Li

Mr. WU Wang Li, aged 41, joined the Group in January 2013 as
an Independent Non-Executive Director. He is also a member of
each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee. He obtained his bachelor of commerce
degree from Deakin University, and has over 14 years of experience
in auditing and accounting profession and consulting services. Mr.
Wu is a director of Skywise Consultants Limited and is admitted
to the status of Certified Practicing Accountant of CPA Australia.
Currently, Mr. Wu is the director of Skywise Consultants Limited.
He was appointed as an independent non-executive director on
several listed companies in main board and growth enterprise
market in Hong Kong. He has appropriate accounting and related
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules by virtue of his experience in accounting and
financial consulting services. Mr. Wu was the independent non-
executive director of Hao Wen Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Everpride Biopharmaceutical Company Limited) (stock code: 8019),
King Stone Energy Group Limited (formerly known as Yun Sky
Chemical (International) Holdings Limited) (stock code: 663), Talent
Property Group Limited (formerly known as Tomorrow International
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 760) and HyComm Wireless Limited
(stock code: 499) and resigned in July 2009, January 2010, January
2011 and September 2014 respectively. Save as disclosed above,
Mr. Wu did not hold any other directorships in any other publicly
listed companies in the last three years and does not have any
relationship with any other Directors, senior management or
substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Wu is
not a director or employee of a company which has an interest in
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Biographical Details of Directors ans Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. NG Wai Hung

Mr. NG Wai Hung, aged 52, joined the Group in February 2013 as
an Independent Non-Executive Director. He is also a member of
each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. He is a practising solicitor and a partner in
lu, Lai & Li, a Hong Kong firm of solicitors. Mr. Ng practises in the
areas of securities law, corporate law and commercial law in Hong
Kong. Mr. Ng is also an independent non-executive director of six
companies listed on Stock Exchange, namely Fortune Sun (China)
Holdings Limited (stock code: 352), Gome Electrical Appliances
Holding Limited (stock code: 493), Trigiant Group Limited (stock
code: 1300) and Tech Pro Technology Development Limited (stock
code: 3823). Mr. Ng was also an independent non-executive director
of Yun Sky Chemical (International) Holdings Limited (currently
known as King Stone Energy Group Limited, stock code: 663), KTP
Holdings Limited (currently known as Ares Asia Limited, stock code:
645), Tomorrow International Holdings Limited (currently known
as Talent Property Group Limited, stock code: 760), Perception
Digital Holdings Limited (currently known as E-Rental Car Company
Limited, stock code: 1822) and HyComm Wireless Limited (stock
code: 499) and resigned in February 2010, February 2011, January
2012, August 2014 and September 2014, respectively. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Ng did not hold any other directorships in any
other publicly listed companies in the last three years and does not
have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management
or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Ng is
not a director or employee of a company which has an interest in
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jairo Alfonso RAMOS SUAREZ

(Vice President of Field Operations)

Mr. Jairo Alfonso RAMOS SUAREZ, aged 44, is the vice president
of field operations of the Group. He joined the Group in November
2009. Mr. Ramos Suarez is a trained mechanical engineer, has
more than 16 years of experience in production, maintenance
programming, quality control, mechanical design, marketing and
procurement in tropical timber products and other materials. Mr.
Ramos Suarez was in charge of trading of forest products for a
private Columbian company in Shanghai, China from 2006 to 2008.
Mr. Ramos Suarez is responsible for the field operations in Acre.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ramos Suarez did not hold any other
directorships in any other publicly listed companies in the last three
years and does not have any relationship with any other Directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of
the Company. Mr. Ramos Suarez is not a director or employee of a
company which has an interest in the Shares and underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
Biographical Details of Directors ans Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
Mr. Fabio Levi VIDIGAL

Mr. Fabio Levi VIDIGAL, aged 34, joined the Group in March 2011
as accounting and tax manager in Brazil. Since March 2012, Mr.
Vidigal has been serving as the legal representative of the Group’s
subsidiary in Brazil. He also proactively participated in the Group's
forestry operation in Acre, Rondonia and Para, running corporate
and tax matters from Brazil headquarters in S&o Paulo. Mr. Vidigal
has graduated with an international trade diploma and he holds
a MBA in Tax Law from Fundagédo Getulio Vargas and is also a
chartered accountant affiliated to the CRC Sao Paulo Chapter.
He has experience in working for multinational companies, having
a managerial role at Lufthansa tax department in Brazil. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Vidigal did not hold any directorships in any
other publicly listed companies in the last three years and does not
have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management
or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr.
Vidigal is not a director or employee of a company which has an
interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Bruno DI GIULIO

Mr. Bruno DI GIULIO, aged 38, was the Group’s Legal Counsel (Brazil
affairs) and rejoined the Group in September 2014 as the Group's
Head of Brazil. He sits in our Hong Kong headquarters overseeing
all subjects related to our Brazil operation. Mr. Di Giulio is a
Brazilian qualified Lawyer with more than 10 years of experience
in corporate and litigation matters. He has more than 5 years
experience in the forestry sector alone and in investments in Asia-
Brazil market. Prior to rejoining our Group, Mr. Di Giulio headed the
Brazil Desk at a leading Law firm in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Di Giulio did not hold any directorships in any other
publicly listed companies in the last three years and does not have
any relationship with any other Directors, senior management or
substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Di Giulio
is not a director or employee of a company which has an interest in
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company has applied
the principles of, and complied with, the applicable code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (“the CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except for the deviations
mentioned below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The roles of the chairman (“Chairman”) and
the chief executive (“CE”) of the Company are segregated and
are clearly defined to ensure their respective independence,
accountability and responsibilities. The Chairman is responsible
for the formulation of the Group’s overall business development
policies while the CE is responsible for the implementation of major
decisions of the Board and overall management of the Group’s
businesses.

On 6 April 2011, Mr. LEUNG Chau Ping, Paul was re-designated
from the position as an executive director of the Company to a non-
executive director and resigned as the CE. Since then and to up the
date of this report, the position of the CE has not been appointed.
Since the beginning of the current financial year, Ms. ZHOU Jing
acted as the Chairman. During the current financial year when no
CE was appointed, the functions of the CE have been performed
by the Executive Directors with the assistance of the management
of the Company. The Board considers that such structure does
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company. The Board will however
regularly review the effectiveness of this structure to ensure that
such structure is appropriate in view of the Group’s prevailing
circumstances.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and non-executive directors should attend general meetings.
However, Mr. NG Wai Hung was unable to attend the special
general meeting held on 4 April 2014 in Hong Kong as he had
another business engagement.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that it continues to meet the requirements under
the Code Provisions.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2015, the Board comprised five Directors in total,
with two Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

Executive Directors:
Ms. ZHOU Jing (Chairman)
Mr. MUNG Wai Ming

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN

Mr. WU Wang Li

Mr. NG Wai Hung

There is no family or other material relationship (including financial
and business) among members of the Board. Composition of the
Board including the names and categories of Directors, is set out
on page 2. The brief biographical details of each Director are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 28 to 32. Each Director possesses
the necessary expertise and experience and provides checks
and balances for safeguarding the interests of the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole. The Company has during the year ended
31 March 2015 maintained a balanced board composition.

Subsequent to the reporting period, on 5 June 2015, Mr. LIU Shun
Chuen and Mr. YEUNG Sau Chung were appointed as Executive
Directors of the Company.

During the year, the Independent Non-Executive Directors provided
the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience. Their
active participation in the Board and committee meetings brought
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance and management process, taking into account the
interests of all Shareholders.

During the year under review, the Company has three Independent
Non-Executive Directors representing not less than one-third of
the Board. One of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, being
Mr. WU Wang Li, has the appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors a written
confirmation of his independence and has satisfied itself of such
independence up to the approval date of this report in accordance
with the independent guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc
basis of at least four times a year to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group, and
to review and approve the Group’s annual and interim results. Board
members are provided with all agendas and adequate information
for their review at least 3 days before the meetings. After the
meeting, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors for comments
before confirmation and sign-off. Minutes of board meetings and
meetings of board committees are kept by the company secretary
of the Company (“Company Secretary”) and are available for
inspection by any Director at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice. Each Director is entitled to seek independent professional
advice under appropriate circumstances at the expense of the
Company. During the year, 4 physical board meetings were held
by way of telephone conference. Attendance of each Director at
the board meetings is set out in the paragraph headed “Board
Committees” below.

Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation of Work

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for the development
of the Group with the goal of maximizing Shareholders’ value in
the long run. The Board also takes the responsibility for the overall
strategies and policies of the Group, approves and monitors the
strategic plans, investment and funding decisions, and reviews the
Group’s financial and operational performance. The Group’s day-to-
day operations and administration are overseen by the Executive
Directors and the management.

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic direction and
policies of the Group and supervising our management. Some
functions including the monitoring and approval of material
transactions, matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
Shareholder or Director of the Company, the approval of the interim
and annual results and other disclosures to the public or regulators
are reserved by the Board for consideration and approval. Matters
not specially reserved to the Board and necessary for the daily
management and operation of the Company are delegated to the
Executive Committee and management of the Company.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Directors are fully insured under the directors’ and officers’
liability insurance policy for indemnification against costs, charges,
losses, expenses and liabilities that may be incurred by them in the
execution and discharge of their duties.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

All members of the Board have participated in continuous
professional development through internal training provided
by the Company on various areas including, but not limited
to, the connected transaction, the Model Code and the duties
and responsibilities of Directors, so as to ensure that they have
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Group as well as fully aware of the responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package
from the Company Secretary on the first occasion of his/her
appointment, including materials briefly describing the operations
and business of the Company and the latest published financial
reports of the Company. Directors will be continuously updated on
any major developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good
corporate governance practices.

According to the Bye-laws, each Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall be subject to re-election at the next following general
meeting or until the next following AGM in case of an addition to
the Board and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting.
Moreover, one-third of the Directors for the time being, (or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not greater than one-third), shall retire from office by
rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term but excluding those holding office as Chairman
or Managing Director) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. Every Director holding the office
of Chairman or Managing Director shall be subject to re-election
once every three years. The rotating Directors who are subject to
retirement and re-election at the forthcoming AGM are set out on
pages 15 to 16.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director are available and accessible on the Company’s
website at http://www.susfor.com.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy during the financial
year ended 31 March 2015. The board diversity policy sets out that
the Company should endeavour to ensure that its Board members
have the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives that are required to support the execution of its
business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established four board committees, namely the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, to oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the execution of
the Board’s responsibilities. All board committees have clear and
specific written terms of reference and they report their work to
the Board after each meeting. Copies of minutes of all meetings
and resolutions passed at the board committees are kept by the
Company Secretary.

Executive Committee

As at 31 March 2015 and the date of this report, the Executive
Committee comprised Ms. ZHOU Jing (chairman of the Executive
Committee) and Mr. MUNG Wai Ming. The Executive Committee
was established with specific written terms of reference to, among
other duties, implement, review and give recommendations to the
Board on the daily operation of the Group from the time to time.
The Executive Committee held 6 meetings during the year. The
attendance records of each member are set out on page 39.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at 31 March 2015 and the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprised three members, namely Mr. William Keith
JACOBSEN (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. WU Wang
Li and Mr. NG Wai Hung and all of them are Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2015 and
discussed the internal controls together with the management.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 2 physical meetings
by way of telephone conference. Two of the physical meetings
were held together with management and the external auditors.
The attendance records of each member are set out on page 39.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, reviewed the financial statements
for the interim and final results for the year ended 31 March 2015
and discussed the internal controls together with the management.

The Audit Committee and the Board have not taken a different view
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
external auditors of the Company.
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To comply with the requirements under the CG Code in respect of
responsibilities for performing the corporate governance duties,
the Board delegated its responsibilities to the Audit Committee
to develop and review the Company’s policy and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; to review and
monitor the Company’s policy and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and to review the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Remuneration Committee

As at 31 March 2015 and the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprised Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN (chairman of
the Remuneration Committee), Mr. WU Wang Li and Mr. NG Wai
Hung. The Remuneration Committee was established with specific
written terms of reference to, among other duties, review and give
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy of the
Directors and senior management. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The remuneration of all the Directors
and senior management is monitored by the Remuneration
Committee. To determine the emoluments of Directors, the
Remuneration Committee takes into consideration factors such
as salaries of directors paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors. The Remuneration
Committee ensures that no Director is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration. During the year, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 physical meeting by way of telephone conference. The
attendance records of each member are set out on page 39. During
the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
existing remuneration policy and packages of all existing Directors.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration for the year under review are
set out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

As at 31 March 2015 and the date of this report, the member of
Nomination Committee comprised Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. WU Wang Li and
Mr. NG Wai Hung. The Nomination Committee was established
with specific written terms of reference to, among other duties,
give recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment, re-appointment and succession planning for
the Board members. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. The Nomination Committee has the responsibility
to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board in accordance with the board diversity policy. It is also
responsible for assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors and making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors. During the year,
the Nomination Committee held 2 physical meetings by way of
telephone conference. The attendance records of each member
are set out on below. During the year under review, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and reviewed the objectives set for implementing the board
diversity policy.

The individual attendance records of each Director at the physical
meetings of the Board, Executive Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and at the
general meeting of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2015 are set out below:
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Number of physical meetings attended/held during his/her tenure

REESRLRE BTz 8388
Executive Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEpR £ HTZEE ERZEEE FHzEEE REZRE LE -1
Ms. ZHOU Jing B 4/4 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 33
TNEH Nam Qi
Mr. MUNG Wai Ming SEREAE 4/4 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 3/3
TNEH NaA @il
Mr. Wiliam Keith JACOBSEN ~ E[EELAE 4/4 N/A 212 11 2/2 33
TNER
Mr. WU Wang Li RalBis 4/4 N/A 2/2 1 2/2 3/3
NER
Mr. NG Wai Hung REHTE 4/4 N/A 2/2 17 2/2 2/3
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2015.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015, in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and the applicable disclosure requirements of the Listing
Rules. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
adopted IFRSs and suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistency, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. No material uncertainties relating to any events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern were identified by the
Directors during the course of preparing and reviewing the financial
statements for the year under review.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditors of the Company
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 44 to 48.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the fees in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided to the Group by the external auditors
amounted to approximately HK$1,143,000 (2014: HK$1,255,000)
and HK$462,000 (2014: HK$655,000 ), respectively. The non-audit
service fees for the year ended mainly consisted of fees in relation
to open offers.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control. The internal control system helps to
ensure effective measures are in place to protect the Group’s
assets and maintain the accounting records and the compliance
with relevant legislation and regulations.

During the financial year under review, the Board has reviewed
operational and financial reports in order to ensure the effectiveness
and adequacy of the internal control system through the Audit
Committee.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavors to provide its Shareholders accurate,
clear, comprehensive and timely information of the Group via the
publication of annual reports, announcements and circulars as well
as through the Company’s website. The Board resolved to adopt
a Shareholders’ communication policy. The policy aims to set out
the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the company’s
Shareholders, both individual and institutional Shareholders, and,
in appropriate circumstances, the investment community at large,
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company and its subsidiaries
(including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans and
governance, etc.), in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise
their rights in an informed manner, and to allow the Shareholders
and the investment community to engage actively with the
Company.

The AGM is a useful forum for the Board to communicate directly
with the Shareholders. The Directors, senior executives and external
auditors make their best effort to attend the AGM of the Company
to answer any questions from the Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedure for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders can submit a requisition to convene a special general
meeting pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Act”). The number of Shareholders necessary for
a requisition shall be representing not less than one-tenth of the
Company’s paid-up capital as at the date of requisition having the
right to vote at the general meeting.

The written requisition must:
—  state the purposes of the special general meeting;

— be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one or
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists); and

—  be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a special general
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, any themselves
convene a special general meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the said
date.
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Procedure for Shareholders to put forward
proposals at general meetings

Shareholders can submit a requisition to move a resolution at an
annual general meeting pursuant to Section 79 of the Act. The
number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition shall be:

—  representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all Shareholders having at the date of requisition a
right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or

—  not less than 100 Shareholders.
The written requisition must:

- state the resolution, with a statement not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the meeting;

— be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one or
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists);

—  be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks
before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one week before the meeting in
case of any other requisition; and

—  be deposited with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in giving notice of the resolution and
circulating the statements of the proposed resolution to all
Shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the
applicable laws and rules.

Enquires to the Board

The Company’s website provides email address and telephone to
enable the Shareholders to make any enquiries and concerns to
the Board. Shareholders may send their enquiries by post or by
email to the attention of the Company Secretary who will direct the
enquiries to the Board for handling.

N -

BRRRBERASREBREZRERF

RBOEBISE 79 6 - R AIIRHE@ AR RBEF
RELIRERER - FLABIBREBE -

— EZFERERLBREREZSHE LROROAA
BERRMBRRETIIR_+02— 3

— PAP100 BAIR o

— FIBRZE - ER—MTZK 1,000 F 0 5
BRRBRRZEESERNS FRIEZEE 2R
=

- RFAAEFERALEEZE (B RHSZBHFERAL
FHEN DB RSB AOXHR) ;

- WNBBLRBRBHMNER - TORAEEIN
E2HAE - mBEMER - AN R—EE
HIARZER AR EEMER - WHEARRT]
WE &

— TFHAEBERHATE  UWENAARRBEERZE
BRRRTEEKAMAEBREHRBERBANRE
BIERA LRI EMT R

BEEERLENR

ARRBUREEBIY REFARBRAEES
REEAEHREE - REAUBFHEHHH A
RARERREH  ARNNERERAEFTRR
BHIAGLRTE -



KRMEERARAT —B-W —B-AFEER
Corporate Governance Report

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS BEYH

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents #HE_—_Z—RFE=A=+—HILFE ' AQFZE
during the year ended 31 March 2015. B AR 2D o

On Behalf of the Board REE=E

ZHOU Jing T

Chairman A

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015 BE . —ZE—RFAAZTNAE

s
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Crowe Horwath.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 191,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Except for the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence as explained below, we conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement. Because of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, however, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion.
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Basis for disclaimer of opinion ARRERZEXE
i) Scope limitation - fair value of biological i) BHERS - EMEELTLERENE

assets and change in fair value of biological
assets

Our audit opinion dated 30 June 2014 on the Group’s
financial statements for the last year ended 31 March 2014
was disclaimed because we were unable to obtain sufficient
information to verify the reasonableness of the assumptions
and the feasibility of the business plan based on which
the valuations for the biological assets and goodwill at 31
March 2014 were performed. Accordingly, the carrying
amount of biological assets of HK$17,538,000, goodwill
of HK$NIl and interest in subsidiaries of HK$19,896,000
in the company level statement of financial position as at
31 March 2014, and the change in fair value of biological
assets of HK$292,758,000, impairment of goodwill of
HK$302,118,000, and deferred tax credit of HK$73,188,000,
recognized in the profit or loss for the year ended 31 March
2014, and impairment of amount due from subsidiaries of
HK$588,196,000 recognized in the company level profit or
loss for the year ended 31 March 2014 were qualified in the
2014 audit opinion. Any adjustments that might have been
found to be necessary in respect of these matters would
have material consequential effects on the net assets of the
Group and the Company brought forward from 31 March
2014 and the Group’s loss for the current year ended 31
March 2015 and the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, change in the
fair value of the biological assets of approximately
HK$16,197,000 have been recognized and charged to the
profit or loss and the biological assets were written down to
zero as at 31 March 2015. As set out in note 20 and 21 to
the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company engaged an independent valuer to perform the
valuation of fair value of the biological assets and valuation
of the fair value of the business value for sustainable forest
management as a cash generating unit.
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We were unable to obtain sufficient evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to whether the assumptions adopted by
the valuer in these valuations were appropriate. Whether
the cash generating unit (“CGU”) of the sustainable
forest management is able to generate future economic
benefits to the Group is dependent on the feasibility of
the future business plan provided by the Company. We
were unable to obtain sufficient information to verify the
reasonableness of the assumptions and the feasibility of
the business plan based on which the valuations were
performed, and accordingly, we were unable to satisfy
ourselves as to whether the fair value of the biological
assets of approximately HK$Nil, the carrying amount of
goodwill HK$Nil and interest in subsidiaries of approximately
HK$118,592,000 as at 31 March 2015, and whether the
change in fair value of the biological assets of approximately
HK$16,197,000 recognized in the profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2015 and the impairment of amount
due from subsidiaries of approximately HK$41,644,000
recognized in the company level profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2015 were free from material misstatement.

Furthermore, due to the heavy rains in the region where the
Group’s biological assets are located, as referred to note
20 to the consolidated financial statements, no physical
count was performed for the biological assets as at year
ended 31 March 2015. There were no other alternative
audit procedures that we could adopt to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the existence,
quantities and conditions of the biological assets as at 31
March 2015.

Any adjustments that might have been found to be
necessary in respect of the above matters would have
material consequential effects on the net assets of the
Group and the Company as at 31 March 2015, and the
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended and the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Our opinion on the current year’s consolidated financial
statements is also modified because of the possible effect
of the above matters on comparability of the current year’s
figures and the corresponding figures.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Scope limitation - recoverability of the
freehold land and interest in subsidiaries
Included in the property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$110,569,000 in the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2015 was
freehold land of approximately HK$106,108,000, which
is held by a subsidiary and located in Amazon region of
Brazil. As set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company engaged an
independent valuer to perform the valuation of the freehold
land for assessing the recoverability of the freehold land,
on which the Group’s biological assets are located, and the
interest in subsidiaries of HK$118,592,000 as at 31 March
2015.

The valuation method used was the direct comparison
method, based on which, the fair value of the freehold land
at 31 March 2015 was estimated to be approximately
R$44,406,000, which is same as at 31 March 2014. However,
there were no transactions in the forestry sector in Brazil
after June 2014 and the downturn of the Brazil's economy
and the subsequent significant decline in the selling price of
timber might have affected the fair value of the freehold land.
We were unable to obtain sufficient information to verify the
basis of assumptions for the valuation of the freehold land
at 31 March 2015 and accordingly, we were unable to satisfy
ourselves as to whether the carrying amount of the freehold
land of approximately HK$106,108,000 and the interest in
subsidiaries of HK$118,592,000 as at 31 March 2015 were
free from material misstatement.

Any adjustments that might have been found to be
necessary in respect of the above matters would have
material consequential effects on the net assets of the
Group and the Company as at 31 March 2015 and the
Group’s loss for the year then ended and the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

iii) Scope limitation - trade and other payables

Included in the trade and other payables of approximately
HK$31,342,000 in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2015 was trade payable of
approximately HK$25,030,000 which was subject to an
interest for overdue payment at the rate of 1% per month.
During the audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011, the related trade
creditor confirmed that no interest was billed to the Group.
Therefore, the Group has not accrued interest for overdue
payment. However, due to the non-reply to our confirmation
request, absence of new information of the trade creditor,
and no other sufficient appropriate documentary evidence
to prove that no interest shall be required to be accrued on
the overdue trade payable, there were no other alternative
audit procedures that we could adopt to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to verify the existence,
completeness and accuracy of the trade payable as at
31 March 2015. Accordingly, we were unable to satisfy
ourselves as to whether these amounts were fairly stated in
the financial statements as at 31 March 2015.

Our audit opinion dated 30 June 2014 on the Group’s
financial statements for the last year ended 31 March
2014 was also qualified on the same scope limitation. Any
adjustments that might have been found to be necessary
in respect of the above would have material consequential
effects on the net assets of the Group brought forward from
31 March 2014 and the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
two years then ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 and the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Disclaimer of opinion

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements as to whether they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2015 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and as to whether the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015

Leung Chun Wa

Practising Certificate Number P04963
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015
(LA7E®E271)) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
- —FHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
et BT T BT T
REVENUE A 7 7,822 63,946
Cost of sales SHERA (2,957) (51,365)
Change in fair value of investment B YN TE(EE
properties 19 1,079 -
Other income HAbgg A 8 8,432 24,461
Other net loss E e85 58 8 (38,722) (1,139)
Selling and distribution costs $HE KD A (89) (1,647)
Administrative expenses T+ (14,750) (85,695)
Other operating expenses Hih @~ 9 - (315,232)
Change in fair value of biological EWEEN T ESEREE
assets less costs to sell DN 20 (16,197) (292,758)
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS iRz Esig (55,382) (609,429)
Finance income & A 366 41
Finance costs BhEE (1,329) (2,051)
Net finance costs BhEE R FERE 10(a) (963) (2,010)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION BRBiAIE 1B 10 (56,345) (611,439)
Income tax Fr5#L 13(a) (159) 121,285
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEEE (56,504) (490,154)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: e
Owners of the Company VIN/NGIE TN (56,508) (490,133)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR AE S 4 (21)
(56,504) (490,154)
Loss per share BREE 16
— Basic —HK (0.74) cents il (9.52) cents 1l
— Diluted — B (0.74) cents 1l (9.52) cents Il
The notes on pages 58 to 190 form part of these consolidated % 58 B4 190 B 2 i IR I Z 54 M B R E
financial statements. Z—3f5 o
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 2751))

2015 2014
—E-RF e S i fes
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mz BT T BT

Loss for the year FEEBSE (56,504) (490,154)
Other comprehensive loss for FERNEMEEEE

the year
Items that may be reclassified B fEER R

subsequently to profit or loss IHH
Exchange differences on translation — #2E 55118 1 mlA1 7R &

of financial statements of 7 [E S ZEEE

overseas subsidiaries 13(c) (15,921) (11,884)
Other comprehensive loss for FREMEZEEE - IR

the year, net of income tax B (15,921) (11,884)
Total comprehensive loss for FREHEEEARE

the year (72,425) (502,038)
Total comprehensive loss UTALTEGEHEEEAZEE:

attributable to:

Owners of the Company RARER A (72,429) (502,017)

Non-controlling interests SRR AE R 4 (21)

(72,425) (502,038)

The notes on pages 58 to 190 form part of these consolidated 55 58 B & 55 190 B 7 MisT B I F45 & B i5HRER 2

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015
(LA7E®E 271)) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
—E—HEF —E—pUE
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
et BET T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BENEE 17 110,569 157,769
Intangible assets B E 18 94 -
Investment properties B 19 24,778 23,699
Biological assets EEE 20 - 17,538
Goodwiill RS 27 - -
135,441 199,006
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 78 23 806 3,741
Loan receivables TEWNE T 24 93,612 -
Trade and other receivables FEURE 57018 & H b e
WiskIE 25 25,656 39,340
Cash and cash equivalents HERHESZEY 26 50,141 8,965
170,215 52,046
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Trade and other payables FENE S 0E L EME
INE/eE) 27 49,580 82,776
Loans and borrowings ERREE 28 5,283 5,310
Provision for taxation FRIE B 30(a) 2,220 2,158
Promissory notes BT EE 33 - 6,782
Amount due to non-controlling FER FEIE R IR R IR
shareholder 42(b) 836 1,235
Amount due to shareholder FE(T AR ER 0 IE 32 - 13,410
57,919 111,671
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ RBEE(AE) FE
(LIABILITIES) 112,296 (59,625)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERABEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 247,737 139,381
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 2751))

2015 2014
—E-EF —FT—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
KiaE BET T BT T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Loans and borrowings ERREE 28 18,951 22,994
Amounts due to shareholders FETRR R I8 32 - -
Financial liabilities e 31 40,595 1,984
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIER & 30(b) 38,632 55,605
98,178 80,583
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 149,559 58,798
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B GG
Share capital R& A 34 185,631 29,005
Reserves (= 36(a) (36,151) 29,718
Total equity attributable to the ZQFHEE AE(LARER
owners of the Company 149,480 58,723
Non-controlling interests FEE IR E S 36(a) 79 75
TOTAL EQUITY MR 149,559 58,798

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 HEZeWN —_ZT—HRF/,NA -+ h B i REET

June 2015. 17

On Behalf of the Board RERESFSE

ZHOU Jing MUNG Wai Ming

A SEH

Director Director

o EFE

The notes on pages 58 to 190 form part of these consolidated % 58 B & 5 190 B 2 MisT K It S5 4 BB @R E
financial statements. Z— 25 o
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KERMEZRERAT TN —FT-HFFH
Statement of Financial Position

HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015
(LA7E®E 271)) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
—E-RF —F—NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bist BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE R&E 17 - 2
Interest in subsidiaries BB A Bl RERS 22 118,592 19,896
118,592 19,898
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables H (b pE Y FiIE 25 751 456
Cash and cash equivalents HE RIRSEEY 26 46,156 7,722
46,907 8,178
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables E A FE T /IR 27 3,600 4,561
Promissory note AN R 33 - 6,782
3,600 11,343
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ RE (BE) BERE
ASSETS 43,307 (3,165)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HWEERRBES
CURRENT LIABILITIES 161,899 16,733
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEMS
Financial liabilities PEEE 31 40,595 1,984
NET ASSETS EEFE 121,304 14,749
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAR#E
Share capital IREN 34 185,631 29,005
Reserves E 36(b) (64,327) (14,256)
TOTAL EQUITY PR 121,304 14,749

o

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 mEZ@R _—_ZT—HE A -+ B ERSE#ET
1

June 2015.

On Behalf of the Board

ZHOU Jing
A&
Director

EF

The notes on pages 58 to 190 form part of these consolidated 25 58 B &
—4

financial statements.
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Director

EF

BEF 190 B ZMEBREEFGAVBRE
b5y e

Z

s3 |



SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE =S —HAF=A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB%27%1))
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KRMEZRBR DT —m/—E-AFFR
Consolidated Statement of Changes |n Eqmty
AEEBHE

AF=A=1+— E|¢¢1§ For the year ended 31 March 2015
(LA7E# 271)) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z=—T—AF=A=+—HItFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 2751))

2015 2014
—E-EF —FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
ofz3 BET T BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEXBRESR
ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation BRELRT 1A (56,345) (611,439)
Adjustments for: BRDIFHE
Change in fair value of investment WEMERNTEE
properties 19 (1,079) -
Finance costs BEEH 10@) 1,329 2,051
Finance income BEWA 10(a) (366) (41)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEMZE - BEKR
equipment Bt 9 - 76
Impairment of property, plant and Yz - BEREEZ
equipment VERIER 9 - 13,038
Impairment loss of goodwill EEREEE 21 - 302,118
Depreciation e 17 504 3,027
Change in fair value of financial liabilities HBAEATEES 31 38,612 (20,278)
Reversal of write down of inventories, net B O EMoRFRE 8 23 (58) (22,933)
Waiver of loan interest AR EFHE 8 (4,046) =
Exchange difference, net ME 3 =58 R 107 22,227
Share-based payment VARG A7 Sz 1+ 10(b) - 446
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition Ui 2 s B R e 37(a) - (503)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 2 W 8 (4,234) =
Change in fair value of biological assets B E N FEEER
less costs to sell SHERZAS 20 16,197 292,758
Operating loss before changes in RETEEESEFHH 2
working capital REBEE (9,379) (19,453)
Decrease in inventories FERD 2,994 23,412
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other FEWCE 5) 5/ T8 K Efth FE UL
receivables IR ($G0) 12,628 (28,007)
Decrease in amount due to non-controlling FE1SF SR R A 3R SR IR R
shareholder (399) -
Increase in loan receivables FEUCE FIE AN (93,612)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other FERTE 55008 R L Ab FES
payables FIE R (12,865) 6,674
Cash used in operations REEBERHRE (100,633) (17,374)
Income tax paid B ATSH
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid —BNEBNER (75) =
- PRC Enterprise income tax paid — B BREMER - -
(75) =
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXBRESERHFHE
ACTIVITIES (100,708) (17,374)

e




KRMEERERAT =B —T—-HFFIR
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015
(LA7E®E 271)) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Kzt BET T BT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHRER
ACTIVITIES
Payment to acquire property, plant and WEEYIZ « BB REE 2
equipment (NG (4) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYEE - JP?SZ)%&?&ﬁ
and equipment Fr{S 5k % 17 - 103
Net cash outflow from acquisition of B B 22 TZfEéE
subsidiaries piAuepe £ 37 (°) (701)
Net cash outflow from disposal of HEMBARRS ML
subsidiaries o) 37(d) (4) -
Interest received BYFIE 10(a) 366 41
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED  REZFEHRERA (F
IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES ) FEE 349 (557)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMEFBHRER
ACTIVITIES
Loans and borrowings raised FIESERKEER - 17,000
Repayment of loans and borrowings BEERKEE (422) (50,036)
Repayment of amounts due to EIR R IR 5B
shareholders (13,410) (217,360)
Repayment of amount due to a related BERN—REELQ AR
company 18 - (3,720)
Repayment of promissory note EEANEE (6,782) =
Interest paid Eﬁﬂ (931) (1,000)
Proceeds from share issue upon exercise 11F3 Hﬂ% B E1TAR D
of share warrant Zﬁﬁ?gﬁk 7 4,497
Proceeds from share issue BRI 2 FriaEE 168,837 65,219
Share issue expense ?é‘ﬁ%f ZFX (5,657) (4,160)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED  B&ZEERESHA ~ (F
IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES ) FEE 141,642 (189,560)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HEeRBESEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®gm, i) B8 41,283 (207,491)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHRERACEZREY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,965 216,540
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ERgm o 8
RATE CHANGES (107) (84)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRASRBEELEEY
END OF YEAR 25 50,141 8,965
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBAESEEYEFIM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents HeREeEEY 25 50,141 8,965

The notes on pages 58 to 190 form part of these consolidated 55 58 = Z 55 190 B 7 Ml sH B It F4r & ISRk 2
financial statements. — =R o

.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and its ordinary shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office and the
principal place of business is Suites No. 302-305, 3rd Floor,
Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company
comprise sustainable forest management; investment and
leasing in natural forests; manufacturing and sales of timber
products including but not limited to wooden door, furniture
and wooden floor panels; leasing of properties; the business
of licensed travel agent under the Travel Agents Ordinance
(Chapter 218 of the Laws of Hong Kong); and money lending
business pursuant to the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements had been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, which for this financial year and the comparative
period, as permitted by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (“the Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange,
continue to be those of predecessor Companies Ordinance
(Cap.32). These accounts also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2015 comprise the Group.

ltems included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), rounded to the nearest thousand
except for per share data. Hong Kong dollar is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the biological assets, the warrants and
investment properties are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out in Notes
3(9), 3(y) and 3(z) respectively.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major source of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in Note 5.

so |

3. FESHHEME (&)

(a)

MBRERBERE (50)

(2 _T-AF=-A=1—HIFE
ZiEAMBHREREAEE -

AEEE NS ER M BHRKRAIIRA
B DUAERKEMETIEEERE
ZEE ([Tt E¥ ) 518 - ZEH
B|KRIAEE ([BE]) 27 ¥ E
EMEAARIFABREREOZT
7 - HEEFERBURRIN - BETIANRA]
ZNEEBRAEE 2 258 -

R B TSR R P A ET 8 EE B 5L A
AEE - HEMEE - RIEERE
BMERZ RN FEIR  FEIRIR
Fi 5 3(g) ~ 3(y) & 3(2) Tk 2 € 5T 1K
&

RELTT A BIFR M I RS ERIRE < Bf
BHmREREEE(EL A - Bt K
REx - MUt FFIE - fAat RBRR RN
TERRZERMTEZREE - BE
R 2 58 - fhET RARRIRER T A
BEKBREEMBEERBERLTE
RAEEZARBEKRE  AEERKS
H T R BE RS (B A SR AR 2
BEMBERAECER - BRER
AIRER BN EX F AT

fhaT MARB R T @ et o &5t
fAEt ZERTERBERERT 2 HM -
AMERT N Z BRI NHER - SARIER] 72
LKA M oARREAM - BHERTRMER
ERTEAR] B AR SR AR AU RERR

BIE B MBERMGREELBIE
PRIEH S B RRAFEATE L
HIET R P RRBE R 2 T 2 RRE
Bt 5 &iE o




SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealized profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and
the owners of the Company. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (Please refer to Note 3(i)), unless
the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of business are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are recognised at
their fair values, except that:

° a deferred tax asset or liability arising from
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
in a business combination and the potential
tax effects of temporary differences and
carry forward of an acquiree that exist at the
acquisition date or arise as a result of the
acquisition are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes ;

o1 |

3.

(b)

(c)

FESHBEREE (&)

Lop= PNCIDSE S0 £
EEBREEHE L A1 TR
w2 E

I R A ER B 5% 25 Y /B A B #2E il 4
ZHEDREPHUAEBERZ T AAR - M
fRAEmT 2 EREIFERER L ©
BAELHAE  ARBAHEER 2
8 BT FHABBE  NTHERERD

BAREE K EMNE AR E I HIERE
FWEHEZMB ARz 280 - A
Bl amsEENE R R NKE
2R E BRI B A R RE 2 42
smIR A EER - Mz BRRNE
ROIRERM B EER 2 XA FEXK
(RBERE B ) YRR E QA

HAELELERREZHA -

RARBZHBARRERAN - BHiEAE
BIEFE (KWW AD AT IESE
ZHEAR) 2B RETE AR E
A TR ANER =R EEE (B
25 3()) 78R o

EBEH

WRE X IR AW AARR - £ A 0
ZBEEERERATES - BRI
BHHAKEMEREE 2 NP E
AEE R IE DR BIE RSB AR
APE R B A R AR SR B 31T DA ST %
G WNCIR I ol QN e
A o WREMRRIHOR AR — RN E £ RS 7E

0= N/ T
ig\ﬁﬁﬁg o °©

RUEE R - PrUEE 2 AT BRI B 2 S P
AEZAEDNRENFEIER ET
XFTRERRID -

. REXBAHHPIRBEER
PrAEREMEL 2 BLEHR A
BESAE  UARBWEAR
KRR B B 77 s R Y g
HRZERERRGEEE G
ERBEERBEER S5
A 12 SRS TR AT & -




SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c) Business combinations (continued)

o assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benéfits;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with IFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the
net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognized
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another IFRS.

N -

3.

FESHBEREE (&)

(c)

EBast

. HESEMNZHARBENL
BE - DRERRESERS
19 B SR FIFER RATE

o ERWBATZABHHRE
e o SR LA AR S 2 DARRA 43
T AR R 72 LA RR D
(R B AR 2 & sk AR T
75 ROURES B B8 E R B 5
SRR 2 FOUR T3k

& R

. RIBBRR A RS 2EE 5 5%
FHERERRBEEMRERL
EBRDBAREGECEE
(L E4AR) THREZER

-

EEEAMERERAE BT 2
o] JE 22 B #E 25 & BR DA S W BB 77 TR PA
ERA 2 BB B 2 2 E (40
B) 2K - BT E R BRI A E
HFAE R ERWEE BB RN E
BAETE o MG EHEE - TUIER]
Rl E B R P AR BE U B 2
FEBHATEERAE B 2
fa] FEFE AR M 25 RR DA R W BB 77 AT 55
BB sz ~FE (E)
ZHM - AEREAIS MBS T AR
= BB -

EREHRAREZNIB TESEAR
MIBREZLEAIDIEERFEEZ
IR R Al V) PR A AR IFE
ReE D (5 BB 7T AT B E B E
REBLZLLLOIFE - A EEERFE
AR HMIEHER - HRE 7 IFE
P o RIJ4% 1 P AB sl B4 B B B 765
WELAFTAZELE (WER) 5T E -



KERMEZRBRAE —T—MH

—E-AFER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Business combinations (continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement , or IAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets , as appropriate, with the corresponding gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Where a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any,
is recognized in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if
that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (Please refer to the
accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If some or
all of the goodwill allocated to a cash-generating
unit was acquired in a business combination during
the current annual period, that unit shall be tested
for impairment before the end of the current annual
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of freehold land acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date
of acquisition.

Freehold land and construction in progress are not
depreciated.

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses (Please refer to Note

3(0):

- property, furniture and fixtures, machinery,
engineering and other equipment, and motor
vehicles

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful life as follow:

Property Over the lease term
Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
Machinery, engineering and other equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may
also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

M

(9)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, identified on
business combinations are capitalised based on their
fair values.

Intangible assets acquired by the Group are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(Please refer to Note 3(i)). Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of patent with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
its useful lives of 6 years. Amortisation of outstanding
sales contract with finite useful life is charged to
profit or loss based on the percentage of revenue
recognised on the contract.

Trademark has an indefinite useful life.

Money lending license will not be amortised until its
useful life is determined to be finite, but subject to
impairment test annually.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

Biological assets

Biological assets are living plants involved in the
agricultural activities of the transformation of
biological assets into agricultural produce for sale
or into additional biological assets. Biological assets
are measured at fair value less costs to sell at initial
recognition and at each reporting date. The fair value
less costs to sell at the time of harvest is deemed
as the cost of agricultural produce for further
processing, if applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the
following exception:

Land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For
these purposes, the inception of the lease is
the time that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged as an expense in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z= - —AF=A=1+—HItFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtors;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it is becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtors.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

- For trade receivables and other current
receivables, loan receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2N E-AEER

HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount
of an impairment loss decrease
and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of loan receivables and trade receivable
included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z= - —AF=A=1+—HItFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying amount of
an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

N 0

3.

FESHBEREE (&)

L)

BEEZRE (@)
(i) HMEEZHIE ()
= FHEAKEE AR
BEZAWRESELE
DR B R B (6
REEMER IR

Ho RN HFERAEE
H‘I 15?’*251/%35//“4

ThfE AR &% 2 5
BEREERTRR
TSR (A AT RG IR
EEFREHIRE o W&
EEAZBESRALIE
A B RE HAb
BEZHeRA A
BIYEARSRAZ
N—HEBEE (RS E
EBA) BEARES
K o

TR Bl (EAT1R

EEEXNEEMBZE
SELEMNZ REER
ﬂﬁT%@iﬁ WH
EEERIBENEY
Mﬁ%?iﬁuﬁuz
REEETUADE &
%Wﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ
(sk—#HEM) B S
ZE A BREE %
1% OB BE L
(sk—#HEEN) 2 HAD
LEERERE HEEZ
REENSIREER
EERIAFER T ERK
A(fWA]FTE) » fE
FBEE (MR EE) °

BB (E AR

SRS ELASN 2 K E T
= ' WAUEE A E
SR AT HRANE
@*%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%
Bl - BRI E ZRER
BATRE -



KERMEZRERAT TN —FT-HFFH
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(ZE—ZF—hAF=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim
Financial Reporting , in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (Please refer to Notes 3(i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill, available-for-
sale equity securities and unquoted equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-
for-sale equity security increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any
other period subsequently, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income
and not profit or loss.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

0

(k)

V)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition, is determined
on the first-in first-out basis. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts, except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note

3(i)).
Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Preferred share capital

Preferred share capital is classified as equity
if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only at
the Company’s option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividends on preferred share capital
classified as equity are recognised as distributions
within equity.

Preferred share capital is classified as a liability if it
is redeemable on a specific date or at the option of
the shareholders, or if dividend payments are not
discretionary. The liability is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policy for interest bearing borrowings
set out in Note 3(l) and accordingly dividends thereon
are recognised on an accruals basis in profit or loss as
part of finance costs.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with Note 3(r)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z= - —AF=A=1+—HItFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(r) Employee benefits (continued)

(i) The Group operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Under the rule
of the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme.
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in Mainland China are required
to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a percentage of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with rules of the
central pension scheme.

(iii) Share-based payments

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share
options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to profit or loss
for the year under review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share option reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly
to retained profits).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Share-based payments (continued)

Share options granted to consultants

Share options granted to consultants in
exchange for goods or services are measured
at the fair values of goods or services
received, unless that fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the goods or
services received are measured by reference
to the fair value of the share options granted.
The amounts are recognised as expenses,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve), when the Group obtains the
goods or when the counterparties render
services, unless the goods or services qualify
for recognition as assets.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(iv)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided that those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in Note 3(z), the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is
depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases,
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

() Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for
a loss the holder incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual
rates charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantee not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit
or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised
in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee
as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised in
accordance with Note 3(r)(iii) if and when (i)
it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

I

3.

FESHBEREE (&)

(r)

Eﬁ%ﬁzwﬁﬂ%ﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ
=N
() CERHZHBER

MBERBEREBRE AR
REIRE T T A 2 IR an Hi 1
KB BITA (B - ERA)
EXMEEERTERT @A
([HBEAD) AHEMRERXE
RZEH -

EAREE LSRR - 42
R DFERNTHERETI S
FE A & 5 50BN LA FE A 5008
REREW A o BIFH 7%
REV R FERELE T2 RE
URBR A FRERER 5 E
RPATERER (A &S
ZEER) MEE - R2ME
ZELMAE - TR/
ANERRBIER 2B TER
YER 2 | 2R BRAE T JE SRR PELR
ZIER T HRA R UER 2 fd
FEARELL R (% FE B
Al S fhEr) - BELERE
2| AT R (E R - AR ERAR
BEAKBEILREEER ZBR
R - B2 BKEISEKAE
By - RIBDES RO B s B 1) 25 W AR
EEE R ARERFX -

ML ER BB A Z RS
B DREREBREAEEL
Z I PRI - WEIBZH
BESH o EAN - W () IBIRZ
AABA BRI IERAANEE
BE o Rl)mAEEBERFZ
T EBTEERRIB R E R E AT IE
NESFIEREMENZRIES
SR 2 &% BV HERZ S
KA R AT 8 - BRI EE 3(n
(iii) FERR R o



KERMEZRBRAE —T—MH

T—HFFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—ZT—R%F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in
business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised
at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition
at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that
would be determined in accordance with Note
3(r)(iii). Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination that cannot be reliably
fair valued or were not present obligation
at the date of acquisition are disclosed in
accordance with Note 3(r)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent
liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided that
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when the goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises or agreed point
of delivery which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the
goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

(i) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Commission income, handling charge and
late charge revenues are recognised when
earned.

(iij) Rental income from investment

property

Rental income receivable from investment
property is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

(iv) Service income
Service income is recognised upon services
in respect of the sales of air tickets, hotel
accommodation and other travel related
products are provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(®

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Items of statement
of financial position, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 April 2005, are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 April 2005 is translated
at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date
of acquisition of the foreign operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &#Z =%
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies
(continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation or a partial disposal
of an interest in an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes
a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or
completed.
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HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)
(v) Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

(iif) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vl A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a
person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the board of directors of the Company
(the chief operating decision maker) for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(y)

(z)

Shares held by the Company for
settlement of acquisition consideration

The Company issued shares and held them on
behalf of the vendor for the settlement of acquisition
consideration payables to the vendor in future years
upon meeting of net profit guarantee by the vendor
in connection with acquisition of its Originate Tech
Global Investments Limited and its subsidiaries.
The shares, valued at HK$0.414 per share, before
share consolidation effective from 2 October 2013,
including any directly attributable incremental costs,
are presented as “Shares held by the Company
for settlement of acquisition consideration” and
deducted from total equity. As a result of the failure
to meet net profit guarantee by the vendor as per
the acquisition agreement, these shares are held by
the Company awaiting disposal by the Company.
Proceeds recovered from the disposal of these
shares shall be returned to the Company.

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled
by other than a fixed amount of cash for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments are
derivative financial instruments. Warrants classified
as derivative financial instruments are recognised at
their fair values at the date of issue. Changes in fair
values in subsequent periods are recognised through
profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not held for sale in the ordinary course of business,
use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. Investment property
is measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following amendments to IFRS
and one new interpretation (“new and revised IFRSs”) that
are first effective for the current accounting period.

Amendments to IFRS
10, IFRS 12
and IAS 27 (2011)

Investment Entities

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge

Accounting

IFRIC 21 Levies

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
Impacts of the adoption of the new and revised IFRSs are
discussed below.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (2011)
Investment Entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those
parents which qualify to be an investment entity as defined
in the amended IFRS 10. Investment entities are required
to measure their subsidiaries at fair value through profit or
loss. These amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as the Company does not qualify to be
an investment entity.

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in
IAS 32. The amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as they are consistent with the policies
already adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(ZE—ZF—hAF=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

4.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to IAS 36 modify the disclosure
requirements for impaired non-financial assets. Among
them, the amendments expand the disclosures required for
an impaired asset or CGU whose recoverable amount is
based on fair value less costs of disposal. The Group early
adopted the amendments in the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The amendments to IAS 39 provide relief from discontinuing
hedge accounting when novation of a derivative designated
as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria. The
amendments do not have an impact on these financial
statements as the Group has not novated any of its
derivatives.

IFRIC 21 - Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a liability to
pay a levy imposed by a government should be recognised.
The amendments do not have an impact on these financial
statements as the guidance is consistent with the Group’s
existing accounting policies.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in Note 3, management has made
certain key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, as described below.

(a)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management
will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses on trade
and other receivables resulting from inability of
the customers or debtors to make the required
payments. The Group bases the estimates on the
ageing of the trade and other receivables, customer
or debtor credit-worthiness, and historical write off
experience. If the financial condition of the customers
or debtors were to deteriorate, actual write off would
be higher than estimates.
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(ZE—ZF—hAF=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment allowances on loan receivables

The Group has established impairment allowances in
respect of estimated incurred loss in loan receivables.
The allowances on loan receivables are set out in
Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

In determining individual impairment allowances,
management considers objective evidence of
impairment. When a loan is impaired, an individual
impairment allowance is assessed by a discounted
cash flow method, measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate. The quantum
of the allowance is also impacted by the collateral
value and this, in turn, may be discounted in certain
circumstances to take into account the impact of
forced sale or quick liquidation.

In determining collective impairment allowances,
management uses estimates based on historical
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those
in the portfolio adjusted for current conditions.

The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating both the amount and timing of future
cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

Write down of inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable
value based on an assessment of the realisability
of inventories. Write down of inventories are
recorded where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be realised. The
identification of write downs requires the use of
judgements and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying amount of inventories and
write down of inventories in the periods in which
such estimate has been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

(e)

)

(9)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there
has been impairment of goodwill in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note 3(i). The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units are
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal
calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and assumptions made by management
on the future operation of the business, and other
assumptions underlying the fair value less costs of
disposal calculations.

Impairment loss of intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there
has been impairment of intangible assets with
indefinite useful life. In the event that the carrying
values of the intangible assets are higher than their
recoverable amounts (i.e. the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use), impairment
loss is recognized. The recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units are determined based on
fair value less costs of disposal calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions made by management on the future
operation of the business, and other assumptions
underlying the fair value less costs of disposal
calculations.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that are initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

(h)

Fair values of biological assets

Management estimates at the end of the
reporting period the fair value less costs to sell
of biological assets with reference to market
prices and professional valuations. Unanticipated
volatile changes in market prices of the underlying
agricultural produce could significantly affect the

2t E R A E
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fair values of these biological assets and result
in fair value re-measurement in future accounting
periods.

The Group’s forestry business is subject to the usual
agricultural hazards from fire, wind and insects.
Forces of nature such as temperature and rainfall
may also affect harvest efficiency. Management
considers adequate preventive measures are in
place and the relevant legislation under forestry
laws in Brazil will assist in minimising exposure.
Nevertheless, to the extent that un-anticipated
factors affecting harvestable agricultural produce
may result in re-measurement in future accounting
periods.
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Fair value at Valuation Unovservable Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair
Description 31 March 2015  technique inputs value
R-ZE-1%
ZA=t-B2
i AYE BRI FABRBARE FABRBABBEATEZBE
Biological Discounted cash The higher the cost of revenue, the lower the fair
assets HKSNIil flows Cost of revenue value
EYERE BEET HLEERE WABKCAR WARASR A TEABE
Log price The higher the log price, the higher the fair value
B AERER ATEIES
The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair
Discount rate value
BR% AREYR  ATHEAME
The longer the harvesting period, the lower the fair
Harvesting year value
WK Wk B - A TE R
Quality condition and The higher the quality conditions and quantity of
quantity of trees trees, the higher the fair value
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

5. EihsrRHE @
et THBREZE 2 EERR (8)

(continued)
Fair value at 31 Valuation Unobservable Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair
Description March 2014 technique inputs value
R-B-MF=A
ik ST-B2AYE  fEERE FABERRARE FAUERRABBEATLEZBE
Biological Discounted The higher the cost of revenue, the lower the
assets HK$17,538,000 cash flows Cost of revenue fair value
EWEE B#A17538000 T ABRRERE WAKK WARASR A TFEABE
The higher the log price, the higher the fair
Log price value
B AERERE ATERES
The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair
Discount rate value
AR & AREYR  ATEABE
The longer the harvesting period, the lower
Harvesting year the fair value
i35 RS Wepk S B - B RIIE
Quality conditions The higher the quality conditions and quantity
and quantity of trees of trees, the higher the fair value
BAEENAREE  BAEERRBSREEYS ATEAES
(i) Revenue recognition (i) Woas R

The Group assesses its business relationships with
customers and determines that it is acting as an
agent in the majority of transactions relating to the
sales of air-tickets, hotel accommodation and other
travel related products, and accordingly report those
revenue on a net basis.

G) Estimates of fair value of investment Gg)

properties

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at
the end of the reporting period by an independent
professional valuer. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making the judgement, the Group considers
information from current prices in an active market
for similar properties and uses assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the
end of the reporting period.
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

(k) Fair value of warrants

The directors of the Company use their judgement in
selecting an appropriate valuation technique to determine
fair value of the warrants which are not quoted in an
active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by
market practitioners are applied. The fair values of these
warrants are determined at the end of the reporting period
with movement in fair value recognised in profit or loss. In
estimating the fair value of these warrants, the Group uses
independent valuation which is based on various inputs
and estimates. If the inputs and estimates applied in the
model are different, the carrying amount of these warrants
will change. The carrying value of the warrants at 31 March
2015 was HK$40,595,000 (2014: HK$1,984,000).

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geography. In a manner consistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the board
of directors (“Board”) (the chief operating decision maker)
of the Company for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following reportable segments. In 2015, the Group has
commenced a new segment, ie money lending, as a result
of the acquisition of subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 37(a),
to diversify its business and to broaden the base of revenue.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

Sustainable forest management: sustainable management
of and investment in natural forests; timber and wood
processing; trading and sales of forestry and timber
products.

Manufacturing and sale of timber products: manufacturing
and sales of timber products including but not limited to
wooden doors, furniture and wooden flooring (previously
named as Zhongshan Operations).

Leasing of properties: lease of premises to generate rental
income and to gain from the appreciation in the property
values in the long term.

Travel and travel related business: provision of travel
agency services such as booking of air-tickets, hotel
accommodation and other travel related products.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 &#Z =%

—hAF=A=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Money lending business: earn interest income from financial
assets through the money lending licence.

In accordance with IFRS 8, segment information disclosed in
this consolidated financial statements has been prepared in
a manner consistent with the information used by the Board
of the Company for the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources among segments. In
this regard, the Board of the Company monitors the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all non-current assets and current
assets attributable to an individual reportable segment
with the exception of certain unallocated corporate assets
including unallocated cash and cash equivalents.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
current, deferred tax liabilities, financial liabilities, promissory
notes and other unallocated corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.

Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned by/
(loss) from each segment without allocation of central
administration cost such as director’s salaries and other
head office or corporate administration costs, change in fair
value of financial liabilities, unallocated corporate income
and unallocated interest expense.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
the profit earned by/(loss) from each segment, the Board
is provided with segment information concerning revenue
(including intersegment sales), interest income and expense
from cash balances and borrowings managed directly by the
segments, depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses
and additions to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations.
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HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. TEHE )
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) PEE -BEERER
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment is REBEHAIHRED B2 DM A
reported below: T
2015
“E-1F
Manufacturing
Sustainable and sale Travel and
forest of timber Money  travel related
management products lending business  Leasing of

ThE HER  business  JRERNE  properties Total
FHEE  HENIER EEh EER ERE ot
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

/3 Bt E¥n ¥ Rt B B

Revenue from extermal customers REPREEZMA - 3,053 2,808 1,226 645 7822

Reportable seqment revenue TRErE - 3,053 2,808 1,226 645 7,822

Reportable segment (loss)/profit before  THEAWLHz (B /

taxation i (12,709) (1,071) 1,991 9 o0 (10,840)
Interestincome HEMA 2 - - - - 2
Impaimentloss of property, it and equipment 11+ BER AR

£ g - - - - - -
Change nfarvalie ofbidogical assets ess costs. -4 TEEATERS e

fosel Bk X (16,197) - - - - [16197)
Depreciaton i 1) 276) - (192) (13) (502)
Reversal of write down of inventories, et AERENFRE § - 58 - - - 58
Interest expense flafs (642) - - (25) (598)  (4,265)
Reportable seqment assets THENTEE 107,835 25,331 96,783 331 24005 258,227
Additions to non-current segment assets FRBogERRE - - 94 4 - 9
Reportable segment liabilities TREANEE (35,793) (11,688) (106) (2,009) (23,654)  (73,250)

o |
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z= - —AF=A=1+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. TIHH/E ®)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) PEE - BEREEE)
(continued)
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment is REB2FHAIHRED I 2 DA
reported below: (continued) T : (&)
2014
“EF
Manufacturing
Sustainable and sale Travel and
forest of timber Money travel related
management products lending business  Leasing of
s SR bushess  [ERIEE  properties Total

WIEE BEANER  BRE WRRE  MRER it
Notes  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSOO0  HKSO00D
fd ABTR BBt BBt ARt A%t AbTx

Revenue from external customers RESREF LA - 63,762 - 175 9 63946
Reportable segment revenue BE e - 63,762 - 175 9 63,946

Reportable segment (loss)/profit  ATH&2WRH A (5

before taxation 18) /7 (640,285) 19583 - % (B9 (620676)
Impairment loss of property, plant and 1% + BERREH

equipment [E5E 9 (13,038) - - - - (13038)
Impairment loss of goodil HEREEE Vil (302,118) - - - - (g
Change in fair value of biological assets ~ £7EEATELE

less costs to sel SHERA 2 (975 - - - - (29275
Depreciation Vil (628) (2381) - (1) (19 (3029)
Reversal of write down of inventories, net ~ EEZEHHFE 8 6,551 16,382 - - - 2,933
Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ (HEWE - HERRE

equipment LBl 9 (76) = = - - (76)
Interest expense fIEFR (1914 - - - ) (1917)
Reportable segment assets HEIHEE 173521 4143 - 4344 N4 242862

Additions to non-current segment  FEHAIWEERE
assets - - - 3,281 23,738 27019

Reportable segment liabilities HEAHEE (69,975) (25,204) = (2,466) (23,523) (121,168)

N, o
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HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

o I

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. TEHE )
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) L0 - BFE - BERAERS
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: ZHER
(i) Revenue (i) WA
2015 2014
—E-hF —PaF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Reportable segment revenue SREDEBUA 7,822 63,946
Elimination of inter-segment ‘iﬁﬁﬁ% A
revenue - =
Consolidated revenue LEUA 7,822 63,946
(iij) Loss (ii) EE
2015 2014
—E-hF —PaF
HK$'000 HK$000
BET T BT
Reportable segment loss before AR E 5 B R A ETE
taxation (10,840) (620,676)
Unallocated corporate income RAOBEEFERA 364 520
Change in fair value of financial 25 n‘k% (EWA/NSE- b
liabilities (38,612) 20,278
Depreciation e (2) @)
Unallocated corporate expenses KOBEFERAS (7,191) (11,423)
Unallocated interest expense RAOMEFBFHEZ (64) (134)
Loss before taxation BREiRIEHE (56,345) (611,439)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

6. DEHE®W)
(b) TMELIWUA - B EERAE

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: ZHER (&)
(continued)
(iij) Assets (iii) EE
2015 2014
—EB-AfF —FmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T PEEETIT
Reportable segment assets AEREDIEE 258,227 242,862
Unallocated: Kol
— Unallocated cash and cash — Ao AR e MR
equivalents SEEY 46,254 7,752
— Other unallocated corporate —HMRDBbE
assets BE 1,175 438
Total assets per consolidated REMBIRRAKMZ
statement of financial position Y EERE 305,656 251,052
(iv)  Liabilities (iv) EfEF
2015 2014
—E-hF —T—OF
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BET T ST
Reportable segment liabilities ASRELHEE 73,250 121,168
Unallocated: RO :
— Financial liabilities —BEaE 40,595 1,984
— Provision for taxation — IR 2,220 2,158
— Deferred tax liabilities —IREFIABE 38,632 55,605
— Promissory notes —ENEE - 6,782
— Other unallocated corporate —HfhRH AP E
liabilities 8| 1,400 4,557
Total liabilities per consolidated eV BARRKRTZE
statement of financial position y & EREE 156,097 192,254
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HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DIWE (@)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) TFIREIBURA - EE BEREE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: ZHER: (8)
(continued)
(v) Other items vy EaEEH
2015
“&-1f
Manufacturing
Sustainable and sale Travel and
forest of timber Money  travel related
management products lending business  Leasing of
5§ BER  business  NBRIEE  propers  Unallocated Total
RHEE  BENMER 0 EMER MEER DEER AR g3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
B B BT BT BT B MR
Depreciaion i 21) (276) (192) iE] ] (504
Ineestexpense ke (642) - (25) (598) (64 (1,329)
2014
~5-nf
Manufacturing
Sustainable and sale Travel and
forest ~ of timber Money travel related
management  products lending business  Leasing of
58 SR busness  HEREE  properties Unallocated Total
WIEE REMER SRR EERE UEEE AAE 5t
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§ /000 HK$000  HKS'000 HK§'000
Bt ET BTt BT BT Bt BT
Depreciation i (628) (2.381) - (0 (1) @ (3027)
Interest expense FlERR (1914) - - - () (34 (2051)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HENE  BR R
and equipment B BB (76) - = = = = (76)

o
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. TEHE )
(c) Revenue from major products and services: (c) REFEERERBRHEZUWA :

2015 2014
—E-EHF —ZT—uE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Manufacturing and sales of timber BUE RIHEANM Em
products 3,053 63,762

Interest income from money lending EER 2 BUA
business 2,898 -
Travel and travel related business TR 15 K2 it bz A A S5 75 1,226 175
Leasing of properties YIZHE 645 9
7,822 63,946

Geographical information

HEER

AT A () AEERAIAREZIRA ¢ K (i)
AEEYE  BELRE BREE  RE
Mg EYEERFGEZ MBS - B
BIEEFCHEZIE W - BERRE -
BEMEURENBEEZ B AEREZE
ERGRIE Y M8 o B EEREBIRNE
B IS -

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i)
the Group’s revenue from external customers and (ii) the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
investment properties, biological assets and goodwill. The
geographical locations of customers refers to the locations
at which the customers reside. The geographical locations
of property, plant and equipment, investment properties and
biological assets is based on the physical locations of the
asset under consideration. In the case of intangible assets
and goodwill, the allocation is based on the location of the
operation to which they are allocated.

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

REMPFREEZHA ERBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF —FT-NUFE ZZEBE-—HF —ZpUF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T TSRS TT BT T TEEEFIT
South America EZE) - - 106,108 170,256

Asia Pacific YN

(other than Hong Kong) (TBEES) 3,053 63,762 1,357 1,622
Hong Kong (place of domicile) H75 (BEEHEL) 4,769 184 27,976 27,128
7,822 63946 135,441 199,006
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HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

6. 2DEHE®W)

Information about major customer EBETERFE2ER
Revenue from customer contributing 10% or more of the KEMEAREEBLWA 10% KA EZREZ
total revenue of the Group is as follows: WALOTR :
2015 2014
—T-8F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T AT

Customer A — revenue from money lending

BEP A -—RBEREBZ

business A 1,553 =
Customer B - revenue from manufacturing EF B —RERENMHEN

and sales of timber M2 UA 933 =
Customer C — revenue from manufacturing BF C —REZEREENR

and sales of timber products WMEmZ A - 22,237
Customer D — revenue from manufacturing X D —REREERHER

and sales of timber products WMEmZ A - 16,648
Customer E — revenue from manufacturing ®P E —RERBEREEAR

and sales of timber products MEmZ WA - 8,765
REVENUE 7. WA
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods ARG EENEERTNEEREHES
sold, (after allowances for returns and trade discounts) mZBREREARRE REEANMESR :
and revenue from manufacturing and sales of timber EWMENELTASWA 0 RIZHTELHKE
products; lease of premises to generate rental income; SEFEETE © B iREAREE T2 I RS
provision of agency services for booking of air-tickets, hotel RETEEE Y F S AT UA o

accommodation and other travel related products, and

interest income from financial assets.

An analysis of revenue is as follows: KA SHTEAT -
2015 2014
—E—FEF —E—pOF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Manufacturing and sales of timber products RIS R SHEANM Em 3,053 63,762
Interest income from money lending business B % 2 | SUA 2,898 -
Travel and travel related business IeisE M iR B AR R 5T 1,226 175
Leasing of properties YEME 645 9
7,822 63,946
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8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET LOSS 8. HWARHEMEIEFEE

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—uE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T TEETIT
Other income Heng A
Rental income WA - 5
Waiver of loan interest R EFHE 4,046 -
Net gain on disposal of a wholly-owned HE—HE2ENBARZ
subsidiary W 558 4,234 -
Reversal of write down of inventories, net B O E MR F R 58 22,933
Others EAb 94 1,523
8,432 24,461
Other net loss HAhg5E 35
Net exchange loss RN bt (110) (21,920)
Change in fair value of financial liabilities FBaEATEES) (38,612) 20,278
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition WiiE 2 B e - 503
(38,722) (1,139)
9. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 9. Hih&ERL
2015 2014
—B-HF —FEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T PEEETIT
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEREE 2B
equipment B - 76
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 1% B K& B 2 RIE - 13,038
Impairment loss of goodwill (Note ;) YRR ERTE (ML i) - 302,118
- 315,232
Notes: Kt
0] Impairment loss of goodwill was a non-cash item resulting from the 0} AEREBERIRSEE - HARERNER
annual impairment test of the cash-generating unit of the segment DEFEIR S EE B MEEET ZRERFE
of sustainable forest management. oo

N 0
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HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 10. BRBIATETB

AEERBATEBR TSGR, (GEA) T

The Group’s loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting): THBEH :
2015 2014
—E-hF —ZT—uE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iz BET T PEEETFIT
(a) Net finance costs (a) MEERFHE
Interest income from bank deposits SRITERZFIBUA (366) (1)
Total interest income on financial assets WIERATEFTAE
not at fair value through profit or loss mR B EZ
FEUALERE (366) @1
Finance costs BEE A
Interest on loans and other borrowings HRAFNEBHESE
wholly repayable within five years ERMHMEEZ
5, 1,265 921
Interest on promissory notes AT 7 B 33 64 134
Interest on amounts due to shareholders ERIEEREZIBEZFE  420b) - 990
Interest on amounts due to related FENRBIERRFIEZ
companies | i=N 42(b) - 6
Total interest expenses on financial IR A TFEFAE
liabilities not at fair value through profit SRR AaEY
or loss R E R B 1,329 2,051
(963) 2,010
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10.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

10. BRFATEE (@)

2015 2014
—E-IF —TEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iz BETT PEEETIT
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) ET A
remuneration) (BIEESME)
Salaries, wages and other benefits He - TERHEHME
pl 5,549 8,869
Contributions to defined contribution ERAH IR IR
retirement plans o 243 964
Equity-settled share-based payment VARG HELEE 2 B 7 <F
b 35 - 446
5,792 10,279
(c) Other items (c) EIER
Cost of inventories* TFERA 23 2,860 49,453
Depreciation e 17 504 3,027
Minimum lease payments under T RET (BEE
operating leases for land and buildings EEE) KLY
(including directors’ quarters) ZEERESNR 592 551
Auditor’s remuneration ZEENEN &
— audit services — &Iz 1,143 1,255
— other services — H At AR5 462 655
1,605 1,910
Gross rental income from investment HEMHER WAL
properties less direct outgoings of R EES RAE
approximately HK$111,000 # 111,000 7T (=
(2014: HK$6,000) TP B
6,000 7T) 534 3
- Cost of inventories includes depreciation of approximately HK$nil g FREABRETEAERETT (ZF—MF : &

(2014: HK$13,000), the amount of which is also included in the

respective total amounts disclosed separately above.
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HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 11. EERESTRAEZ#S
REMUNERATION
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 BIBRIEB A aED (5 32 %) & 161 &
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. BEUEERESTHAB ST !
32) and the chief executive’s remuneration are as follows:
2015
—E-1F

Salaries  Retirement

and other scheme
henefits contributions Share-hased
Fees H4R B payment Total

fg AR REER R it
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
BRI BRI BRI BRTL  ARTR

Executive Directors YIES

ZHOU Jing il 120 - 12 - 132

MUNG Wai Ming SEH 220 - 10 - 230
340 - 22 - 362

Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BU3:#{7ES

Wiliam Keith JACOBSEN EEH 120 - - - 120

WU Wang Li RoliE 120 - - - 120

NG Wai Hung REH 240 - - - 240
480 - - - 480
820 - 22 - 842
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

11. EERESTBRAEZHME @

REMUNERATION (continued)

2014
“EIE
Salaries Retirement
and other scheme
benefits  contributions  Share-based
Fees R R’Ix payment Total
e EthEA SRR DRGSR &5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BT BT BT AETT AETR
Executive Directors TES

ZHOU Jing 6 120 - - 316 436
MUNG Wai Ming SEH 120 - - 316 436
240 - - 632 872

Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BU3:i{TES
William Keith JACOBSEN ERH 120 - - - 120
WU Wang Li Relj# 120 - - - 120
NG Wai Hung REME 240 - - - 240
480 - - - 480
720 - - 632 1,352
On 6 April 2011, Mr. LEUNG Chau Ping, Paul was RZE——FWANRH  ZRFELRERER

re-designated from the position as an executive director of
the Company to a non-executive director and resigned as
chief executive. Since then and up to the date of approval
of financial statements, the position of chief executive has
not been appointed. During the current financial year when
no chief executive was appointed, the functions of chief
executive have been performed by the executive directors
with the assistance of the management of the Company

Therefore, the executive directors together act as the chief
executive of the Company and are responsible for the
Company’s day to day management and overall activities.
The remuneration of executive directors for 2014 and 2015
are disclosed above.

There was no arrangement under which a director has
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, no emolument was
paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.
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12. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
one (2014: two) directors, details of whose emoluments are
set out in Note 11 above. The aggregate of the emoluments
of the remaining four (2014: three) non-directors and non-
chief executive, highest paid individuals were as follows:

12. BEE&H AT

FAREERFTATEE R (ZZ M4
ME)EE FERSEZHMEFEHN EX
-2 THE (ZZ—HFE: =R) &%
BEIEESE RIETTRBR A T 2B 2580
™

2015 2014

—E-A8F —Z—uF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Salaries and other benefits e MEMmET 2,015 1,566
Retirement scheme contributions RRET SR 65 30
Share-based payment DARR AR & AF - =
2,080 1,596

The remuneration of the non-director and non-chief
executive, highest paid individuals fell within the following
bands:

ReFIEEENIFITHREFEA T ZBEN T
AT #E :

Number of individuals

EEHE
2015 2014
—EB-AHEF —EF
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 ST IL 2 4% 1,000,000 7T 4 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 751 1,000,001 TTE B
1,500,000 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 7 1,500,001 TLE A
2,000,000 7T - _
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 FEHE 2,000,001 TTEBHE
2,500,000 7T - _
4 3

During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014,
no emolument was paid by the Group to such individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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13. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 13. BABRERZFER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a) SREBERRZAEHNAEK:

profit or loss represents:

2015 2014
=T-0% —TmEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Current tax BT IR
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —EBREH
— Current year —NFE 84 =
— B FERET
— Under/(over) provision in prior B/ (BRERE)
year (note j) (Biaz i) 44 (49,456)
Current tax BB R
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HRBI TSR
— Current year —NFE - 1,359
Deferred tax EERIE
— Origination and reversal of — B4 RO =R
temporary differences 31 (73,188)
Tax charge/(credit) FRIEUER, () 159 (121,285)
i) As mentioned in Note 8(i) of the financial i) HWMEE T —ME= A
statements for the year ended 31 March —t—HIEFEZMBHREN
2014, a subsidiary of the Company completed it 8() Al - AR EIHT B A RN
the sales transaction in March 2011, and —_ T —F=AGKHERS
recognized a profit tax payable amounting DA —F——F iR 7
to approximately HK$49,456,000 in 2011. 1S 4978 % 49,456,000 JT © 1A
In 2012, the subsidiary of the Company e i@jﬁﬁﬁ%’&ﬁ
incurred significant loss for the year, BISEAFEREE @%?&
including the impairment of the outstanding Ol e & 5 3018 2 BB ° AL
trade receivable. The subsidiary of the B ARIE N — T — PR
Company filed the relevant tax return and tax AR RAR S M IS E K (M
computation which net off the tax payable JE A M RIS 5 5008 2 H
and subsequent impairment loss of trade @B 1) T & 805
receivable to the Hong Kong Inland Revenue BE(EERBRD  KBES
Department (the “IRD”) during the year 2014. MIBRHGR - ARG R
After the IRD assessment, the IRD agreed BRGABRMISEE - AN AT
the adjusted tax loss, and not charge for any AT ZF——F 2 FISH o
profit tax as calculated for the year 2011. As a B - AR BN — T — PR
result, the Group recognized an over-provision SICHIFE BB IR

of taxation for previous year in 2014.

) Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at i) BHE_ZT_RF_-A=-+1—H
the rate of 16.5% of the estimated assessable LEE BENGREERE
profits arising in Hong Kong for the year PBEE A 2 I R IE SR Bt m A R AR
ended 31 March 2015. No Hong Kong Profits % 16,5% atie Bt - B2 — =
Tax charge for the year ended 31 March 2014. —PE= A=+ —RIEFEH

BETABBMEH o

i) Brazil income tax rate is 34% (2014: 34%) ii) EEMERERENREAESL 2
of the estimated assessable profits arising {hEtFESR R Al 2 TR A 34%
in Brazil. No Brazil income tax has been (—Z=—PO%F :34%) - ARE
provided for in the financial statements as the PO B 2 RIS MEF E 1 e
Brazil's subsidiary has no assessable profit aR pLm ) B L P AT S
for both years. NS e R
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HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

13.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

13.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a)

profit or loss represents: (continued)

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise

Income Tax at 25% (2014: 25%).

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Reconciliation between tax expense and (b)
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

REBRRRZAEH@®

FRERRRZMEHRAR  (B)

oI B A Rl B BB R TSR
?25%%%&$R<:=A—m¢ 25%) ©

JiNE JﬁﬂJﬂ%EFEZﬁE%ﬁE %4 7]
AR ZERRERGE

RAEARRGE 2 BAMX RS
BRZHEK

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—uF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Loss before taxation KR RIS (56,345) (611,439)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, RERRFKERREEZ
calculated at the rates applicable to MERAE 2 GRFiREE
loss in the countries concerned ZEAERIA (13,043) (212,059)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BEFHIA 2 Tl 7 28 (1,252) (4,488)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ~ NAIHIFIFIE » i fgar & 13,847 148,240
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERRBEFHEEEZ
recognised iy 563 1,326
Utilisation of previously unrecognised EFRBAEARERTIEEE
tax losses - (4,848)
Under/(Over) provision in prior year BEFERETE (B
¥ Bt a4 (49,456)
Tax credit/(charge) FIEH %, (WER) 159 (121,285)
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13. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 13. ZEBHERZAEH &)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) a v
(c) Tax effect relating to each component of (c) HtZzHEBEESEARST 2BKTE
other comprehensive loss
2015 2014
—E-1f —E-mE
Tax Tax
(expenses)/ (expenses)/
Before benefit Net-of-tax Before benefit  Net-of-tax
tax BE amount tax BB amount

amount  (BI%)/ HIBRBIER amount (B HRRHUE%R
BHAEE B ¢ ST &R 6]
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

BRI EETn  BRTn BRTR  ANTR  ERTn

Ik

Exchange differences on translation ~ #EE5NIE AR

of financial statements of B RRAES
overseas subsidiaries EHES (15,921) - (15921) (11,884) = (11,884)
(15,921) - (5921) (1188 - (11,884)
14. DIVIDENDS 14. KRE
The directors of the Company do not propose the payment AARESVAEZERNBE-_E—HF=
of any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: B=1T—HIIEEZEMKE (ZE—PF:
HKS$Nil). BT T) o

15. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS  {5. A\ S g (- 1S
OF THE COMPANY 5. XAFHEBAEEEE

The consolidated loss attributable to the owners of AARBEEAEHGAEREREEZ —
the Company includes a loss of approximately of E—RE=-A=+—HIEEZEEBRY
HK$56,634,000 (2014: HK$576,807,000) for the year ended 7B & 56,634,000 T ( — & — PO F : B ¥
31 March 2015, which has been dealt with in the financial 576,807,000 7T) @ EERAA R IEHES
statements of the Company. BIE o
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AF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

16. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share
is based on the loss attributable to the owners of
the Company as follows and the reconciliation of
the weighted average number of shares as shown in
Note (b):

ZREE

(@) FREAREIBEDREUTEAA
A A 518 R M 5E () TR 2
RIS BT BEIRATE -

2015 2014
—E-fHE —TEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Loss Eia
Loss for the purpose of basic and Gt E SRREAR R EE
diluted loss per share [E518 2 E51E (56,508) (490,133)

Diluted loss per share equals to the basic loss per
share for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014
because the outstanding convertible preferred
shares, share options, warrants and other potential
ordinary shares in issue had an anti-dilutive effect on
the basic loss per share.

Weighted average number of shares

A R AR TIE 2 AT AR AE SE A~ B AR
2 REREUALEMERTEEE
BRZERENBRARBEECE
BEE_ZT-—AFAR-_T-NOF=H
=+ BIFEZEREEEIRNSE
REREARERE -

(b) REPIIFEFIIH

2015 2014

—E-HEF —E—F

'000 '000

TR T

(Restated)

(#E=51)

Number of Shares BEE

Weighted average number of RAGTESREAR K EE
ordinary shares for the purpose of B8 7 Em AR I 8K

basic and diluted loss per share 7,595,743 5,147,355*

* The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation of basic and
diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2015 has accounted for the open
offer, which included the bonus element
during the reporting period, basic and diluted
loss per share for the corresponding year of
2014, have been retrospectively adjusted to
reflect for the effects of open offers, which
included the bonus element during the
reporting period.

.

* ﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬂ-‘—ﬁ j:—? ﬂg ﬂ
=t ALEFEZESRERNR
EERN 2 BB E 2
EftRAREE (BERSH
FZAMED)  R=_F—@0
FHAFEZBRERNLES
BiEE SRR AREE (GtA
BEMEZAMEIBY) 28
EBYRE
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BELRSRE
The Group REH
Machinery,
engineering
Freehold Furniture and other
Land and equipment Motor
XA Property fidures  #2E IER vehicles Total
i nE FHREE RthiRfe AE 5
Moteg)
(Wita)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000

AR BT BT i aw AR BT

Cost T

At1Api 2013 R-T-=F

BA-B 183,086 - 4545 4538 2275 104,444
Disposdls & - - 6 (166) (310 (481)
Accuistion of subsiciries WEhEAR - 320 10 - - 330
Exchange movement R (19:358) - % (234 (22) (19,783
At 31 March 2014 RZE-E

=f=t-H 163,728 320 4674 4138 1740 177500
At1 Aprl 2014 it

mA-B 163,728 320 4674 413 1740 177500
Addtons HE - - 4 = - 4
Disposals of subsidaries HENBAT - = k) 299 - 331)
Exchange movement EREY (40.99%5) - k) 12 - {t99%1)
At 31 March 2015 RE-1%

=f=t-A 113733 320 4678 3851 1740 12122
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% BERSHE @
(continued)
The Group (continued) REE (&)
Machinery,
engineering
Freehold Furniture and other
Land and equipment Motor
XA Property fitures  #2 IRK vehicles Total
£ i) 0% FRREE Rt - 3t
(Noteg)
Wita)

HOSO0 SO0 MO0 MK HKSOD HKSO0
BT BT BT mETL WL R

Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAERR

impairment losses
At1 Apr 2013 W-F-=£mA-A - - 1744 85 1,601 4170
Charge for the year R - 2 2085 m 37 307
Written back on disposals e - - 0 (64 (236) (302
Exchange movement 528 - - 10 (59 (159) 202)
Impaiment Aotz () REWEE) 11,009 - n 1690 167 13038
At 31 March 2014 RZE-TE

=A=T-H 11,009 2 4119 2,801 1,740 19,731
At 1 April 2014 W=Z-MERA-A 11,009 2 4119 2,801 1,740 19,731
Charge for the year KERHR - 168 176 160 - 504
Written back on disposals of subsidiaries HERBARREE - - (12 (19 - (231)
Exchange movement EHE (3384) - 30 3 - (3351)
At 31 March 2015 NE-1F

=A=t-H 1,625 170 4373 2,145 1,740 16,653

Carrying amounts FiEf

At 31 March 2015 RE-1F

=A=t-H 106,108 3,050 305 1,106 - 110,569
At 31 March 2014 WZT-TE

ZA=t-H 162,719 3218 4% 1337 - 167,769

ge
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

17.

(continued)
The Group (continued)

Notes:

(@) The freehold land is held in Amazon Brazil where the 44,500-hectare
natural forest is located. As mentioned in Note 41, UTRB had
litigations with third parties, and they filed a precautionary injunction
to prevent UTRB of selling its freehold land without properly paying

possible claim to them.

(b) At 31 March 2015, the Group’s property in Hong Kong with
the carrying amount of approximately HK$3,050,000 (2014:
HK$3,218,000) were pledged to secure the bank loans granted to

the Group (Note 28).

(c) At 31 March 2014, the harvesting operation in Acre, Brazil remained
suspended. As the business environment continued to be difficult
for the Group in Brazil, the board of directors changed its operation
model in Acre from own harvesting to leasing out part of the
forest in Brazil in 2014 so as to enhance the income stream of the
Group. As the directors changed its operation model, the board
of directors impaired the freehold land and plant and equipment
in Brazil's subsidiary for a total carrying amount of HK$13,038,000
in sustainable forest management segment for the year ended
31 March 2014. The recoverable amount of the freehold land is
HK$152,719,000. The estimates of recoverable amount were
based on the freehold land fair values less costs of disposal, using
direct comparison method by reference to recent sales price of
similar assets within the same industry. The fair value on which the
recoverable amount based on is categorized as a level 2 fair value

measurement.

At 31 March 2015, the recoverable amount of the freehold land
had been reassessed based on the estimated fair value less costs
of disposal, using the direct comparison method with reference
to the most recent similar transaction made in last year, by the
professional valuer, GCA who has amongst its staff felow members
of chartered surveyors with qualifications and experiences in valuing
similar assets. Based the assessment, the directors of the Company
considered that no impairment was required as at 31 March 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(d) The analysis of carrying amounts of property is as follows:

17. Y% - BERSZE @

REE(E)
ptsz

(@) KA EEHE 3 AR A B PR S5 5 i 44,500 AEX
SRARMRFTEHD, o FHAAMTFE 41 Bl - UTRB 8258
=HAFA - MEFBERAEEHMREILES - U
UTRB 7E M E @ E X A gk 2 RERTH & HKA
Rt o

(b) RZZE—RF=A=+—H AEBELREEZ
FRE{E 478 3,050,000 7T (—Z—M4F : #K
3,218,000 7t) Z MH¥ EE AR EEEKRITE
o EA (HIRE 28) o

© RZT—m&E=F=+—0  BAEZZEMN2K
REBEBEL (R - BN A SEEE AL AR
HSEIRIE RN NFESFEREEERE
Mz EEER - BETRKERAHAERELD 7
W RMRAREBZBARE - HREEFX
BHERN  EEEREBEE-_T—NF=A
=t+—ALFESEARBARHERMNEE
DERZ KA FERE Tt R BB I 3% 2 BR A AR (ERL
& ' £5 A5 13,038,000 JT ° KA EHE i
2 Al U 6l 4 58 A5 8 152,719,000 T ° A] YREl &
B EAEELBUEARE KA ERE L2 AFE
WS AMET - BEAERITERNAUEEZ &
IMEE - TRESBEMKREBEZ ATERSEAS
—HRATEE -

—E-RF=A=+—H  KAEELHZ K
B $EE B EEGEMELETERBRGAATE
B ER AL 2E EFRAIEL 2 BUR 5%
RERLBEENGE - EEMERAA TER
HERUEE LS HLRFIDARED o RIRME
B ARAEERR/N_ZT—RF=A=+—H
EBEITRE

(d) YEZIREEINAT

2015 2014
—Z-RF —TUE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
In Hong Kong: BE:
— medium-term leases — hHIFAE 3,050 3,218
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. V%« BERSDE @)
(continued)
The Company AT
Furniture
and other
equipment Total
HFER
HihZE st
HK$’000 HK$’000
VBT T BT T
Cost RS
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014, R—ZT—=F1W"HA—H-
1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 —E-MFE=A=1+—H"
“E—NFMA—HK
—E—RF=HA=1+—H 376 376
Accumulated depreciation Z5HirE
At 1 April 2013 R=-ZE—=FmA—H 372 372
Charge for the year NEEHIBR 2 2
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R-ZE—NF=A=1+—H8XK
—ZE—NEMA—H 374 374
Charge for the year NEEHIBR 2 2
At 31 March 2015 R-E—RF=A=1+—H 376 376
Carrying amounts BRHE{E
At 31 March 2015 R-E—RF=A=+—H = =
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—mF=H=1+—H 2 2

.
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. B EE

The Group REH
Money
Sales Lending
Patent contracts  Trademark Licence Total
Ll HEERH BE  HEARR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT BT
Cost BA
At 1 April 2013, RZE-=4mA-R-
31 March 2014, 1 April 2014 “T-NE=A=+-Hk
~“Z-FNA—H 4,419 17,251 25,924 - 47,594
Acquisition of subsidiary WERBB A (7 37())
(note 37(a)) - - - 9% 9%
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RF=A=1-H 4,419 17,251 25,924 9% 47,688
Accumulated amortisation and ~ Z:FEELFESE
impairment losses 4,419 17,251 25,924 94 47,688
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014, W=_E-=%#mA-H-
1 April 2014 and 31 March “E-E=A=+-H-
2015 “F-NERNA-BR
“Z-HE=fA=1-H 4,419 17,251 25,924 - 47,59
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RF=A=1-H - - - 94 94
At 31 March 2014 R=E-m&E=A=+-H - = = = =

The Group acquired the patent for the “curved floor panels”,
outstanding sales contracts and the registered trademark
“ 31 4% ) ” through the acquisition of Originate Tech Global
Investments Limited and its subsidiaries on 2 August 2011.
These intangible assets were valued by an independent
valuer as at the date of acquisition at HK$48 million.

In previous years, the results of manufacturing and sale of
timber products incurred loss. The net loss was primarily
attributable to the rapid slow down of the property market
and falling property prices in the PRC. As a result of the
uncertainties in the PRC economy and continued depressed
timber demand and prices, the Group impaired the value of
the intangible assets related to manufacturing and sale of

timber products.

The Group acquired the money-lending licence through the
acquisition of Asset Bridge Development Limited.

As there is no change for the recoverable amount of the
intangible assets, no reversal of impairment is provided for
the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.
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RERBRIEE B R A 7 R EH B A EE [ i
BRHAR | 2 EF R - RTEKHEE D KEM
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RAUYE B BRFT (S B 275 48,000,000 T ©
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19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s property interests held to earn rentals are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

19. REYH*

AEBBEVEERARDES - GRS
BATERIGE  YOBRRARRKREY
o,

2015 2014
—EB-RfF —T—meE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PEEE T

At fair value BRAHE
At 1 April REA—H 23,699 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37(b)) WHEF B Al (M2 37(b) - 23,699
Changes in fair value NHEZE) 1,079 -
At 31 March W=A=+—H 24,778 23,699

All of the Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong
Kong and are held under medium-term leases.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further details of which are included in
Note 39(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

All of the Group’s investment properties were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group (Note 28).

a) Fair value measurement of investment
properties

)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s investment properties measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS
13 Fair Value Measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

17

AEBREREMEAMNNEE @ P HHE

B5A -

RERBYMERECEMERBTE=) - #
— B ER AR A SR FRMIEE 39(b) °

AEBREREMEACER  FAAKE
ERER 2 ER (R 28) ©

a) REWEAFEHE

i) NEEER

TRIRAEEREME 2R
FE - g EEENREE
RetE - DR=ARFESFR
(3% BB B ER5H
135N FERTE) - BEAF
BFFEDBERE - TH2RIE
B REABIEES B
BRMNEER

. £—RfhE  EFERE
— B ABUR (BIRAT
ERFABEEXEER
TR 5 2 R B R
B)FrE2RAVE

. E_HEHE EA%E—
A A BUR (B RBETRT
BE R ABREA
EEMIT TEREAT
BB ABBEL
NAE o A ERER I A
2B SEZEST S
BZBABIE) -
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

a) Fair value measurement of investment a)

properties (continued)

i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured °
using significant unobservable inputs

19. BREWHE &)
REYEAFEHE (E)

i) NFEERE)

BME  EREX
TEAREHABE &
2 ATME

Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2015 categorised into

R-B-RFZA=T-APEAUT SR

AYEHE
Fair value
at 31 March
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R=B-1F
=R=t+-AH
ZAYE -1 = E=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BB BT
Group r5E
Recurring fair value measurement ~ EEMAF(EE
Investment properties in Hong Kong BARBYE 24,778 - 24,778 -
Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2014 categorised into
RZZ-ME=A=t-H2ERUTEHZ
AYEHE
Fair value
at 31 March
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R=B-mF
=R=t+-AH
ZAYE -1 B E=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BB
Group T5E
Recurring fair value measurement &M AF(EE
Investment properties in Hong Kong EBREME - 23,699 -

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2014: nil).
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of the fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

a) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (continued)

i)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level
2 fair value measurements

All of the Group’s investment properties were
revalued as at 31 March 2015 on market
comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties
on a price per square foot basis using
market data which is publicly available. The
investment properties were revalued by Peak
Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent
professional valuer, who has a recognised and
relevant professional qualification and recent
experience in the location and category of
properties being revalued. The directors of the
Company have discussion with the surveyors
on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at
annual reporting date.

o

19. REWHE %)
a) REWENFEHE(F)

F_MAFEFEMBREER
UIPSEIPAN ¢S

AEEFMAREYEER_Z
—HF=A=+—HEmHL
BORBEHHE  ERRXEAE
bR E T T IRERELE
ZTHEE - WERARSZ™M
BEE c REYERB L FHE
HEMEETEERARIET
B2 EEFEEERURAEBRE
B WHEASHEIE R
BRIETERHEZRTE
5o NEERHRFERSEH
BRI T(HER - A RIEFH
B2 EMAERHEE R R MG ES
%o
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20.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 20. £YEE
The Group REH
2015 2014
—E-HEF —E—E
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
At beginning of the year RER] 17,538 344,172
Changes in fair value less costs to sell NEEZEDREEERA (16,197) (292,758)
Exchange movement [E 5 2 (1,341) (33,876)
At end of the year TAEEAR - 17,538

The Group’s forest assets, acquired through the business
combination of Amplewell Holdings Limited (“Amplewell”)
and its subsidiaries (“Amplewell Group”), are located in the
Northwest of Brazil, the State of Acre, Amazon Region (the
“Brazil Forest”). At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the biological
assets represent natural tropical forests. The total area of
the Brazil Forest is approximately 44,500 hectares. Under
the environmental laws in Brazil, 20% (2014: 20%) or
8,939 hectares (2014: 8,939 hectares) of the Brazil Forest
area is the permanent preservation area and therefore is
restricted from logging. At least 80% of the remaining area
is designated as the sustainable forest management area
and the balance is the permissible clear cut area that has no
restriction on felling under the environmental laws of Brazil.
In the sustainable forest management area, minimum impact
logging techniques are used and forests are managed in a
sustainable manner which means that the harvesting rate
is below the overall natural growth of the forest. The main
objective in sustainable forest management program is
to ensure the substance of the forests be preserved. The
maximum logging rate allowed under relevant regulations
governing sustainable forest management is 30 cubic
meters per hectare, an average, over a 25 to 30 year
harvesting cycle.

e e

AEEBEBEFHMREZERER AR ([H
B REMBAR (DIREEE ) 2 2/5H
BZHRMEEMRERAILEz 57 2k
SHENE ([BEAHKK]) - R-T—FHFK
—E-NE=A=+—8 £YWEEEXA
HEZRMN - BEFERFMZ BEIRL A 44,500 A
1B o IRIEERZRREARE  BAGZRMEEZ
20% (—Z—PO4 : 20%) 5k 8,939 AHE (=
T4 : 8,930 AHH) Ak ARER - HUE
I EE NI TR o SR T HE & 80%
EEEARRERMERR - REEHRR
% BB EB I ERKE S 2 KR o £
AHERAEEBENRN  SHEABKREY
LR - MARMRTYAREHE 2 A RE
B RERK L RERHRAEERARAERR
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HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

20. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 20. EYEE ©®)

On 27 March 2012, the board decided to suspend
harvesting operations in Acre for 1 year until the operating
environment for Universal Timber Resources do Brasil
Ltda. (“UTRB”), a subsidiary within the Group, is improved.
UTRB and its staff had been harassed by the alleged agent
(“Alleged Agent”) of a main contractor (“Main Contractor”) in
the tree felling service project in Rondonia. Not only was the
tree felling service project adversely affected by the Alleged
Agent, he also created a difficult and hostile environment for
UTRB and its staff in Brazil. Since the harassments began
in February 2011, the Alleged Agent harassed UTRB’s staff
and their family with death threats in numerous instances.
The Group’s employees especially in Brazil were scared and
UTRB had experienced high turnover of personnel. As such,
it was decided to suspend harvesting operations in Acre to
address the concerns of its staff.

For the year ended 2015, the Group recorded a revaluation
loss on biological assets of approximately HK$16,197,000
primarily attributable to the decrease in log prices of which
decreased with a range of 3% to 6% during the year.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group recorded
a revaluation loss on biological assets of approximately
HK$292.8 million primarily attributable to the decrease in
log prices of which decreased with a range of 17% to 32%
during the year and due to the change in operation model,
the directors of the Company considered the Group cannot
obtain the FSC certification.
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RZEBE——FE=A=-++H BEFgR
THEIREMN2KAREL —F BEE
Universal Timber Resources do Brasil Ltda.
([UTRB)) v K ERIBFEBFIHRE R LE°
UTRB Rk H & THBAZ B M 2 (R AR 7% IE
B EWEARER ([ZRBR] - NEEZH
BAR) 2 EBMAE ([HERRIE]) BE - 15
BRIBTEAKARRKIEB R -
W< UTRB M H 8 T E i ¥ 84 &
HERE e BEREBEHR=_E—F_AH
BEEE DR - IR Z IR ASE T E R E
UTRBELEBRELRA - AEBEZEE -
BRIREAZEERERE - BEUTRB 2
BIRAESE - Bt TR EMZHRARE
BREEE  URTEHEB T 2F -

BHEZZT—AFILFE  ASBEHRSEME
EZ EHEBLE 16,197,000 7T = EH
REREBETE(FRATHREENT 3% =
6% ) BTN °

HE_ZT-NF=A=+—HILFE"
AEBRBEVMEEELBEN K
292,800,000 7t * £ EHRF ARKRE IR
DORDIBEEATYS & 32% 2 B) ARE
BEAZIHMY  EETRAEAEEREISE
FSC &% o
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

20. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 20. EYEE ©®)

The forest engineer adopted the following methodology
in determining the harvestable area of the Brazil forests
in the technical report used for the 2014 valuation. This
methodology or standard (Modeflora — Digital Model of
Forest Exploration) was developed locally in Brazil by
Embrapa (Brazilian Enterprise for Agricultural Research).
Adoption is not mandatory by the state but recommended
to the forest engineer professionals.

During the valuation process, Greater China Appraisal
Limited (“GCA”) referenced to a technical report on
estimation of quality and quantity of commercial and
potentially commercial wood species and residues resulting
from the forest exploitation issued by CAAP FORESTAL
(“CAAP”). CAAP performs only once diagnostic sampling for
the whole farm area under current State regulation. 100%
census of the inventory will be performed inside each unit
of production area in order to obtain new operating license
for each unit of production area. In general, it is common
practice by forest engineers to assume there is no change
in the forest inventory as the tropical natural forestry asset is
very stable within five to ten years, so there is not necessary
to perform detailed sampling every year. Rain forest is a
long lasting asset if without human intervention (Amazon
forest is estimated to have existed for some 10 million
years). Temporary hostile climate, e.g. strong wind, heavy
rain and flooding do not change the natural habitat of the
forest. Disease and fire might affect the forestry assets,
but to the best knowledge of the Company, no known
fire and abnormal wood disease were reported during the
periods covered under the valuation. Temperature might
affect the quality/volume of the forestry asset, but in a long
term prospective (which usually over decades) instead of
affecting within a short period of time.

Notwithstanding the above, CAAP obtains satellite image
of the farms in August every year with spatial resolution of
15 m (49 ft). This is to recognize if there is any abnormal
situation (e.g. sudden large scale clearing/disappearing of
trees) in the farms. It indicated that any object or abnormality
with 15 m in size will be shown on the satellite image. CAAP
also monitors the daily updates on burns and fires in Brazil
forest area: http://www.inpe.br/queimadas/.

The Brazil Forest was independently valued by GCA, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. GCA has experience in valuing similar
forestry assets. The key consultant involved in this valuation
being a Certified Valuation Analyst of the International
Association of Consultants, Valuators and Analysts, and has
no present or prospective interest in the Group’s biological
assets and no personal interest or bias with respect to the
Group. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, GCA
is independent and competent to determine the fair value of
the Group’s biological assets. As the value of the biological
asset is determined by the ability to generate a stream of
benefits in future, GCA has adopted a discounted cash flow
methodology in valuing the Brazil Forest. The following are
the major assumptions used in the valuation:

e e

AR TR RE R ERB AT AR —
T-NE 2 HESEEARMNZ AIHREK
#i[E o 5% 7% =k % Bl] (Modeflora — Digital
Model of Forest Exploration) B Embrapa
(Brazilian Enterprise for Agricultural
Research) 7 B2 70 & th iff 2% o B 5% 7 £ 54 )
%‘?ﬂ?ﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬁif MER MR R T2 A HE

REEBRF  EETEBR AR ([EEF
{8 ]) 2% B CAAP FORESTAL ([CAAP])
PR MM mEREEmE
AMEBERARBEE RSN MTHRE -
CAAP 18 1% 35 i B 5 AR (Il (2 ph 2 (E 2 15 &0 E
E— xR E - AFERESEEMHEE
HEERR - HRERSEEMANEMEF
BETHAAT . — B s ARAETF
ARNBERABRMEEREEBTE  FMIE
A iEeBRRAMTEMEES  WHAS
FEHFAMERE  c ETZAAETENG
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MEBHN-—TEFESL) - BRETHRRE
eE R~ BRSNS B RN 8 RE
BE o IR N KB ERMEE A
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Br ESCFRifiE SN + CAAP REF N\ AES 2
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NERESEREEMEEBER (WEAZE
RRBBRBEER,EK) - HEBGEERT
Al RNAR 15 REYIEE S E B Y58 - CAAP 71
H A http://www.inpe.br/queimadas/ &5
REOFARNERE DB TER B A N -

EAFRMREREET BEEZ B LAER
EXGEMEEMEE LG  EEFER
RRHEBEURMEE < &5 - 2EEREE
ZEE2ERSBEEER - SHEE R DT
SR A CXEENMEOME - RAKEZ
EMEELEIBB AR ELS - IMES KA
SEZEANGERRE - NRAREEFRAS
EEVERBLEARENBEEARELYE
EZNAYE - aRETEYEEBER - b
BFERNARREEN SRR 2B S) - EEF
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20.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

o a logging volume of 21.5 m® (2014: 21.5 m®) per
hectare in the sustainable forest management
program area.

o a post tax discount rate of 17.26% (2014: 17.4%)
based on the data and factors relevant to the
economy of Brazil, the industry of forest business
and the harvestable resources in the Brazil Forest,
and the weighted average cost of capital.

° harvesting activities for the first 30-year cycle will
resume from the calendar year of 2016 and complete
in 8 years (2014: 7 years). Revenue or costs from
subsequent harvesting cycle are not taken into
account.

° average logs price growth at a rate of 3% per annum
(2014: 3% per annum) in the next 8 years (2014: 7
years) which is the expected long term growth rate
estimated by reference to the Consumer Price Index
in USA.

o the cost of revenue mainly includes forest planning
and management, staffing costs, felling and skidding
costs, loading and transportation costs, tallying and
pointing costs, harvesting overhead costs, issue
of forest origin document costs, annual operating
license fees and cost of harvesting residues. The
cost of revenue is assumed to increase in-line with
the long term growth rate of 3%, which is based on
the long term inflation rate. The market price is based
on the market quotations of log sale prices provided
by the management.

° Forest Stewardship Council (the “FSC”) certification
demonstrates fulfillment of social and ecological
criteria, while increasing the prices achievable for
timber products. As the directors changed the
operation model, the Group will not obtain the FSC
certification in 2014 and 2015, and the Group cannot
enjoy a price premium of 15%. Therefore, the fair
value of the biological assets decreased in 2014 and
2015.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the harvesting operation
in Acre, Brazil remained suspended. As the business
environment continued to be difficult for the Group in Brazil,
the board of directors changed the operation model in Acre
from own harvesting to leasing out the forest in Brazil so
as to enhance the income stream of the Group in 2014 and
2015.
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20. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 20. EYEE ©®)
Fair value hierarchy AEEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRAPAREFBEMEEZ AL EAEER
hierarchy of the Group’s biological assets:
Fair value measurement using
EATSBE 2 AT ETE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EAUEE  EXFAEE
ERTHSEE BARE BARE
(E-R) (=R (E=4) Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BB AETT
As at 31 March 2015 R-Z-1%
ZB=1-H
Recurring fair value measurement for: Biological EEEATENE: &
assets nEE = = = =
As at 31 March 2014 R=%2 ﬁ
E E —H
Recurring fair value measurement for Biological AN
assets MmEE - - 17,538 17,538
During the year ended 31 March 2014 and 2015, there were REBE_Z—NFR-ZE-—AF=A=+—
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers B iEE F FAREE R BN EERE

into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfer between levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of
the reporting period in which they occur.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorized within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

NEE=FEAREL - AEEZBERER
DHESH 2 FBELEER 2 RS PRER

FREERS o
DERR

FESFRE=R2 N HEFELK:

Group
FEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —TEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T BT
Net carrying amount at 1 April AN A—RBZEEFE 17,538 344172
Exchange movement Eﬁﬁ (1,341) (33,876)
Changes in fair value less costs to sell N EEER L SR (16,197) (292,758)
Net carrying amount at 31 March = A=t—BZERmF
(=l - 17,538
Fair value change relating to assets held at RERBREEEEELA
the end of period FEEH 16,197 292,758

124




KERMEZRERAT TN —FT-HFFH
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

20. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 20. EYEE ©®)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AVEER (8)

Exchange movement of biological assets is recognized EYBEECEREHREMZERARNZ

in other comprehensive income in “exchange fluctuation [ [ X R BN | FER o

reserve”.

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is REMRASREE A FELFABRRA

estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and AN B EBREE CSmETT

liabilities of ownership over the asset’s life. This method Er e R RSN EERG BERE

involves the projection of a series of cash flows on an asset B 2B o MIBHITA  BIRERERNTEA

interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the HommE  DERYEEESR 2 WARR

projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of ZI{E

the income stream associated with the asset.

The directors of the Company have discussion with the REFHE B jﬂ&fﬁﬁﬁ ARAIEED

valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results B ER B A RE R EAREITER ©

when the valuation is performed at annual reporting date.

The Group is exposed to a number of risks related to its A5 B 8 2 TR R AZRAAE 2 @ o

natural forest.

() Regulatory and environmental risks (i) EERRERR
The Group is subject to laws and regulations in Brazil AEBEZHEXBHREEAGI LB
in which it operates. The Group has established BIFRRE - AE BB IR REER K2
environmental policies and procedures aimed at FFr BEETEWIREREEME
compliance with local environmental and other laws. 1) o B IR EFE METTIRGT - ARETEIR
Management performs regular reviews to identify SRk RERRITHERAEEGH
environmental risks and to ensure that the systems B R_T-_RAFR_T—NF=
in place are adequate to manage those risks. A=1T—H =1 T ABEMRR
The Directors are not aware of any environmental HE -
liabilities as at 31 March 2015 and 2014.

(ii) Supply and demand risk (i) HERERE
The Group is exposed to risks arising from AEBEERNEBNHEERDE
fluctuations in the price and sales volume of logs. £ 2R - FRRERI N - REER
When possible the Group manages this risk by IR 0 HLAR 1K 2 DA B R )b TR R
controlling its harvest volume, according to market @ o EIRETF HETITEBE M
conditions. Management performs regular industry IAREGRZN £ (B 7F B BUR B T 35 7K F
trend analysis to ensure the Group’s pricing policy NIEstI ik S ETBHITSK—5 o

is comparable to the market and the projected
harvesting volumes are consistent with the expected
demand.
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21.

GOODWILL 21. &
The Group REH
Sustainable  Manufacturing
forest and sale of
management timber products Total
(Note j) (Note i)
UHERN BER .
EEEE  BEAHER it
g (Wisti)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
Cost KA
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 N_E-—=#mA-A =%
—NE=A=+-Hk
“T-RE=R=1-H 1,686,883 77,353 1,764,236
Accumulated impairment 2:TRE
At 1 April 2013 W-E—=FNA—H 1,384,765 77,353 1,462,118
Impairment losses recognised during the year 2014 R NERNERRHESE 302,118 = 302,118
At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 W=E-ME=A=t—-Hk=
T-R1F=A=+-A 1,686,883 77,353 1,764,236
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RF=A=1-H - - -
At 31 March 2014 R=E-mFE=A=1+-H - - -
Notes: izt -
(i) Sustainable forest management (i) AHEZNEER

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of the sustainable forest
management cash generating unit in the prior years represented its
expected future profitability.

As at 31 March 2014, goodwill relating to sustainable forest
management segment had been fully impaired as detailed below.

e

BEFERBBASERMEEXBRELEZR
BREEEBIEREMAIRRBRRES

R-Z—MFE=A=+—H  BRFERNERE
ZEEDREBERE - FIFWT ©
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21.

GOODWILL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

@

(i)

Sustainable forest management (continued)
Recoverability assessment at 31 March 2014

On 27 March 2012, the board of directors of the Company decided
to suspend harvesting operations in Acre, Brazil until the operating
environment for its Brazilian subsidiary improves. Up to the date of
approval of financial statements, the harvesting operation in Acre,
Brazil remained suspended. As the business environment continued
to be difficult for the Group in Brazil, the board of directors changed
the operation model in Acre from own harvesting to leasing out
of the forest in Brazil so as to enhance the income stream of the
Group.

No lease relating to the Group’s forest in Brazil had been entered
into by the Group. The directors of the Company considered the
economic value of the future income stream from leasing out
the Group’s forest cannot be reasonably assessed at the date of
approval of financial statements 2014. The Group had to preclude
the economic value of the future income stream from leasing out of
the Group’s forest from measurement of the fair value of the CGU
for prudence.

The Group engaged an independent professional valuer to perform
the valuation for the fair value of the CGU. The original business
plan regarding the operation was assumed to be changed. The
valuer cannot validate the feasibility of leasing business. There was
no reliable projection for the business and income approach of the
valuation methodology of the business value cannot be used.

In assessing the valuation of the CGU, the valuer adopted the asset
approach, which was breaking the CGU into pieces, i.e. the freehold
land (included the naked land, pastures and betterments) and the
biological assets, so the business value was the sum of them. The
valuer adopted the market approach for the freehold land and
adopted the income approach based on the projection developed
based on the market participant’s point of view for the biological
assets.

The fair value less cost of disposal of the CGU valuation was
approximately HK$169,076,000 included the fair value of the
biological assets and the fair value of freehold land at 31 March
2014. During the year ended 31 March 2014, an impairment loss of
goodwill of approximately HK$302,118,000 had been recognized in
the profit or loss and the goodwill had been fully impaired. The fair
value on which the recoverable amount based on was categorised
as a Level 3 fair value measurement.

Manufacturing and sale of timber products

The goodwill of approximately HK$77,353,000 arising from the
acquisition of Originate Tech Global Investments Limited and its
subsidiaries represented the future economic benefits from the
synergy effect of the business combination.

The entire value of manufacturing and sale of timber products as a
cash generating unit was considered impaired as of 31 March 2012,
and an impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$77 million
was recorded.
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Kt - (48)

iy

M THERKEE ()
R=T—mE= A= B2 AREEE

RZT——F=A=++tH AAAEZSRE
YieOrmsr BN 2EAEBTEEDARBA
A2 REBIRNE - HEMTSMREM AR
REAEEREM 2 RAREBDALE - AR ASE
ERERE EEBIRFERE - I EEREE
EABEAE - EFFHERIER BN 2 EER
X B BRARBRA L ED AN - BARES
B AR

AEEBET Y ARAASEEARMIEE - A
RAEERS  R_T—MFERBRREMER
Hii R BE B I AT I A A SR AR 2 AR HURAZR
RZEEEE - REEREER - AKRERFERS
EEEN 2 AFER - AR EAAKERMNZ
RIBAKIRZ EBERE -

AEEEREB Y X GEMGERSELSN
ZRFE - BRNEEZ REEBERBRERAE
WE - HERMAERERAEEB AT - %%
AW MAETTR TR - AR ERRAEERZ
EBEEZGEE -

NEHER S EEEN 2 HE @ HEMRREE
% SR EEESEMD RTRKD @ BIKAX
R (BIFZEN B RIEEN) REVEE -
MEBEERRE M - (h{EMLKAEEL
HERETISA © A RSLENEERBURNL - 2
EMR2REZRE  RECEROEIEDL

R-ZZT—ME=A=+—8 BeELEMNMHE
ZATHERH SR AL A 169,076,000 T -
BIEEMEEZ AFERKAEE LI Z AF
B-BE-T-NMF-A=1+—HILFE ' &8
#) A7 % 302,118,000 7T 2 BB RERBEERE
HHRER - MEABE2EELRME - kB S8
ki 2 A FERDERE =B A FEFE -

(ii) RERHEEANER
WHERIFHRIRREBR AR R A B A RELR

B 478 % 77,353,000 TR KR FEE A OFETHE 2R 15
B R 2 AR SRS Fll 2

RZT——F=A=+—8  FARSELEN
2B RS AME MR 2 EMEEREARE
T 2RSS R E E5 18 4978 % 77,000,000 JT °




SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

22.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

22. B THER

The Company

¥ /N

2015 2014

—E-RF —FlF

HKS$’000 HK$’000

BT T BETIL

Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR D - HA A =* =
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURIT B A TR 2,700,659 2,586,863
2,700,659 2,586,863
Less: Impairment losses B REEE (2,582,067) (2,566,967)

118,592 19,896

Total investment cost are HK$33 (2014: HK$18).

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free and had no fixed repayment terms.
In the opinion of the Company’s directors, these
advances are considered as quasi-equity loans
to the subsidiaries and will not be demanded for
repayment.

The movement in the allowance for impairment
losses during the year was as follows:

N 2

RITEKARBY 33 T (ZF—4F : B 18
JT) °

PR B A R IB A EEA - RE KR
BETERHY  ARAEFRRR &
FRRIR BAME R RRE 2 £
BER AR TERER -

FRREBEREIEZBHHIIMT
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22. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 22. B ATIREL &
2015 2014
—E-E1F —EpusE
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT
Balance brought forward R4S ER 2,566,967 1,978,771
Impairment loss recognised ERERB(ERE 41,644 588,196
Derecognised-disposal of subsidiary HUHER - HEMRAR (26,544) -
Balance carried forward P E RS 2,582,067 2,566,967

For the year ended 31 March 2015, as a result of
change in operation model and decline in market
prices of timber, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that an impairment losses of approximately
HK$41,644,000 (2014: HK$588,196,000) was made.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
disposed of SFH Trading Limited and interest in the
subsidiary of HK$26,544,000 was derecognised.
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22. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. HMiE AT
(c) Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (© MIEBARIZEBENT :

Place of

incorporation/ Particulars of

registrationand  Form of issued and Proportion of Principal
Name business legal entity paid up capital ownership interest activities
£ R/ R EERRZY ERTR o IEER

B A BRRAFE Eefil

Group's Held

effective bythe Heldbya
interest  Company subsidiary
r5E —ENE
ERER  ALFRE Gt

Amano Holdings Limited ~ Cyprus Limited 1,000 ordinary shares 100% = 100%  Inactive
(Note (i) EHRE liability of Eurof each Tmex
(B ) company 1,000 B3R

ARAT BIREE 18T

Amplewell Holdings British Virgin Islands  Limited 1 ordinary share of 100% - 100%  Investment
Limited EBRAHS liabilty US$1 each holding

MEARER AR company 1REER RAZR

ARAT BREGE1ET

Anex International Hong Kong Limited 1 ordinary share 100% 100% = Human resources
Management Limited ~ &7% liabilty 1REER management

ZETERERERRAA company ANERER

ARAF
Great Path Limited British Virgin Islands  Limited 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% - Investment
BRARAR HBRIAHE liability USS1 each holding
company 1RLER RAZER
BRAR BREG 1%
New On Creation Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited 10,000 ordinary 100% = 100%  Investment
MRERERAR] &b liability shares holding
company 10,000 @ik REMHR
ARAT

Originate Tech Global British Virgin Islands  Limited 1 ordinary share of 100% = 100%  Investment
Investments Limted ~ XERELHE liability USS1 each holding

BRI E AR AR company 1 RELER REER

ARAT BREE 1%L
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22. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 22. WEBA TR ®

(© Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (© B AREBIT : (8)
(continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
registrationand  Form of issued and Proportion of Principal
Name business legal entity paid up capital ownership interest activities
£ AL/ 2R EEREZ ERR Beks IEXH
EXHY Fis BRRAFHE ]
Group's
effective Heldbythe Heldbya
interest  Company  subsidiary
r5E —HE
ERERE A0AKE  QERA
Susfor-Oasis Timber China Wholly- Paid up registered 100% = 100%  Timber and wood
(Zhongshan) Co. Ltd* foreign capital of products
tlmAGRITA AR owned RMB5,091,000 trading
BRAR enterprise BATHRER R RAHER
SNERER  ARE5001,0007 BE
S
Universal Timber Brazil Limited R$12,646,996 100% = 100%  Sustainable
Resources do Brasil Ef liabilty 12,646,996 =5 management
Ltda, company of and
("UTRB") BRAF investment
(TuTRBJ) in natural
forests, timber
and wood
processing,
timber
trading and
timber sales,
marketing and
tree felling
services
RARARA
BERIRE
KB RARH
I AHE
B AHHE
R
RtiARs
Applause Global Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Limited 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% = Investment
ABRIAS liability US$1 each holding
company 1 BREER RERR
ERAT SHEE1ZET
Good Magic Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Limited 1 ordinary share of 100% - 100%  Investment
EBRIHE liability US$1 each holding
company 1RERR REMR
ARAR] BRAEE1ET
View Concord Holdings ~ Hong Kong Limited 1 ordinary share 100% 100% - Investment
Limited &b liabilty 1REER holding
SEEFARAT company RABR
ARAT]
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22.
©

Note:

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

22. BN AR )

(© URJZEIN

Ejgill‘%zzu—lt 5 (,?f‘é“\)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
registrationand  Form of issued and Proportion of Principal
Name business legal entity paid up capital ownership interest activities
£ R/ 2Rk EERRZ EBIR Beks IBER
ESH Fs BRRAHE 7]
Group's
effective Heldbythe Heldbya
interest  Company subsidiary
A28 L
BRER A0FKE  DRERA
Elite Sign Investments Hong Kong Limited 1 ordinary share 100% - 100%  Investment
Limited &% liabilty 1k &Rk holding
BRREARAA com%any RAER
(ihar%p Egountry Limited %ol%g Kong Limited 10,000 ordinary 100% - 100%  Leasing of
Bx ) liability shares properties
com%any 10,000 fr ik NEHE
Bluestone Investment %o%g Kong Limited 10,000 ordinary 100% - 100%  Leasing of
Limited ) liabilty shares roperties
ERREERAA company 10,000 B WJ% g
BRAR
Travel Inn Limited Hong Kong Limited 500,000 ord|nary 95% - 95%  Travel and
RERERAT Bk liability 000 Hx Hx Lravel related
com any 5 L Usiness
7% ERE D
Ej
Asset Bridge Hong Kong Limited 1 ordinary share 100% = 100%  Money lending
Development Limted &% liability 1 BRE R business
BHERARAR com%any EEH
Metro Charm Holaings British Virgin Islands ~ Limited T ordinary share of 100% - 100%  Investment
Limited RBRAHS liabilty USS$1 each holding
BLEEARAT com%any . % %i%@ AR
yEIEREI
Righteous Arena Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Limited 1 ordinary share of 100% = 100%  Dormant
%E@ﬁﬁ%% liability l#sﬂgt e%ﬁg BLEEY
company Ll
ARAH SRAE1%T
The English translation of Chinese name is for identification purpose * P ABZ EXEEERERN AR
only.
Bt -

The subsidiary is applying for deregistration.
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1
23. INVENTORIES 23. &
2015 2014
—g-nF T NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Hist BT T VST T
Sawn timber SEA @ 489 1,308
Finished goods BIRK R (b) 317 2,433
806 3,741
Notes. Kt
(@) The sawn timber was purchased for trading purpose. (@) EMDHEBERSEMBA ©
(0) These inventories were held for further processing or sale. (b) ZEFERBIBE—FINTIHHERR °
©) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense () ERRSAXZFELEANNT -
is as follows:
2015 2014
—B-EHF Tl
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT
Write down of inventories (Note (i) WORTTE (A7:% () 1,047 6,153
Reversal of write down of inventories (Note (i) BERRTES (M2 (i) (1,105) (29,086)
(58) (22,933)
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEFEREE 2,860 49,453
0] During the year ended 31 March 2015, obsolete and slow- 0} BE-ZT-—hG=A=1+—HILFE -
moving inventories approximately HK$1,047,000 (2014: BRI BR M E LS % 1,047,000 7t (=
HK$6,153,000) were identified and written down to their T U4 : ¥ 6,153,000 7T) ZPREE
net realisable value. RAHTFE - SWHUR = A A &1 3E -
(ii) The reversal of write down of inventories made in prior (ii) PN A ER R S 68 2 A 2 AT BB 3
years arose due to an increase in the net realisable value hn e BB FEEL 2 FERBE
as a result of the sales occurred during the year. #m o
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24. LOAN RECEIVABLES 24. EWWER
The Group
REE
2015 2014
—T-HF —T P
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Loans to customers EWEFER 92,800 -
Accrued interest receivables FERTAILE I RIE 812 -
93,612 —
Less: impairment loss recognised B BRI EEE - -
93,612 -

All loans are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The loan
receivables carry effective interests ranging approximately
from 6.65% to 11% per annum (2014: Nil). A maturity profile
of the loans receivables (net of impairment loss recognised,
if any) at 31 March 2015 and 2014, based on the maturity
date is as follow:

FIEEREHRBEE - BREZTIREEF
RetB o FARIBEELHG6.65EFEE11E (=
TJOF: |) A-EBE—FHER_Z—N
FZA=+—H EREEZZFHAEL TR
BT RER:

2015 2014
—E2-EHF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETIT
Current assets TEE)EE

Within one year —FNR 93,612 -

Non-current assets FEREEE
Over one year but within two year BB —FERRER - =
93,612 -

At 31 March 2015, the loans together with the accrued
interest are secured by personal/corporate guarantees, and/
or the pledge of customers’ properties.

., 14

R-ZZE-—RAF=A=+—H EXREF
BIBMARRER - AR HEPYE
A -
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24.
(a)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom
there was no recent history of default. Receivables
that were past due but not impaired relate to an
independent customer with the pledge of customer’s
property. Management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
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LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 24. EWEF®
Loan receivables that are not impaired (a) KREERBEZEVRER
The aging analysis of loan receivables that are FEUWE TR 7 BR#E o AT BE 4 (& B U 4 £
neither individually nor collectively considered to be EEEHRELT:
impaired are as follows:
2015 2014
—E-FF —Ju4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT AETI
Neither past due nor impaired s iR (B 83,375 -
Past due but not impaired BERYERE
Less than 1 month past due BEOR—EA - =
1 to 3 months past due BE—EAZ=EA 10,237 -
Over 3 months past due BB R=EA - -
10,237 -
93,612 -

3 48 360 5 7T B RE 2 FE MR IR TS B
BELMENCERZ A ARBELERE
7 - DB BB MR (E 2 IGRIR R
—BBIUEFPER LURFZME

ERER AN EEERLEEAE
2 Ei%#éﬁﬁ%%%&ﬁﬁTMi%ﬂ&
| WEBREREH
HRER S o

AL SRR E
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25. EWEZREAREEWRE

The Group The Company
F5E AT
2015 2014 2015 2014

—F-1Ff —TNF —-F-IFfF T 0F

HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000
BETT  ABTT  BETR BB

Trade receivables B 55/ TE

Other receivables (Note j) Fofth EMRIE (Mt )
Prepayments and deposits BNFERES
Note:

(i) The other receivables as at 31 March 2015 mainly represented
the money advance to independent third parties. The amounts
were unsecured, interest free and repayment on demand. Other
receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to other
debtors for whom there was no recent history of default. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered within one year.

(a) Trade receivables

The aging analysis of the trade receivables as of
the reporting date, based on invoice date, which

3,001 22,547 - =
21,828 16,139 - =
827 654 751 456
25,656 39,340 751 456
Bt -

(i) RE=F—AF=A=+—HAZEMEKFEEE
TBENRBNE =AM 2HE - ZESERE
R - Tt EWEIRERKEE - WES IR
B2 H UG R ERABRE - I E
EAIELIE L 8% - AEEWER AL SLEHIETR
AR ©

P A FE W B 2 70 T8 I L A MR TR TR A —
FrlgmE -

(@ EHREZNKE
REHRAH  REZAH (WAZRE
Wes R B ) 5t B 2 BUE 558

approximates the respective revenue recognition BN
dates was as follows:

2015 2014
—E-HF —T U
HK$’000 HK$000
BETT AT
0 to 30 days 0=30H 11 19,235
31 to 60 days 31E60H 27 141
61 to 90 days 6190 H 10 58
Over 90 days 90 HIA k£ 2,953 3,113
3,001 22,547

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit and letters of credit, except for
new customers where payment in advance and
cash on delivery are normally required. Invoices are
normally payable between 30 and 180 days after
issuance. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management.
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B EP—MRAENZERER S
BN REBAZ SR TREPEE
HRAERERS - BE—RARE
H%& 302180 HRX it - BHEF
HRERSEERE - AEEHRKE
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EEEEIEETEIR  ARREEE
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. FEULE 5 E0E R 4 e EIE (5)
(continued)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) EWESFEBEZEE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables BERAEWE 5318 7 B EEE Ty ER
are recorded using an allowance account unless AR ECEE - M ANE B R AW B
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is Be RN BREEES 5ER
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written FEUNE B 2R TERISY o
off against trade receivables directly.
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (c) YEHEZEWEZMRE
The aging analysis of trade receivables that are S EE AR A IR (E Bl sk 2 AL (B 2 B
neither individually nor collectively considered to be WE SHIB R STTT -
impaired are as follows:
2015 2014
—B-AF —TE
HK$°000 HK$’000
AT T
Neither past due nor impaired I fEsE HR TR AR (B 11 19,235
Past due but not impaired BHAEARRE
Less than 1 month past due B ER DR —1E A 27 141
1 to 3 months past due #BE—Z=={EH 10 58
Over 3 months past due BEA={E A 2,053 3,113
2,990 3,312
3,001 22,547

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default. Receivables that
were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group for whom there was no
recent history of default. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.
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3 J2 380 B IR R (B 2 UK IR TS R
ENHENCRZ TRARLRFA
7 - EEHMEY BIRE 2 EUKIA R
ZRBURFERM  RERAEEE
RAF R - IR E R
8% o RIBAELR  ARNEEERY
BEAEY  ZFERINDTR S
2HWE - REEBHREBARZF
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26.

RERBEESEEY
The Group The Company
A%H AR
2015 2014 2015 2014

—F-If “TMF —F-1F —TQIF
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
BETT  BBTT  BNTR BB

Cash at bank and on hand, and cash and cash RITRFERE ARG
equivalents in the statement of financial BWRRZ B MRS
position ZEY

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated RireRenER s Re

statement of cash flows BeEEY
Cash and bank balances denominated in IAARKF|E 2R Rk
Renminbi 175584

Renminbi is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
Renminbi for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

The interest rates on the cash at bank and deposits
with banks ranged from 0.01% to 3.5% (2014: 0.01%
to 1.66%) per annum.

., 138

50,141 8,965 46,156 7,122
50,141 8,965
11 236

ARBAAIERABREMER - R
i - AR AR A B KR 2 SN B I R A7 LA
RAEE  EEMMIEEERE A%
BB BRI TINE 75 2 IR
TRARBLBESEMEE

RITHEESRBITERZEMNENT
0.01 EZE 35 FE (—Z— P44 : 0.01
EZE1.66E) o
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES EAESFTEREMENATIE

The Group The Company

piN:E | RAT
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-hf —ZTF ZT-HF —TNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Wiz BT BT BT BT
Trade payables FERB 508 @ 31,342 56,910 - -

Other payables and accruals ot P 2R0E e st

=i

Financial liabilities measured at amortised RESER AN E 2
costs BafE

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
repaid or recognised as income within one year or had no
fixed terms of repayment.

(a) Trade payables

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on invoice
date, was as follows:

18,238 25,866 3,600 4,561

49,580 82,776 3,600 4,561

P RN B 2 5008 K ELA e SRR TR B S 0
—EWE%Z}ZEEM\%H&)\ X R [E R
(a) ENESZNE

F#&iﬁﬁﬂi REZAHFEZALE
B E SR ZRE DT

2015 2014
=F-IF —TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
0 to 30 days 0E30H 290 17,402
31 to 60 days 31 E60H 8 10
61 to 90 days 61290 H - 4
Over 90 days (Note (j)) 90 HEAE (B9 () 31,044 39,494
31,342 56,910

Note: Hiat -

(i) Trade payables also included approximately R$10 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$25 million at 31 March
2015 and approximately HK$36 million at 31 March
2014). This sum represented service fees payable to a
subcontractor for a tree felling service project in Rondonia,
Brazil. UTRB had disputes with the subcontractor and it
abandoned the site. No further work was subcontracted
to them after the year ended 31 March 2011 as UTRB
was not assigned any area for clearing by the hydropower
plant of this project in the financial years ended 31 March
2014 and 2015, and no amount was paid by UTRB either.
UTRB is not aware of any claims or lawsuits filed by the
subcontractor at the relevant courts.
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(i) & E 5 IBINEEX) 10,000,000 &
TR (EER=Z—RF=A=+—H
Z #)78% 25,000,000 ST R —ZF—M
F=H=1—Hz# 7% 36,000,000
TL) - BESBEERVRERRZES
MZ AR EE BADEEZ RS
B -UTRBHESBEELEFH W KE
WEZ S - AR UTRBREZE=Z
—MOER=—T-—AF=A=+— Elﬂ:ﬁﬁ
BEFEARZIBE ZKNEE ﬁ%%
R ZFEIE  HREBZE
f*¢5ﬂ5+75¢¢§1§$ﬂww&
EH—BHBIE" ﬁ'ﬁUTRBJT]Iﬁ
S HEAIFIA ° UTRB St AB B 5
ﬁ?*ﬁfﬁ/ﬁf}iﬁZEﬁ$?iuﬁﬁﬁ o
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28. LOANS AND BORROWINGS 28. EIREE
The Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZTEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Wiz BT T BT
Secured interest-bearing loan BEEABER @ - 4,046
Secured bank loans BIEMRITER (b) 12,815 13,237
Unsecured interest bearing loan from an KEBIE=HZ
independent third party ERST R ER © 11,419 11,021
24,234 28,304
The analysis of the carrying amount of loans and borrowings EEBSETERERESITOT -
is as follows:
The Group
AEH
2015 2014
—E-RF —FlF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT PEEETIT
Current liabilities mEAE
Portion of secured interest-bearing loan from BB E=H 2
an independent third party BHEMTEEFHH - 4,046
Portion of term loans from banks due for AR —FNERE 2 RIT
repayment within 1 year BHEFED 428 420
Portion of term loans from banks due for AR —FRIEIE 2 IRTT
repayment after 1 year which contain a EHEZE D (%
repayment on demand clause REREBIER) 4,855 844
5,283 5,310
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Secured bank loans BEPRITER 7,532 11,973
Unsecured interest bearing loan from an REBILE=F2
independent third party AT B B 11,419 11,021
18,951 22,994
Total wEt 24,234 28,304
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dates as stipulated in the respective loan agreements

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants. If the Group were in breach of the covenants, the
drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, certain of the Group’s bank loan agreements
contain clauses which give the lender the right at its sole
discretion to demand immediate repayment at any time
irrespective of whether the Group has complied with the
covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.
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28. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued) 28. EFREE®
At 31 March 2015, loans and borrowings were due for N-E—FREFE=A=+—H EXREEE
repayment as follows: =LA HEEEE
The Group
rEH
2015 2014
—B-AfF —TmE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T VBT T
Secured bank loans BHIPRITER
Portion of term loans from banks due for ER—FANEEZBH
repayment within 1 year RITEREBD 429 420
Term loans from banks due for repayment AR —FREEZEH
after 1 year IRITER
After 1 year but within 2 years FRIEMFA 437 429
After 2 years but within 5 years MFZRBRFAN 1,361 1,487
More than 5 years BB A S 10,588 10,901
12,386 12,817
12,815 13,237
Other borrowings Hﬂﬂfﬁ"“
Portion of borrowings due for repayment AR—FANEEREZ
within 1 year BEIS - 4,046
Borrowings due for repayment after 1 year ER—FRERZEE - -
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFA 11,419 =
After 2 years but within 5 years MEFRIERFA - 11,021
11,419 15,067
24,234 28,304
The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment ZREIRIEREE R A E 2 TEEER

HHAZIHEE -

ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁi*ﬁf’ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ (DN
ERZE  CHRANEERARERER
S - ZK%IEI’J S TRITER MR B S
FEAETED B TR AR ERTAEER

FNHAET”HHF
Ml 5% o

wAKERLE TR METRENEE
%) e
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28. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, is up to date with the scheduled repayments of
the term loans and does not consider it is probable that the
bank will exercise its discretion to demand repayment so
long as the Group continues to meet these requirements.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk
are set out in Note 38(b). As at 31 March 2015 none of
the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached (2014: Nil).

All of the secured bank loans, loans and borrowings
including amounts repayable on demand, and unsecured
interest bearing loan from an independent third party are
carried at amortised cost.

None of the portion of bank loans due for repayment after
one year which contain a repayment on demand clause
and that is classified as a current liability is expected to be
settled within one year.

(@) At 31 March 2013, the interest-bearing loan was
secured by share charge in favour of the lender over
the entire issued share capital of a wholly owned
subsidiary, Acenergy Limited. The Group may
borrow up to HK$50 million within a 12-month period
commencing the date of the loan agreement. Interest
rate is 18% per annum and maturity in one lump sum
18 months after the first draw down under the loan
agreement. Notwithstanding the above, the Group
may prepay any loan amount outstanding after 12
months from the first draw down without penalties.
The principal of the interest-bearing loan was fully
repaid on 8 May 2013. The outstanding amount
represented the accrued interest as at 31 March
2014. During the year 2015, the Group obtained the
waiver of interest from the borrower, and recognised
as other income.

(b) The Group’s bank borrowings were secured by
mortgage over the Group’s property of approximately
HK$3,050,000 (2014: HK$3,218,000) (Note 17)
and investment properties of approximately
HK$24,778,000 (Note 19) in Hong Kong (2014:
HK$23,699,000).

(©) The interest expenses charged on unsecured interest
bearing loan from third party was calculated at 3%
per annum. The outstanding balances is repayable
on 15 January 2017.

N 2

28. EXREE®

AEBEEHERECTBTRERH - MFR
BENHREEEHMER  URSEAKE
FEETZERENBR TRITTIAR 1T
FEETRZREE AKEEERPESR
BREVEFIEE N MIEE 38(b) - R=TE—HF=A
=t—B AREYEEREEPAEER
mEH (ZF—0F &) -

PIERERRITER  EXREBE (BREA
WMBREE 2 HRR) MBI =07 BT
BERTIRE AN ©

BHAR —FREBEZRITERIED (R
RERBEEGREDERRBAE) BT
R—FAE

I8 anf

@ R-ZE—=F=A=+—8":t8&
B3k Th A 2 & [t B 2 7 Acenergy
Limited 2 2B ZE/TRAE AR D
KB TFERA - REEHBER
Wz HERET =@ A B AERRZ
751 50,000,000 7T ° FFIE & 18 [E -
B BEE R e X RERE N\ E
A—2 B3 HEXR - SERAME
AEBEEHXRAETTZ@A%
FEMEA M AR EEE R M B AT E
B ftBERZAER_ZFT—=FH
ANBEBEEE - MABESEIEC
T—NE=A=1+—HZEFFE -
RZZE—AF  AEEEREBERAR
BFEE#HE  WHERAEMUA -

b) AEBZETEEEBERAEER
E B BELHA 3,050,000 T2 W3
—Z—PU4F : ¥ 3,218,000 JT)
(Mt 17) R{B{EX)E K 24,778,000
TEZREE (M 19) ERE (=
T[4 B 23,699,000 7T) °

(© REFE=F 2 EEETEEFRUELZ
MERZRFNEIEFTE - K&
BESENR_Z—+tF—A+RAE
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29.

30.

SEASONALITY OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s forest operations in Brazil is located in the
Amazon and is subject to weather conditions during the
rainy season ranging roughly from December to April each
year. Forest logging activities in the Amazon are substantially
scaled down or stopped completely in some areas. Log
prices usually increase during the rainy season due to
diminished supplies. This affects many sawmill operators
that have to stock up logs and tie up significant working
capital, but benefit forest owners who can plan ahead to
reserve stock pile prior to the start of the rainy season. The
Group incorporates this seasonality in its forest management
plan to avoid supply shortage as well as to take advantage
of seasonal price differentials in logs.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

Current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents:

29.

B2 FHMHERE

AEBEREAIMERHBURESE  1XF
FRRRMAFARSE - MRE-—RBEF
T-AZEMNA - SHEBERMREEBRIEKR
R IRETHREREIE - RAER
—MRRRMELT - Thla MR DR - it
TEZEREAMLER  TREEENAR
ERARREAELEES BB
BMEB A TR R - KEAFEIREEFR
HEAREE - ARERILFHERFEMA
HRME TS - B RHEER - WAIXE
RREARFEIEERE

REPBRR KR Z G

(a) SEMBRRRZADBBEARK :

2015 2014
—E-AF —ZTuE
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T AR T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for REZERFIGH
the year Bt 53 -
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ AFEpHBDZ
for the year FriStifE - 1,359
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating BAEFENETEE
to prior years LR 2,158 799
Exchange adjustment bE R 9 =
2,220 2,158
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30. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 30. mEMBMRRZAEH @)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 8 ’ ¥
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (b) CEIAELEHEARE:
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised NGRS MBI AR IER ZIELERIBES
in the consolidated statement of financial position EZ4BAE S R EFEREBHMT -

and the movement during the year is as follows:

Consolidated statement of
financial position

RERBEMRRE
Property,
plant and Biological
equipment assets Total
58] EYEE #st
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT BT
At 1 April 2013 R=ZE—=%FMA—H 62,157 81,139 143,296
Acquisition of subsidiaries e N)=YNG 21 - 21
Credit to profit or loss T AER 1 (73,187) (73,188)
Exchange movement b i 2 (6,572) (7,952) (14,524)
RZZE—MF=A
At 31 March 2014 =t+—H 55,605 - 55,605
At 1 April 2014 M-E—mEmA—A 55,605 = 55,605
Charge to profit or loss HkriEs 31 - 31
Exchange movement [ i 5 (17,004) - (17,004)
RZZE—AF=A
At 31 March 2015 =t+—H 38,632 - 38,632

At 31 March 2015, the Group has tax losses
of approximately HK$69,395,000 (2014:
HK$112,233,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can
be utilised will be available for the companies in
which losses arose. The Group has tax losses of
approximately HK$17,293,000 (2014: HK$17,354,000)
available for offsetting against future profits that

R-E—RF=A=+—H K&EEH
B4 2 BHIEEEN A 69,395,000
T (ZZF—mF : B ¥ 112,233,000
JU) ¢ A EELEEE 2 QA BIEER
Fism M8 o RPN FA{EIREH B1ZFERR
Fiimf 2 BRI R EEFBE AR
B MTERRECHBEE - #
FRGEMSHEME  ~AEENEH
& 17,293,000 7T (ZZ — U4 : B
17,354,000 ju) 2 FHIEESIE @ ATER R

may be carried forward for up to five years, for PRC
enterprise income tax purpose. The remaining tax
losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other
significant deferred tax liabilities that is required to be
provided for in the consolidated financial statements
for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014

N

FORFIER  HEBERSTAEE
o RIBRTBOE - B FBIERET
&5 -

B EXIEES - SEEMENRLE
BEAEANSE_T—AFR_FT
—ME=A=+—BHIEFEZEEH
KRB
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31. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 31. BHEERE
The Group and the Company BEBE RN T
2015 2014
—E-RF —TmE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T PEEE T
At beginning of the year REA 1,984 =
Issue of warrants (Note i) BITRMBIEE (K1) - 23,337
Exercise of warrants TR (1) (1,075)
Change in fair value NEE 38,612 (20,278)
At end of the year NG 40,595 1,984
Notes: Hiat
[0) The warrants, classified as derivative financial liabilities as not settled 0} REREDDERTEESREE (LR
by a fixed amount of cash for fixed number of the Company's own TREBHEENARRAEEZEFTHERAT
equity instruments, were measured at fair value at each exercise A) DEZTHEEERREHERZ AFER
date and the end of the reporting period. The valuation was carried £ o [HEBRBEERIRA R A BT EE
out by independent valuer based on Black Scholes Option Pricing BRRETT - REEEFER T \FHAXEE
Model. The warrants will expire on 6 May 2018. e
(ii) Fair value of share warrants and assumptions (ii) &5 Rk RE 2 A TE R R

P TR0 BRI RE 2 N A Z fdat TR IR N
AR EEAGE -

The estimate of the fair value of the share warrants granted is
measured based on the Black Scholes Option Pricing Model.

31/3/2015 31/3/2014 7/5/2013
—Z-HF —E—NF —B-=F
=A=+—H =A=+—AH BEHAtH
(Date of grant)
(RFEH)
Fair value of share warrants at measurement date W2 RERARER 2 A TFE HK$0.0587 HK$0.0108 HK$0.0194
75 0.0587 7T 75 0.0108 7T 751 0.0194 7T
Share price B HK$0.62 HK$0.144 HK$0.054
s 0.62 70 7 0.144 T 755 0.054 7T
Exercise price 1B HK$0.85 HK$0.3204 HK$0.0534
7515 0.85 7T 75 0.3204 7T 75 0.0534 T
Expected volatility TEERRIE 295.99% 34.66% 39.71%
Warrant life RS 3.1 years 4.1 years 5 years
314 416 54
Risk-free interest rate R RA

(based on the approximate interest rates with (RIBEB TR 2 INEESH 215

similar life of the Foreign Exchange Notes) KIFI=) 0.77% 1.68% 0.81%
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31. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share warrants), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based
on publicly available information. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

32. AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

31. Bi%EE @

TR AR 0 TH AR 2R iR AR (SRR
10 R RE 2 hNRE T RIBR & B PR AT
g)  UHRAFRASERFTEZE
ATERAR AR B R ENE AR - T8
BABBRRZESHIEATELT
[EPACE

32. BYRRME

The Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —FlF
Hiat HK$’000 HK$000
Notes BET T BT
Winner Global Holdings Limited Winner Global Holdings
(“Winner Global”) Limited ([Winner
Global]) @ - 13,410
- 13,410
Less: Amount due within one year shown YRR B E—F
under current liabilities WEIHAZ 5RIE - (13,410)
Non-current liabilities JERBNEE - -
Notes: Kt -
(@) The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum (@) BERAREREER  RFEFES5 EFEREAR

and repayable on 31 December 2014. On 1 March 2012, an
extension agreement was signed and the maturity date was
extended to 31 December 2014. Ms. Loh is beneficially interested
in 100% of the share capital of Winner Global.
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33. PROMISSORY NOTES 33. ALERE
The Group and the Company REER DT
2015 2014
—E-RF —FmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At beginning of the year REH] 6,782 6,648
Accrued effective interests 25T ERANE 64 134
Repayment during the year FREK (6,846)
At end of the year RER - 6,782
Carrying amount repayable FEEEFIEARE(E - 6,782
Within one year —ER - _
Over one year —F1&
- 6,782
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33. PROMISSORY NOTES

The Group and the Company

On 31 July 2009, the Company issued promissory notes
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$232,000,000 as
part of the consideration for the acquisition of Amplewell.
The promissory notes bear interest at 2% per annum. The
interest shall be repaid together with principal in one lump
sum upon maturity on 31 January 2011. On 1 September
2010, the Company entered into a letter with the holder of
the promissory notes to extend the maturity date of the
promissory notes to 31 July 2012. On 1 September 2011,
further extension to 31 July 2013 was granted from the
holder. The promissory notes may be assigned or transferred
(in integral multiple of HK$1,000,000) to any third party (other
than a connected person as defined in the Listing Rules)
subject to the Listing Rules and the applicable laws. The
Company may repay all or part of the principal amount and
interest at any time prior to the maturity date (i.e. 31 July
2013) by giving the holder not less than seven days’ prior
written notice specifying the amount and date of repayment
provided that the amount shall be at least HK$1,000,000.
Otherwise, the payment of principal and interest payment

33.

AN RE
AEMRAAT

RZZEZNFLA=+—H ARAETK
& #8758 575 K 232,000,000 TT 7 AN 24
e B BETIR 2 ZB D RAB o AN ZIRIZF A
R2BEFE - FIBERASGHN T ——F—
A=+—HEH  EF—F6BEE RN
—ZFEANA—H  AAREANEZEEEEA
AN — - BANEEZEBAIEER
T —HFt+A=t+-—H - R-_T——FN
A—H BESHEEAERTE—FIEERHA
E_F—=FtA=+—H8- Eﬁéimﬁ
BINMERER BT « AN ZERE S A] LS
¥ 1,000,000 JT 2 e EEH HEREETT
MIE=F W EMRAMAEZBEALR
Gh o RAG A ABEE (I ZE—=%+ A
=+—H) BiBEREEE X0 ANE 5 M
ME - AXBRABEEAZEHTLREEEL
EMEBERN - FPEMEEzSHEMERBE -
MEEESEARD &S 1,000,000 7T ° &
B ANERzAE R EAREIHE A BH

of promissory notes shall be made in full upon the maturity %%« R
date. B
The fair value of the promissory notes at the date of ANZERBETHH ZAFEABE

issuance was HK$191,911,000, which was determined by 191,911,000 7T * JO R EEIEEFE o [G1E
GCA. Valuations were made on the basis of effective interest THREEERZEEY A BB EES

method which is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate used in the calculation of the fair
value is 15.74%.

The promissory notes are held by a substantial shareholder.
On 23 September 2009, the Company made repayment of
promissory notes with carrying amount of HK$84,529,000
at par value for HK$100,000,000. On 2 November 2009, the
Company made another repayment of promissory notes
with carrying amount of HK$90,188,000 at par value for
HK$105,000,000. The excess of the repayment amount over
the carrying amount of HK$30,283,000 for the year ended
31 March 2010 was accounted for as distribution to the
shareholder.

On 12 April 2010, the Company made another repayment of
promissory notes with carrying amount of HK$19,076,000 at
par value of HK$20,822,000. The excess of the repayment
amount over the carrying amount of HK$1,746,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2011 was accounted for as distribution
to the shareholder.

Given that the Company has the legal obligation to settle
the full face value of the promissory notes for the aforesaid
acquisition, the directors considered that it is transaction
with shareholder in the capacity as owner. The excess shall
be accounted for as a deemed capital distribution to the
shareholder and charged to the contributed surplus account.
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nzﬁﬁmﬁ RZBEZENF+—H=H"
KA A BITIRZEES 105,000,000 TIEE
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—EZTF=A=+—HItFE EELHE
B RmE 2 £ 58 30,283,000 T AR
{ERRER DK ©
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—A=+t—HULFE EELEEHERE
2 & EEBE 1,746,000 TTABRTIEIR DR ©

ERARRBEREER LA 22U BEN
ANRBZEE  EFRBUTIAEEAS
MERRETZRS - BHEREAKRIIIE
BRBRREADK - WREBBERRME -



KRMEFEIZIRBR A

HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

—EB- —E-REFR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL 34. B
Number of
Number of convertible
Number of Number of ordinary preferred
ordinary ordinary shares of shares of
shares of shares of HKS0.01 HKS$0.01
HK$0.053333 HKS0.32 per share per share
per share per share Note [j Note (i) Total
SHEE ShEE
Sk SREE  AR007Z 5001 T2
BR300 EM0RT 2EREE TERELRER
ZEERYA EERER i il 5t
Notes 0 00 00 HKS000 0 HKS 000 HK$000
it Tk i Th s TR T AT
Authorised: EE:
At1Apr 2013 W-F-=FRA-A 12,000,000 - - 640,000 21,534,000 275,340 915,340
Share consoldaton RiyaH @ (12000,000) 2,000,000 - - = - o
Ceptal eorganizaon Hhel
- cancelation of ped up captal —HHARAR ] - (1,391,695) 1,391,695 (431,425 - - (431,425)
- cancellaton of unissued shares — AR ARG [} - (608,305) - (194,658) - - (194,658)
- ncreased in authorised ordinary shares —EiEEEER ] - - 28,608,305 286,083 - - 286,083
As at 31 March 2014, 1 April 2014 R-B-mE
and 31 March 2015 ZR=t-A»
“E-MEMA-AR
ZE-RESRSt-
A - - 30,000,000 300,000 21,534,000 275,340 515,340
Issued and il pact BEfTRER:
At1 Apri 2013 W-F-=FRA-A 7,085,632 - - 377,900 1,203,151 12,982 390,832
Issue of new shares in connection with the Open FENFEEL TR
Ofer 1} 1,180,939 - - 62,983 215,525 2,155 65,138
Shares issue upon exercise of ordinary share
warents 0] 83,509 - - 4,459 - - 4,459
Share consoldation @ 8,350,170) 1,391,695 - - - - -
(Captal reorganization
- cancelation of ped up captal ] - (1,391,695) 1,391,695 (431,425 - - (431,425)
Shares issue upon exercise of ordinary share
Warents @ - - 101 1 - - 1
Asat 31 March 2014 and 1 Aprl 2014 WE-|E
=R=1-BR
Z5-TERA-A - - 1,391,796 13918 1,508,676 15,087 20,005
Issue of ew sheres i connecton with the ETEE-AR
Febvuary Open Ofer DREEZRRG fl - - 835,078 8,351 905,206 9,052 17,408
Sheresissue upon exercie of ordinary share NI Tt
Vanants ki 1} - - 27 - . . .
Issue of ew shares i connecton with the EEBT-AR
December Open Offe DEEEZFRR f - - 6,680,704 66,807 7,241,645 12416 139,223
Asat 31 March 2015 RE-1%
=A=t-H - - 8,907,605 89,076 9,655,527 96,555 185,631

149




SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BwRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &Z - —AF=A=+—HILFE

34.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

i)

Ordinary Shares

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Convertible Preferred Shares

The non-voting convertible Preferred Shares (the “Convertible
Preferred Shares”) can be converted into ordinary shares without
maturity date. The Convertible Preferred Shares shall at all times
rank equally among themselves and shall upon exercise of the
conversion right attaching to the Convertible Preferred Shares pari
passu with all other shares of the Company in issue with respect of
the right to any dividends or distributions declared.

The following are the other major terms of the Convertible Preferred
Shares:

In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up, or merger, or
reorganisation that will result in any distribution of assets of the
Company to the existing shareholders of the Company, the holders
of the Convertible Preferred Shares will receive an amount equal
to 100% of the face value of the Convertible Preferred Shares.
In addition, the ranking of the Convertible Preferred Shares is
higher than ordinary shares, but lower than creditor in the case of
liquidation.

The holder of each Convertible Preferred Shares shall not have
any voting rights save where the Company proposes to pass a
resolution to vary the rights attached to the Convertible Preferred
Shares or for the winding up or dissolution of the Company. The
Convertible Preferred Shares shall be nonredeemable and will not
be listed on any stock exchange.

Each Convertible Preferred Share shall be convertible at the
option of the holders at any time after issue, provided that (i) any
conversion of the Convertible Preferred Shares shall not result in the
aggregate voting rights in the Company held by the relevant holder
of the Convertible Preferred Shares who exercises the conversion
rights and parties acting in concert with it exceeding 29.9%, or such
other percentage as may then be the maximum percentage (to one
decimal place) of issued Shares it could then acquire without being
required to make a mandatory general offer for the shares of the
Company under the Takeovers Code or (i) any conversion of the
Convertible Preferred Shares shall not result in the public float of the
Shares falling below the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules.
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34.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@)

(©)

(e)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 30 September 2013,
the share consolidation was approved and effective from 2 October
2013 every six ordinary shares of HK$0.05333 each in the authorised
and issued share capital of the Company were consolidated into
one ordinary share of HK$0.32 each in the authorised and issued
share capital of the Company.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 30 September 2013, the
capital reorganization was approved and effective from 2 October
2013 in the following manner (i) the issued ordinary share capital
of the Company was reduced through a cancellation of paid up
capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.31 on each of the
ordinary shares of HK$0.32 such that the nominal value of each
issued ordinary share was reduced from HK$0.32 to HK$0.01; (ii)
all of the authorised but unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.32 each
were cancelled; and (jii) the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased to HK$575,340,000 by the creation of an additional
28,608,305,027 unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each so
that the authorised share capital of the Company comprised a
total of 30,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and
27,534,000,000 convertible preferred shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 11 April 2013, the Company issued a prospectus (the
“Prospectus”) pursuant to which the Company proposed an open
offer (the “Open Offer”) to issue i) not less than 1,180,938,718 and
not more than 1,227,737,503 new ordinary shares of the Company
(“Offer Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.0534 per Offer
Share to qualifying ordinary shareholders on the basis of one Offer
Share for every six existing ordinary shares held on 10 April 2013
with bonus issue of ordinary share warrants with exercise price
of HK$0.0534 per ordinary share on the basis of one bonus share
warrant for every Offer Share subscribed; and ii) not more than
215,525,161 new convertible preferred shares of the Company
(“Offer CPS Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.0100125
per Offer CPS Share to qualifying holders of convertible preferred
shares on the basis of one Offer CPS Share for every six existing
convertible preferred shares held on 10 April 2013 with bonus
issue of convertible preferred share warrants with exercise price
of HK$0.0100125 per convertible preferred share on the basis of
one bonus convertible preferred share warrant for every Offer CPS
share subscribed. Pursuant to the announcement of the Company
dated 6 May 2013 (the “Announcement”), the Open Offer became
unconditional and 1,180,938,718 Offer Shares, 1,180,938,718
ordinary share warrants, 215,525,161 Offer CPS Shares and
215,525,161 convertible preferred share warrants were issued on 7
May 2013. The dealing of the Offer Shares was commenced on the
Stock Exchange on 8 May 2013. Further details of the Open Offer
were disclosed in the Prospectus and the Announcement.

During the year 2014 and before capital reorganization, 83,598,813
ordinary share warrants were exercised to subscribe for
83,598,813 new ordinary shares of HK$0.05333 of the Company
at a consideration of approximately HK$4,465,000 of which
approximately HK$4,459,000 was credited to share capital and the
balance of approximately HK$6,000 was credited to share premium
account.

During the year 2014 and after capital reorganization, 606,240
ordinary share warrants were exercised to subscribe for 101,040
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company at a
consideration of approximately HK$32,000 of which approximately
HK$1,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of
approximately HK$31,000 was credited to share premium account.
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

34. RA& @

Atat - (&)

()

On 16 April 2014, the Company issued a prospectus (the “February
Prospectus”) pursuant to which the Company proposed an
open offer (the “February Open Offer”) to issue i) not less than
189,173,247 and not more than 165,665,906 new ordinary shares of
the Company (the “February Offer Shares”) at a subscription price
of HK$0.32 per February Offer Share to qualifying shareholders on
a basis of one February Offer Share for every ten existing ordinary
shares held on 14 April 2014 with bonus issue of five bonus shares
for every February Offer Share; and ii) not more than 172,420,129
new convertible preferred shares of the Company (the “February
Offer CPS Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.01 per February
Offer CPS Share to qualifying holders of convertible preferred shares
on the basis of one February Offer CPS Share for every five existing
convertible preferred shares held on 14 April 2014 with bonus
issue of convertible preferred shares on the basis of five bonus
convertible preferred shares for every existing February Offer CPS
Share subscribed. Pursuant to the announcement of the Company
dated 12 May 2014 (the “May Announcement”), the February Open
Offer became unconditional and 139,179,601 February Offer Shares
with 695,898,005 bonus shares, 150,867,613 February Offer CPS
Shares with 754,338,065 bonus convertible preferred shares were
issued on 13 May 2014. The dealing of the February Offer Shares
was commenced on the Stock Exchange on 14 May 2014. Further
details of the February Open Offer were disclosed in the February
Prospectus and the February Announcement.

During the current financial year and after the February Open Offer,
125,625 ordinary share warrants were exercised to subscribe for
27,616 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company at a
consideration of approximately HK$6,708 of which approximately
HK$276 was credited to Share Capital and the balance of
approximately HK$6,432 was credited to share premium account.

On 28 November 2014, the Company issued a prospectus (the
“December Prospectus”) pursuant to which the Company proposed
an open offer (the “December Open Offer”) to issue i) not less than
371,150,205 and not more than 386,428,602 new ordinary shares of
the Company (the “December Offer Shares”) at a subscription price
of HK$0.32 per December Offer Share to qualifying shareholders on
a basis of one December Offer Share for every six existing ordinary
shares held on 26 November 2014 with bonus issue of seventeen
bonus shares for every December Offer Share; and ii) not more
than 402,313,634 new convertible preferred shares of the Company
(the “December Offer CPS Shares”) at a subscription price of
HK$0.01 per December Offer CPS Share to qualifying holders of
convertible preferred shares on the basis of one December Offer
CPS Share for every six existing convertible preferred shares held
on 26 November 2014 with bonus issue of convertible preferred
shares on the basis of seventeen bonus convertible preferred
shares for every existing December Offer CPS Share subscribed.
Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 18 December
2014 (the “December Announcement”), the December Open Offer
became unconditional and 371,150,205 December Offer Shares with
6,309,553,485 bonus shares, 402,313,634 December Offer CPS
Shares with 6,839,331,778 bonus convertible preferred shares were
issued on 19 December 2014. The dealing of the December Offer
Shares was commenced on the Stock Exchange on 22 December
2014. Further details of the December Open Offer were disclosed in
the December Prospectus and the December Announcement.
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HE—T—HF=H=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2015

35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company terminated the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 9 September 2002 (“Old
Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme (“New
Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting
held on 27 November 2009. There was no share option
granted under the Old Scheme. The principal terms of the
New Scheme are as follows:

(a)

The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide incentives

(b)

(c)

(d)

Purpose

and rewards to eligible participants who contribute

the success of the Group’s operation and to recruit
and retain high caliber employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any
entity which any member of the Group holds any

equity interest (“Invested Entity”).
Eligible participants

Eligible participants of the New Scheme include the
Company’s directors and other employees of the
Group or Invested Entity, any customers, supplier
of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity who, in the sole discretion
of the Board have contributed or will contribute to
the growth and development of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and to
be granted under the New Scheme must not exceed
10% of the total number of issued ordinary shares of
the Company as at the date of passing the ordinary
resolution on 11 April 2012 (being the date on which
the mandate limit of the New Scheme was refreshed).
The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted is 105,641,429
ordinary shares, represented approximately 1.19%
of the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company as at the date of this report for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant

The maximum number of shares issuable under the
New Scheme to each eligible participant within any
12-month period, is limited to 1% of the total number
of ordinary shares of the Company in issue at any
time.
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35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(d)

(e)

U

(9)

(h)

Maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant (continued)

Any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their respective
associates, which would result in the ordinary
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person in excess of 0.1% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue at any time and
with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5,000,000 within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

Option period

An option shall be exercised within 10 years from the
date of grant or such shorter period as the directors
may specify at the time of grant.

Acceptance of offer

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Exercise price

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the share
options; and (ii) the average closing prices of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The validity of the New Scheme

The New Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 27 November 2019 unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the terms of the New
Scheme.

In assessing the aggregate value of the share options
granted and fully accepted during the year ended 31 March
2014, the result of Binomial Option Pricing Model performed
by GCA was used. No share options were granted for the
year ended 31 March 2015. During the year ended 31 March
2015, the Group recognised share-based payment expenses
approximately HK$Nil (2014: HK$446,000) for employees.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 35. BERESTE ()
(@  Movements in the number of share options @  EARTTEEEAESE R EARR T
outstanding and their related weighted average WT EE 2T :
exercise prices are as follows:
Outstanding
at 31 March
2014 and Exercise  Exercise
Outstanding 1 April 2014 Outstanding  Exercisable price price
at1 April Adjusted  H=F-IF Adjusted ~ asatd1 at3iMarch  pershare pershare
2013 ponshare  =A=t-R uponopen  March 2015 2015 before after
A=§-=! consolidation  }=%-T5 offers open offers  open offers
Date of Grant Exercise period BE-B  Granted  Brercised  Lapsed HEMAHE  BA-B Granted  Evercised  Lapsed HABEER MBEN  OREES
FHES fiteh AR BRY Bfk BN E Bk Bfi BN Eid SROER  SRAER
13Janiay 20tto 520865 - - -0 8810 - - [mE i W73 HKSEE MK
12Janiay 2020 AESBOT AT
T-E-ftzEE
“RE-A1-R
18 ety 2010 13daniay 201210 520865 - - - 8810 = SR I R ¢ W73 HKSSe  HKS1
53 12Janiay 2020 ARSBT  EEITT
-At=8 “R-TE-fr=RE
EoRE-A1CR
13 ety 2010 13daniay 21310 520867 - - ST 8811 = SO B T 45 W73 HKSSB  HK1
I-EE 12 January 2020 RESOOT AR T
-ft=R 3-5-RizR2
-
13y 2010 15y 2010t0 5106428 - - By NA - = - - NA - - A NA
55 12 Januay 2120 Tk TR TR R
-AtzA 3-RELATRRZ
RRE-RTIR
13 Jaay 2010 154yttt 5106427 - - 54 NA - - - - NA - - NA NA
3 12 Janvay 2020 i Tk TER TR
-ht=R “5--EtAtERE
2y
Thay 2010 15y 20100 5106477 - - B NA - - - - NA - - NA NA
o oy =3 May 2020 R TR TR ki
RAtA T-RELATIAZ
ZRCTERRA
Thay2010 13Janiay Dtto B85 - - - 45810 - - ERR 7 B X %1 HKAZ0 KL
5% ey 2020 Fo 0 Vo ARV
TAtA 3F-RtzER
ZEZERRAA
They 2010 154y 20t o 5105428 - - B NA - - - - NA - - NA NA
o35 6May 2020 AER 01 TR AER
TAtA ZTFERTRRE
ZRCRERRA
They 2010 13Janiay 20121 2865 - - - 46810 - - SO/ B X 6331 HKSAZ80  HKSLAG
o ey 2020 EART AT
TAtA % ]
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35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

35. BIRETE

(@  Movements in the number of share options @  EARTTREEEAES A R EARR T
outstanding and their related weighted average BHITEE &  (8)
exercise prices are as follows: (continued)
Outstanding
at 31 March
2014 and Exercise Exercise
Outstanding 1 April 2014 Outstanding  Exercisable price price
at1 April Adjusted  H=F-RF Adjusted  asatd! at3iMarch  pershare pershare
2013 ponshare A=A upon open  March 2015 2015 before after
H-§-z§ consolidation  R=%-TE offes R=E-FE HZF-TE  openoffers openoffers
Date of Grant Exercise period ME-B  Gramed  Exeised  Lapsed HEBAHE  BA-B Gramted Brercised  Lapsed HAREEA ZAZT-R ZEZT-B OEBEN  ORBER
FHRS fies BRIR B Bfi BAH E BRITE Bk i} B&H i BT ik SRGEE  SRORE
7May 2010 18 Jenuary 2013 o
S 12 6May 2020
RAtA 3ZF-RtzER HKS4260 HKS 1131
i 280867 - S 234056 46811 - - - 129522 176333 3B ALK EELET
14 September 2010 14 September 2010to
3 27 Noveber 2019
AAtER “R-TENRTREE
Aot HKS2250  HKS597
A 11200000 = - (1000000 (166,667) 338 = = = N2 125,565 18565 BT ARSI
18 Feoruary 2011 16 December 2011 to
£ 17 February 2021
ZRt/B S o e S NA NA NA NA
RFRHA 1433333 - - (14338 AR - - - )1 - TER TEE
18 Feoruary 2011 16 December 2011 to
£ 17 February 2021
“RtIA E-FroATEE NA A A NA
RFRHA 1433333 - B Veckss) TR o - o HER - TR AER
18 Feoruary 2011 16 December 2011 to
Z-£ 17 February 2021
AR 3--Ft-Rt5RZ NA NA NA NA
EECRTAR 143333 - - (14333 iR = = = N - TER R
30 August 2013 30 August 2013to
3 29 August 2023
NA=t z HKS03204  HKS0085
- 16651722 = (138793,110) 21758622 o o - T 1MEN6T6  1M46NETE  EEORMT EE0MST
38326904 166551732 - (7270 (140964109 28192817 - - (2779 78076408 10641429 105641429
Weighted average ERAEE HKS06517  HKS00534 - HKkSogsrr HKS0.3914 HKS00%6  HK$00956
exerise rioe: ER0GTT EE00UT - s EE0NT - - - EH0MET AR 00%67

The number of share options exercisable at 31 March
2015 was 105,641,429 (2014: 28,192,817) and its weighted
average exercise price was HK$0.0956 (2014: HK$0.3914).
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 35. ERESE e
(b)  The vesting period for the share options is as below. (b) BREZGBEHAOT -
No. of share
options granted
Date of grant [REchy Vesting conditions
REAH BREHE BRRE
No. of shares
options vested

EHEBERE Vesting date
0 SEAN

13 January 2010 10,210,855 5105428 15July 2010 —E—ZF+ A1+HH
“Z-Z5-ft=H 5,105,427 15Ju|y2011,;”$tﬂ+£a
45,040,069 18,398,633 13 January 2011 ZE——4%—A+=H

13,320,716 13 January 2012 “£——F—f+=H
13,320,720 13January20134 —=%-A+=H

7 May 2010 10210855 5105427 15July 2010 —E— 25+ A+ER
“E-FERALA 5105428 15July 2011 ~E——E+ AR
14,488,035 2000000 7 November 2010 =Z—ZF+—A+H

4,162,677 7May 2011 ZE——4$hA+H
4162678 7May 2012 =Z—=FHA+H
4,162,680 7May 2013 —E—=FH+H

28,144,944 9,381,644 13 January 2011 _E——%—A1=H
9,381,646 13 January 2012 E—Zi—ﬂ +=A
9,381,654 13 January 2013 “E—=F—A+=H
14 September 2010 79,350,000 79,350,00 14 September 2010 —Z—ZF 1A +1UH
ZZ-ZENATIEA
18 February 2011 5,105,428 1,701,809 30 June 2011 =E—4F;XA=1H
—2—2-At/\H 1,701,809 30 June 2012 _Z\ _ix\ﬂ 1B
1,701,810 30 June 2013 F°A=1H
820,588 273529 31 July 2011 = **E{H +—H
273,529 31 July 2011 :;--itﬂEJF—EI
273530 31July 2011 ~E——E+F=1—H
1,000,000 333,333 6 September 2011 =% **EJLH/*\B
333333 6 September 2011 =% —EnARA
333,334 6 September 2011 —E——4A.AA
800,000 266,666 5 December 2011 —E——4+— AT A
266,667 5 December 2011 —F——F+=FAA
266667 5 December 2011 —F——F+=FAA
4,300,000 1,433,333 16 December 2011 ZE——4F+—F+7<H
1,433,333 16 December 2011 —E——&+—F+7<H
1433,334 16 December 2011 —%——F+_+73H
1,000,000 333333 2 January 2012 _E—=F—H=H
333,333 2 January 2012 — *: —AZHR
333334 2 January 2012 —E——F—FA=A
1,300,000 433,333 9 January 2012 _T _¢ ANA
433333 9 January 2012 : —F—ANA
433334 9 January 2012 _Z——F—ANA
30 August 2013 166,551,732 166,551,732 30 August 2013 —E—=F/\A=1H
—Z—=%#/\A=T1H
Total share optlon granted 368,322,506
ERERER -
Less: Lapsed (190,695,876)
;R BAM
Exercised (9,097,500)
Bt
Adjustment upon share consolidation (140,964,109)
effective on 2 October 2013
EA T—E+f-
Rhat %ixﬂ&uﬂ%
Ad]ustment upon open offers 78,076,408
effective on 14 May 2014 and
22 December 2014

A-FFRATINAR_F-IEF
oAt ARARRE AR

Outstanaing at 31 March 2015 105,641,429
R=F-RAF=A=+—AMKIE
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35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The option outstanding as at 31 March 2015 have a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 8.36
years (2014: 9.36 years).

There was no exercise for share options for the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015.

No other share options granted under the New
Scheme were cancelled during the years ended 31
March 2014 and 2015. The Group had no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
options in cash.

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the
fair value of share options granted. The estimate
of the fair value of the share options granted is
measured based on binomial option pricing model.
The contractual life of the share option is used as an
input into this model. Expectations of early exercise
are incorporated into the binomial option pricing
model.

35. BIRETE

(b)

(&)

R-B—AFE=A=+—HBHKTE
BREZNEFEHHRTAOESHE
8.36 FF (—ZT P04 : 9.36 4F) ©

HE-Z—NEFE-_FT—RAF=A4
=+t B F e ERE IR

HE_ZT-—NFR=ZZT—RAF=A4
=+—RHIEFE - BEEMBREN
SR 2 BB AR M R B - A E I
ST EEANER S B R EN
BENRAE -

AR H BB IR B lRIS X FET 2
ZERNBEREZAFEAE -ER
H R 2 (B ET A FER — B HE
EEENNE - BREZAOFHE
RBAZERN B8R - MAMIERT
FEFAZEASREEREAZF

Date of grant

g =
30/8/2013

Fair value of share options and —E—=F

assumptions BREz AT ERERR NA=+H

Fair value at measurement date RErEAHZ AEE HK$0.0038

751 0.0038 T

Share price [&fE HK$0.033

V5 0.033 7T
Exercise price IfEE HK$0.0534
75 0.0534 7T
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted TEERRIE (R 15 =185 A 35.28%
average volatility used in the modeling under HETE AR SRR AT
binomial option pricing model) kTR E)

Option life (expressed as weighted average life ~ BEPSHEEH] (1B1E — 1B 10 years
used in the modeling under binomial option HARETE B T E R 10 FF
pricing model) FERNETHEER)

Expected dividends TEEARR B HK$Nil

PEEET T

Risk-free interest rate (based on 10-year EREAIE (AF8E 2.335%

Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes)
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

©

(continued)

The expected volatility is based on annualized
standard deviations of the continuously compounded
rates of return on the share prices of five comparable
companies in Hong Kong and Brazil Exchange
with similar business operations. No dividends are

35. BEREE®
© &

FEHKIESARBEREAERE SR S
It ERBXRBEE L AMAI B LK
RAZBELHFEES LRI FE
BEZREE - ANARAEELHE
IR RS RCE, - TR E N & IR ]

expected as the Company had no history of payment B, o

of dividends.

The share options granted during the year ended 31
March 2014 were immediately vested. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option

grants.

36. RESERVES

(a)

REBEE-T-—NOF=A=1+—HLF
EREBRECHRGER - KHB
P AR I S B B A A0 T 353 16 A

36. f#fE

The Group (a) A=5£E
Shaes el
byte
Compeny fo
seffemetof
aepistion Gt~ Evchenge Shae
onsidion Ostuiebe — redempfn ~ fuckatn opfon Non-anfolng
Swe AOFHEN  Conbed TESENe resene [0 fesene  Accumuated ierests
perin Eooaps  WE OB OB BE 0 w  Wwd A Tod
RhiE  fEER  EMER i i i B AR it Ha il
Hots MO RO HKSIO HSOD RS0 HGOO HGOD RSO SO0 HSD HGID
fif Bk M #T AT B M M B T M
At Apr 2013 j PRI 117 10008 2016 §000 (8% L VY ) 1 16175
Chenge nequiy for 2013 e - - - - - - LTRSS o (0
Loss forthe year EEEE
Exchange diferences ontenstion #1257V E AT
of fnencie statements of overseas 57 EHEE
alsiis ) - 1 s -t
Totelothercomprehensive icome 2T\ (188 - - (1884 - (1188
Totel comprehensie loss for e year - 522 (11884 O 1 I o
Transactions with owners EREAETIRG
Issue of new shares in connection with TR ER(THR(
the open ffer ) i §f §f
Capital reorganzation
- cancelaton o share pemium y (2467340 2008769 {3145 - 3145
Shareissue upon exercise of ordnary {775
share varants ol 111 111 - 11
Share sue expenses , (4160 (4160 - (4160
Eauty-setfled share-based payment [} - ) - Ug - g
Forfeitue of share options (8640 8640
Acquistion of subsiciaries K0 89 8
Deemed distibuton to shereholders REART
through the open offer (23337) - - (23381 = (23.331)
Totd rensactons wihowners — EEGARITIRGEE 470307 2875428 B1%4) 8640 405567 8 405,656
At 31 March 2014 W-F-ME=A=1-H U (115920) 2885431 2016 8000 (49775) 1660 (2701927) 2718 1 20793
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36. RESERVES (continued)

36. f#fEE)

(a) The Group (continued) (@) ZE&£E %
Atrbutaleto e ners of the Company
BAREARL
Shaesfeldby
tre Company
forsetement
of acouistion Captd ~ Exchange Shae
ongiton Disuiabe ~ recempton ~~ flctueion tption Noncontoling
S TOFHEN Cvbbid  mew  mwe  eme e Akt Mows T
min  JBRE  spls  UEDE BORE ERRR O EEE we Sl IR ey
RikE RS ERER i % i i EEe 5t B R
Mot HSUD S0 HKSO0  HKSO0 RSO RSO RSO0 RSO0 S0 RSO0 HKSOD
g B B M M A R M MY T M Hf
A1 Ao e U KON 117 I v TR O 17 ) Boum
Chenge iy or 2015,
Lossorteyear By g B
By s miasaimotiacd — AZSAHEDT AR E S
staementsof oversezs subsidres (15%) (1521 (D%
Ttdobercompetersie come EbaEpAEE (15921 (15921 ]
Totdoompeensielss foreyear IERREERSE (1891 Y 1]
Tensafonvihounes ERENETS
Isueofew saes incomrecton i e
Fetrary Open Ofe Pl 2643 Pkl
Shete sueUpon e of oy shae
iarants H § f f
Isug of e shes incomnecton i e
Decente Open (143 (1342 (647
Shareisseperes (59 &y iy
Forire ofsherg opton 8 (17 7 - ]
Tota tansactors wih ownes SRE\ET AR 650 6] in 650 650
31 Nean 28 e i b0 o 26 00 R 1% DRy () no B
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36. RESERVES (continued) 36. f#E )
(b) The Company (b) ZEQT
Sheres held
bythe
Company for
setflment of
acquistion Ceptl Shere
consideraton Distbutabe ~~ redemption option
e FATHER  Contioued resee resee mseve  Aocmiated
i YERE sl Bl iyl EhE losses Tod
Hit&E igiiou B4R i i i EitEik )
Notes HKS 000 HKS 00 HKS 00 HKS 00 HKS00 HKS00 HKS00 HKS00
it i i iy i i i i i
At A 2013 A=F-=EmA-A 2410348 (115920, 62047 21 8000 96 2280454) 156084
Loss or ey e - - - - - - 6807 (76807
Issueof ew sharesnoomection - BAFEER3TRD
it he open offe My 8 - - - - - - 8
Geptel reorgnizaton
~-cancelaion of shere premim it ) 2461340 = 288766 = = = = 431425
Shere sste upon exercise of ordnary 1753
e wanars 0340 112 - - - - - ® 12
Share isse expenses (4160 = = = = = = (4160
Equiy-setted share-besed payment 1 - - - - - 146 - U6
Deemed dstuton o shareholders 1
trrough the open ofer - - 33 - - - = B30
Fortre of shaeoptions WHERE - - - - - 840 8640 -
At31 Merch 2014 R-E-ME=A=1-A U (115920, 29%8375 2% 8000 1660 (818621 (14.250)
At 1 April 2014 H-5-BEMR-A ¥ (115020 293837 2216 8,000 1660 (84862 (14250
Loss fo th year EERE - - - - - - [ege (5662

Issue of new shares in BECAhIRRE,
connection with the February  STRA%(

open offer B 28,643 - - - - - - 28643
Share ssue upon exerciseof  ELERIRERRES
ordinary share warrants Rt Y 6 - - - - - - 6
Issue of new shares in RETRhIEREL
connecton with the FiliviEd]

December open offer 16432) - - - - - - 16432)
Share issue expenses R (5,657) - - - - - - (5,651)
Forfetre of share option B - - - - . 45 415 -
At 31 Warch 2015 H-8-TEzp=t-8 654 (15820 29835 2216 8000 185 204 (43
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36. RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Nature of purposes of the reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981. The share premium
account of the Company is distributable to
the owners of the Company in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the excess of the fair value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation in June 1991, over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof, and the capital
reorganisation during the year ended 31
March 2014. Under the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 (as amended), the contributed
surplus is distributable to shareholders in
certain circumstances.

Distributable reserve

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on
15 July 2003, the share premium account of
the Company was reduced by an amount
of HK$103,948,000 to HK$Nil and of which
HK$98,953,000 was applied towards the
elimination of the accumulated losses of
the Company as at 31 March 2003, with the
remaining balance of HK$4,995,000 being
credited to a distributable reserve of the
Company. The reduction of share premium
account was effective on 6 October 2003.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the
amount paid by which the Company’s issued
share capital has been diminished on the
cancellation of the shares repurchased.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of
the overseas subsidiaries. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in Note 3(t).
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36. RESERVES (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Nature of purposes of the reserves
(continued)

(vi)

Share option reserve

Share option reserve represents the portion of
the grant date fair value of unexercised share
options granted to directors and employees
of the Group that has been recognized
in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in Note
3(p)(iii).

Shares held by Company for
settlement of acquisition consideration

(vii)

The Company issued shares for acquisitions
of Originate Tech during the year ended
31 March 2012. At the end of the reporting
period, 280,000,000 shares, valued at
HK$0.414 (the issue price) per share
amounting to HK$115,920,000 were held by
the Company awaiting disposal. Proceeds
from the disposal of these shares shall be
returned to the Company in accordance with
the terms of the acquisition agreement.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2014 and 2015, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for the distribution to the
owners of the Company calculated in accordance
with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended)
was HK$Nil for both years.

Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher level of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of a net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For
this purpose the Group defines net debt as total
debt (which includes loan notes and other financial
liabilities) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less
bank deposits and cash. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity less unaccrued proposed
dividends plus net debt.
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36. RESERVES (continued) 36. f#EwW@)
(e) Capital risk management (continued) (e) EXEEEIE(E)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group’s HE _ZET—FRE="A=1+—HIt=E
strategy, which unchanged from 2014, was to B AEBRRE - EEHER
maintain the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio as low BOSE RS - 2] AL Y8 (B 76T KB AR B
as feasible. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, B R IR KT o Bt
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid By R AEETAREES AL
to the owners, return capital to the owners, issue HrRBE4%E MBS ARBER -
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The net %’fﬁ%ﬁﬁg{\ﬁ;\ﬁiﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁé‘% o A

=3 =) = B JE /NI ' N

debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 March 2015 and
2014 were as follows:

“E-RFR-T-ME=A=+-—
A RIS ABARLEMT

2015 2014
—B-AF —TmE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T VST T
Trade and other payables FERTE Z33E &
Hfth fEAT IR 49,580 82,776
Loans and borrowings BERREE 24,234 28,304
Amount due to shareholders JEAT AR SR FRIE - 13,410
Amount due to non-controlling e IR AR B FIE
shareholder 836 1,235
Promissory notes ZNES - 6,782
Financial liabilities B EE 40,595 1,984
Total debt ER 4R 115,245 134,491
Add: proposed dividends o ERAR S - =
Less: cash and cash equivalents B IRE RIS EEY (50,141) (8,965)
Net debt (EvE 65,104 125,526
Total equity iR 149,559 58,798
Total capital BERNBER 214,663 184,324
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BT FERE
AR AL = 30% 68%
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed N E B AT A INR IR E AR
capital requirements. TEFTFRPR
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37.

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARIES

Purchase of assets and liabilities
through acquisition of a subsidiary

On 25 September 2014, the Group obtained control
of Asset Bridge Development Limited (“Asset
Bridge”) through the acquisition of 100% equity
interest in Asset Bridge, a company engaged in
a money lending business, for a consideration of
HK$10,000. At the date of acquisition, Asset Bridge
only holds a money lending licence and had no
operation at the completion date of the acquisition.
The Group accounted for the acquisition of the
subsidiary as an asset acquisition. The acquisition
was aimed at diversifying the Group’s business and
to broaden the Group’s revenue base.

37. WERLHEHBAE

a) BERBWBHBARVBEEK
afE

R-ZE—MNFEAA-+HB K&
ERAKEBENERBRARA (&
Bl B—RENEEREBZAR) 2
AR EIEE N 2 HIE - RE
A75® 10,000 T RKEEHE - B
FHERAMEARR - RIKEK B
HAY A8 o AN E S BT B A A
REEEWE - WEEEEASEE
%% AL WA AN S B 2 IR A B o

Allocation of
acquisition
consideration
AEENRE
HK$000
BT T
Intangible asset B EE 94
Cash and cash equivalents Re MR ZEEY 1
Other payable H A fERIFRIE (85)
Total consideration HR(E 10
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash BERAWEE 2IRE KR
equivalents in respect of the acquisition of Asset SEEYRLFESTN
Bridge is as follows: T
Consideration, satisfied in cash RIE - LR ER (10)
Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired P EIR & R @SB
4 1

Net Cash outflow on acquisition

No significant acquisition-related costs were
incurred.
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37-

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARIES

b)

Acquisition of assets and liabilities
through acquisition of subsidiaries

On 18 February 2014, the Group obtained control
of Good Magic Limited by acquiring 100% equity
interest and voting rights in Good Magic Limited from
an independent third party. The Group accounted for
the acquisition of subsidiaries as an asset acquisition.
The acquisition was made with the aim to diversify
Group’s businesses.

The following summarized the recognised amounts
of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

37. WERLHEHBAE

b) HUWBHEBAAWBEEKA
&

R=ZZFE—mE=-_A+N\B A5E
% A & 8 = 75 Y% Good Magic
Limited 2 & ZBAR AN #E 25 IR R AE T
S HEGIRE - NREEWBEEHEA
AABRABEWE - ELKEELES
TALBERAREEE o

ATHAR —F—mFE—A+N\BA
BRACWBEEEREAERBZCHE

as at 18 February 2014. REEE o
HK$'000
ST T
Property, plant and equipment L E RN B 39
Investment property B 23,699
Other receivables A FEUGRIE 27
Cash and cash equivalents Re MIREEEY 103
Trade and other payables FERTE SR8 K& B A FETER
15 (110)
Loans and borrowings ERREE (23,388)
Total net identifiable assets AR F A EERR 370
Total consideration wR(E 370

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the acquisition of Good
Magic Limited is as follows:

17 Good Magic Limited 1831 & RIS EEY 2
MEFEAITT -

HK$'000
BT
Purchase consideration settled in cash LIRS ER 2 BERE (370)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Frustd 23R & RIS EEY 103
Net cash outflow on acquisition WHE 2 IR e FRE (267)
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37-

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

c)

Business combination
Travel Inn Limited

On 18 February 2014, the Group obtained control of
Travel Inn Limited by acquiring 95% equity interest
and voting rights in Travel Inn Limited from an
independent third party. Travel Inn Limited provided
travel agency services. The acquisition was made
with the aim to diversify Group’s businesses.

The following summarized the recognised amounts
of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

37. WEKBLAR @)
c) XXKe6f
IBERERAT

RZZE—WMF—_A+/\B ' "EFEE
BB = W IR ERE AR A )
2 95% [% AN HE 25 Mo 1% 22 T BN E
T o IRIERE AR A AR RN
ERT - (EH W E EZ b BERA
SEFER -

PR RE AT BRI & EE M PR E RER —
T-MOF-_AT+/N\BZEHRLEM

as at 18 February 2014. HEnT o
HK$’000
BT
Property, plant and equipment IE R YN 3,281
Trade and other receivables FEWCE 53R T8 K LA FEGR
1B 618
Provision for taxation TIBRE 28
Cash and cash equivalents W& MIREEEY 746
Trade and other payables FERTE 53R TE S FL M FE TR
B (740)
Loans and borrowings ERREE (905)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEBE (21)
Amount due to non-controlling shareholder e IR AR AR B RN IE (1,235)
Total net identifiable assets AR FEERRR 1,772
Non-controlling interest PR i RS (89)
Gain on bargain purchase B (503)
Total consideration wRE 1,180
HK$’000
EETTT
Consideration transferred RN E 1,180
Plus: Non-controlling interest 0 FEFERR R A 89
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired 6t FTUREE R RIEEE
~EE (1,772)
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition Wik 2 B (503)
An analysis of the net cash outflow of cash and BRABEEIREFSAR AT Z
cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of R MReEEYIRER
Travel Inn Limited is as follows: HFRE 2 DT
Purchase consideration settled in cash ARG EMNZRBERE (1,180)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Frlkig 2 3R MR EEY 746
Net cash outflow on acquisition WikE 2 3R 23 (434)
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37-

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

c)

Business combination (continued)

The gain on bargain purchase is mainly attributable to
the following:

i) The immediate exit opportunity offered to the
vendor; and

ii) The ability of the Group in negotiating the
agreed terms of the transaction with vendor.

No significant acquisition-related costs were incurred.

The Group had elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Travel Inn Limited at the proportionate
share of the identifiable net assets.

None of the trade receivables was impaired and it
was expected that all contractual amounts could be
collected.

Included in the loss for the year was profit of
approximately HK$85,000 attributable to Travel
Inn Limited. Revenue for the last year included
HK$175,000 in respect of Travel Inn Limited. Had
the business combination been effected on 1
April 2013, the revenue and loss of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2014 would have been
approximately HK$65,199,000 and HK$490,012,000
respectively. The directors considered these pro-
forma numbers to represent an approximate measure
of the performance of the combined group on an
annualised basis and to provide a reference results
for comparison in future periods.

-
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c)
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) MRETRHIIAELEES K
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AR E IR o

ZER [B00 fE A E R B AR AR o
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A& SRR E -
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37.
d)

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

37. WHEHBA® @)

Disposal of a subsidiary d) HeE—RHEBAT
On 18 August 2014, the Group disposed of SFH RZZE—WENA+/\H » KEBLA
Trading Limited to an independent third party at the REEE 1 THEKRE S BREAT
consideration of HK$1. T—RZBILE=F o
2015
—T—hEF
HK$000
BT
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents AR & RKIRSZEEM 2B
(note i) WARAEB (Mt i) =
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control sk ik AE R B &
was lost DT
Current assets MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents WS NIRESEEBY 4
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 3008 & H b g Uk
218 363
Non-current assets IERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M B RS 100
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables FEHE 5 3O K& H i FE
I8 (4,701)
Net liabilities disposed of HEREFE (4,234)
Consideration received BURE =
Gain on disposal HeElres 4,234

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of the
subsidiary is as follows:

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents

Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

Net cash outflow on disposal of a subsidiary

i)  The consideration is satisfied by HK$1.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables, financial liabilities, promissory notes, amounts
due to shareholders, amount due to related companies and
amount due to non-controlling shareholder.

The Company’s major financial instruments include other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other payables,
financial liabilities and promissory notes.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risk associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Creditrisk
The Group

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
bank deposits, loan receivables and trade and other
receivables.

For trade and other receivables, management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade receivables are due
within 30 — 180 days from the date of billing.

Debtors with balances that are more than 6 months
past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.

Loan receivables are secured by personal/corporate
guarantees and/or the pledge of customers’
properties.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer and debtor rather than the industry or
country in which the customers and debtors operate
and therefore significant concentration of credit
risk primarily arisen when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group had concentration of credit risk by
customers and debtors as for 97% (2014: 99%)
and 47% (2014: 84%) of the total trade and loan
receivables were due from the Group’s five largest
customers and the largest customer respectively as
at 31 March 2015. The Group had concentration of
credit risk by other receivables as for 88% (2014:
83%) of total other receivables were due from two
largest parties as at 31 March 2015.

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the executive
directors of the Company are responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in Note 24.

The Company

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to parent company’s board
approval. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from an independent third
party to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative
financial liabilities which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay:

B EREE @)
(b) REELEE @)

TRV ER RARQ T IELTEIN
BERREMRZFBREHNER - T)
*ETJ% %@ﬁiaﬁfﬁiﬁi/mL (/F'E?EL/(A
AFZE (S EEIFE - BIIRIBERF
BAR 2 BT HIE) %&%Zﬂ,%éiuﬂ)
ARAEE KRR BRI E RN R
&7 B HGRE

The Group NEE
2015
“E-1f
Total More than
contractual Morethan1 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted  Within 1 year  yearbutless  lessthan5  More than 5
amount cash flow orondemand than 2 years years years
£hAEERS
FEE TEEE -EROREX -ERERER WEAELER i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRTT BRET BETT AU v
Trade and other paybles ENE SRR EREE 49,580 49,580 49,580 - - -
Amount due tonor-cortroling shareholoer R GHARRRE 836 836 836 - - -
Loans and borowings 5‘%&1‘55 24,234 25338 6,146 12,435 1,179 5,578
74,650 75,754 56,562 12,435 1,179 5,578
014
5
Total
contractual Morethan1  Morethan2
undiscounted ~ Within yearor ~ yearbutless  yearshutless  Morethan
Camying mount cashfow  ondemand  than2years  thanbyears years
AR
A fEEE EMRER -ERERER  RERERER it/
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
ETT EbTT BT BT EETT BB
Trade and other payables B EREfEE 8,16 8176 8,6 = = =
Amount due to non-contrllng Sharehalder FEfsHR RSB 12% 12% 12% - - -
Promissory notes e 6782 6628 6628 - - -
Loans and borowings ﬁ&m 28304 29958 512 577 13678 991
Amounts dug to shareholders EfffzEE 13410 13916 13916 - - -
132501 134712 10466 517 13678 9991
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

38. MKEEE (&)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBEELEE @)
The table that follows summarises the maturity TEREGHAIRERKEE 2 BHHER
analysis of term loans with a repayment on demand BIBEERRZNE 2R EEEIFGKE
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set Y FHIE A - AESEAENLS
out in the loan agreements. The amounts include WIFRETE 2 F BT o RERARE
inte.rest. payments computed using gontraptual rg’.ces. THIEYR - AA R B ERAET
Taklng into account of the Group’s financial po.smor?, RA /T BB Y By
the directors of the Company do not consider it o AATIEEIRE  SEEHEX
probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to Y @ 4 12E B 2 772 }5; # Z; 1_2“;%;}:\ B
demand immediate repayment. The directors of the ﬁ}q 12 - — AR R AR
Company believe that such term loans will be repaid IR
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements.
Maturity Analysis - Term Loans subject to FNH AT —REREEERZEE
a repayment on demand clause based on B3 (REraER)
scheduled repayments
The Group EE
Total
More than 1 More than contractual
year but less 2 years but undiscounted
than lessthan  More than 5 cash
Within 1 year 2 years 5 years years outflows
GLEY 28
- -FRERER  WERERER il 3 it 2
000 000 000 000 000
i S T i S
31 March 2015 “Z-1%=fA=1-A 267 267 802 4416 5,752
31 March 2014 “T-ME=A=1-A 83 83 249 674 1,089
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Company

38. MIKEEE (&)

(b) RBELEK(E
AATF
2015
ZE-1f
Total
contractual More than 1
Carrying  undiscounted ~ Within 1year  year but less
amount cashflow orondemand  than2years
ShRERRS

HREE REAE -FRORER  -FRERFR

HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000
BB i av BB BT

Other payables AftfERFE 3,600 3,600 3,600 -
3,600 3,600 3,600 -
2014
ZB-QE

Total contractual More than 1 year
undiscounted ~~ Within1yearor  butless than 2
Canying amount cash flow on demand years

AARRE
i RBEE  —FRIEER  —FRERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
BRI AR AETT BRI
Other payables HHRERzE 4,561 4,561 4,561 =
Promissory notes EAES 6,782 6,828 6828 -
11,343 11,389 11,389 =

For warrants, undiscounted gross inflows are not
presented since the Group is unable to estimate the
ultimate timing and amount of subscription money
of the warrants. There are no cash outflows for the
warrants.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk related
primarily to cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables and trade and other payables
that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities.

g

(c)

BERBBEBZIARBRER SR
R FARARBERAE N EMG R
RERBRALEEREEE - R
BREEMERSRL

SN R B

AREE 7 SNE R B = 2 A AR RA SR
BERZRERIINEREE RS
LB FEY - BKEZFHIALEM
JEMRIR - AR BN E SR R HAb
JENFIABR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)
(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period to
currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of
the entities within the Group into the Group’s
presentation currency are excluded.

The Group

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in
Hong Kong dollars)

38. BiKERERE @)
(c) INERB (@
() EEER
T & 25| A £ ER RS AR
o 9 LA B BT B8 A 7 T B A
SN EY DRREES

BEMAXEEER BT T
BREBAEEANER MR
RMERAEE 2GR RE
HCER-

rEM
SNE R (ABEEDITR)

2015 2014
ZE-1F E-|F

United United

States States
Dollars Renminbi Dolars Renminbi
BT ARE ET ARE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$1000
R BRI BETT AT
Trade and other receivables BB ER A RIEE - - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEN - 2 48 85
Trade and other payables BB ER AN - - (2,609) (1,735)

Gross exposure arising rom recogrised ELECRRAERERY

assets and iabiltes R - 2 (25561) (1,650)
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss for the year
and accumulated losses that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between the Hong Kong

B RS ()
(c) HPERBEE)
(i) SRESHT

TRINBAERE HREAKE
BERTE ZINEEXR LIRS
LB - RRFTE E AR 2 2
HEAE - ARBAFEER
K2 BIREEL 2 Bl &
8ot s - CREEEE
XA BMBEXE IR
ETREMEEEEES ZE

dollar and the United States Dollars would A BEVE -
be materially unaffected by any changes
in movement in value of the United States
Dollars against other currencies.
The Group AEE
2015 2014
—E-FE ZZ-ME
Increase/
(decrease)  Effect on loss Increase/ Effect on loss
inforeign after tax and (decrease)in affertax and
exchange  accumulated foreign exchange accumulated
rates losses rates losses
NEEZ  HRHEEER MEEZ  HRHEEEER
L/(TR)  RitEEceE  Li/(TR)  Ritbgcee
HK$'000 HK$000
BT AT
Renminbi ARE 5% - 5% 69
5% - (5)% (69)

e
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group’s
entities’ loss and equity measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements
of the entities within the Group into the
Group’s presentation currency. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31 March 2014.

The Company

The Company's foreign currency risk is
insignificant in the Company level.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
financial liabilities issued at a variable rates and fixed
rates that expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out below. The Group does not
expect any changes on interest rate which might
materially affect the Group’s result of operations.

During the year, the Group and the Company had not
entered into any interest rate swap contracts.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(U]

(i)

38.

B EREE @)
(d) FI=ZBEE

Interest rate profile (i) FIFEFE
The Group KEE
2015 2014
“§-1% “R-BE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BRR= BRA=
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
YT AT
Fixed rate borrowings: ESRE:
Promissory notes BNRE - - 15.74% 6,782
Loans and borrowings EHRIAE 3% 11,419 3-18% 15,067
Amounts due to shareholders iR - - 5% 13410
Variable rate borrowings: FERE:
Loans and borrowings BaRfEE 0,94-2,78% 12,815 0.94%-2.25% 13237
The Company NN |
2015 2014
i i3
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate fate
BIRR= BRA=
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
YT AT
Fixed rate borrowings: ESRE:
Promissory notes e - - 1574% 6,782
Sensitivity analysis (i) BEEZH
The Group TEH

At 31 March 2015, it is estimated that a general
increase/ decrease of 1% in interest rate, with
all other variables held constant, would have
increase/decrease the Group’s loss for the
year and accumulated losses by approximately
HK$128,000 (2014: HK$133,000).

N ¢

R-_E—RAF=RA=+—8H -
WA RBE EFH T E -
mEMFTA ST TE - Al
HEAEB 2 FEBEERR
BRI, R K
128,000 ;T (ZE — U4 : 6
# 133,000 7T) °
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk for the non-derivative
financial liabilities in existence at that date.
The 1% increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the
period until the end of the next reporting
period. The analysis was performed on the
same basis for year 2014.

The Company

As the Company has no significant interest-
bearing liabilities, the management considers
the risk is not significant.

Price risk

The Group’s warrants exposed the Group to equity
price risk. Management has closely monitored
the relevant risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis includes the outstanding
number of warrants as at the end of the reporting
period and adjusts as at the year end for a higher/
lower in share price, holding other variables constant.

At 31 March 2015, if the input of share price to the
valuation model of the warrants had been 5% higher/
lower while all other variables were held constant, the
Group's and the Company's loss for the year would
increase/decrease by HK$2,077,000/HK$2,076,000
(2014: HK$329,000/HK$311,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of the warrants.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent market risk as the
multiple variables involved in the valuation model
used in the fair value valuation of the derivatives are
interdependent.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(f

(9)

Natural risk

The ability to harvest wood and the growth of the
trees in the forests may be affected by unfavourable
local weather conditions and natural disasters.
Weather conditions such as floods, droughts,
cyclones and windstorms and natural disasters such
as earthquakes, fire, disease, insect infestation and
pests are examples of such events. The occurrence
of severe weather conditions or natural disasters
may diminish the supply of trees available for
harvesting, or otherwise impede the Group’s logging
operations or the growth of the trees in the forests,
which in turn may have an adverse effect on the
Group’s ability to produce the products in a timely
manner and maintain sufficient operations.

Fair value measurements recognised in
the statement of financial position

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
IFRS 13 Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

I, 180
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(f
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(9)

Fair value measurements recognised (9)
in the statement of financial position
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

38. MKEEE (&)

RUBARRRAER 2 2 FE

g 16-)

RFPEZR(E)

. F_RIHE  ERE-RBA
2R (AIRREERIE — K2 A]
BRaARE) XY RERE
ATABRBABBEZR
FE - TABRBARBLE
SR B ARE

. FE=RIHE  EREATAE
RRABBTEZAYE

The Group and The Company TEBR AN T
2015 2014
“E-1f “E-mE
Level1  Level2  Level3 Total Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total

=R R 2R
HK$000 HK§'000 HK$'000
BRTn Rt E¥Tn

it FR FR F=R &
HKS000  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00D
BT BT B A AT

Recuring fair value measurements N R
Financial ibilties BaR - 405% -

40,595 = 1,984 = 1984

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur during the years 2014 and 2015.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38.

(g) Fair value measurements recognised
in the statement of financial position
(continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of financial liabilities in Level 2 is
calculated by the Black-Scholes model. The
Black-Scholes model is implemented by applying
computational method. Details of the input refer to
note 31.

(h) Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other then fair
value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 March 2015 and 2014.

39. COMMITMENTS 39.
(@) Commitments in respect of capital
expenditure

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no
material capital commitments (2014: HK$Nil)

e

B EREE @)
(@) REIRRERERZATE

(h)

V3
(a)

Ep-16-)

BoRAFPEBRAZEERTR
BABE
F_F2eBRABE A HETRAA
N —EFMEEAGFE - H7m —&F
BUTRAREERFETEZRT - &8
ABBFFIER M3 -

W HBRNFEIIRZUBEEE
REEZAFE

RZE—RAFR-_ZT—ENF=A
=+—08  AEBRAQEIEKADS
BESHRR AT AR 2 B T A 2 BRE (A B
HAFETESRER -
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39. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

39. FifE @)

Operating lease commitments (b) EEHERIE
The Group and the Company as lessee: REBRARDRAETEA :
The Group and the Company leases certain of its RNEBRANGIIRELSHERRS
office premises under operating leases. Leases for FH NSNS o ZEY % 7 S &R
these properties are negotiated for terms ranging P18 BHI— BRI o
one to two years.
At the end of the reporting period, the total future NEREEIR - IRIE TR REKCERE
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable FEfRt 7 RIREEFA S EEE T ¢
operating leases are payable as follows:
The Group The Company
FEHE VS|
2015 2014 2015 2014
—¥-HF —T-NF —F-HF —TUF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT #B%Tx BT
Within one year —FR 502 521 502 500
In the second to fifth years, F_EFERF
inclusive (BIEERMT) - - - _
502 521 502 500
The Group as lessor: REEBEHBEA
The Group leases its investment properties under NEBERELESHELZHEHBIREY
operating lease arrangements to tenants, with LIMAE  KEREEEHENT—F
leases negotiated for terms ranging from one to two WE - AR —RERAS S K
years. The terms of the leases generally require the Bind o RPEHFK  AEERER
tenants to pay security deposits. At the end of the BT Y N RS A TE - A
reporting period, the Group had total future minimum J/‘EA\LX"FE% BR 3| > e i (K ok ;}E% =
lease payments receivables under non-cancellable hlgk %E - e - o
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follow: PARERR
The Group The Company
FEE AT
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF —TOF ZT-HF _—TOF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TRT AT B%Tr BET T
Within one year —&FR 54 73 = =
In the second to fifth years, FEEZFRF
inclusive (BEEEME) - - - _
54 73 = -
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40.

41.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Partnership harvesting agreement

On 18 July 2011, UTRB entered into an agreement (the
“Partnership Harvesting Agreement” or the “Agreement”)
with R2R Industria e Comércio de Produtos Florestais
Ltda. (“R2R”). Under the Agreement, UTRB will harvest
logs on forest area supposedly owned by R2R under
a Sustainable Forest Management Plan and pay R2R
Florestal a total of R$9,602,000 (or approximately HK$41
million) by installments. R2R was responsible to obtain the
necessary harvesting permit (“AUTEF”) within 30 days of
the Agreement. R2R was late in presenting the AUTEF to
UTRB and failed to produce documentations that support
its ownership of the subject forest area. In addition, UTRB’s
harvesting team discovered various environmental crimes
in the subject forest area during its preparatory inspection.
A total sum of R$840,000 (or approximately HK$3,869,000)
was paid by UTRB under the Agreement while the remaining
balance was withheld due to the above breach and
irregularities. In the meantime, R2R sent various notices
demanding for performance under the Agreement. On 17
January 2012, UTRB served a termination notice to R2R
and demanded for the return of the deposits paid. On 23
February 2012, R2R sent UTRB an amicable settlement offer
where reducing the outstanding balance to R$1,621,000
(or approximately HK$6,910,000) as final settlement for the
immediate termination of the Agreement. According to the
opinion of external legal counsels, UTRB has adequate legal
ground to terminate the Agreement, demand for the return
of the deposit and ask for penalties.

LITIGATIONS
Money lending business in Hong Kong

During the year 2015, Asset Bridge Development Limited,
a HK subsidiary of the Company which is engaged in the
money lending business, had initiated legal proceedings
against a borrower, an independent third party, who
failed to repay the overdue total loan outstanding amount
HK$9,800,000 and interest of HK$437,000. The mortgage
loan was secured by a property in Hong Kong in favor of
Asset Bridge Development Limited, and the estimated
market value of the property is higher than the aggregate
outstanding mortgage loan and interest receivable of
HK$10,237,000. Therefore, no impairment is required for the
overdue mortgage loan principal and accrued loan interest
receivable.
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41.

LITIGATIONS (continued)
Service agreement

On 30 May 2010, UTRB entered into a service agreement
(“Service Agreement”) with F Um Terraplanagem
(“Terraplanagem?”). Under the Service Agreement,
Terraplanagem would carry out earthwork service in the
hydropower plant in Rondonia, Brazil for a service fee of
R$892,500 (or approximately HK$2,132,000). After signing
the agreement, Terraplanagem did not provide any earthwork
service and UTRB had to hire another company to complete
the earthworks. However, in the land search of the freehold
land of UTRB, it revealed that Terraplanagem submitted a
claim to a court against UTRB to pay for alleged outstanding
service fee of approximately R$1,291,000 (or approximately
HK$3,084,000) and filed a precautionary injunction to
prevent UTRB of selling certain area of its freehold land
with carrying value of approximately R$10,019,000 (or
approximately HK$23,933,000) as at 31 March 2015 without
properly paying possible claim to itself. Such injunction
was awarded by the court during the year ended 31 March
2015. Up to the date of this report, the court hearing has
not yet been scheduled. UTRB will investigate the issue
and defend itself vigorously in coming legal proceeding. To
the best understanding of the Company, the claim was at a
preliminary stage. The Company will inform its shareholders
in due course.

Labour claim

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the
Company revealed that a labour claim against UTRB for
US$600,000 was filed by Leandro Dos Martires Guerra
(“Leandro”), a former director of the Company. At the
moment UTRB did not receive any writ from the court in
due course. The court made an order to UTRB for paying
Leandro the claim of US$600,000. UTRB filed a legal appeal
to the Northern Region Labour High Court after consulting
legal counsels. During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Northern Region Labour High Court had given a favorable
ruling on UTRB’s appeal, determining the annulment of
Leandro’s claim due to irregularities in the writ of summons
served to UTRB. As a result, the case has returned to its
original court so the claimant could properly serve the writ
of summons to UTRB which has happened. In March, 2015,
UTRB has presented its defense and a witness’ hearing
is to be held in August 2015. The Company will inform its
shareholders in due course.
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41.

LITIGATIONS (continued)

Logistical agreement and long-term supply
agreement

On 19 July 2010, SFH Trading Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a logistical agreement and a long-
term supply agreement with Viewscm Corporation Ltd.
(“Viewscm?”). According to the logistical agreement, Viewscm
was appointed as the sole logistics service provider to
SFH Trading Limited for export of logs and timbers from
hydroelectric power plant area in the state of Rondonia,
Brazil to China. However, after Viewscm formulated the
logistic plan under the logistical agreement, the proposed
transportation cost from Viewscm did not meet the target
cost of SFH Trading Limited. Thus, SFH Trading Limited did
not use any logistics service by Viewscm. Also, according
to the long-term supply agreement, SFH Trading Limited
would sell logs to Viewscm in Brazil and the origin of the
logs should be from the hydroelectric power plant area. The
Group was engaged by the Main Contractor to provide tree
felling service in the hydroelectric power plant area. The
relationship with the Main Contractor deteriorated since
occurrence of the harassments from the Alleged Agent of
the Main Contractor and operating staff and officers of our
Group were rejected access to the hydroelectric power
plant area. As such, SFH Trading Limited could not sell any
logs to Viewscm.

Viewscm asserted claims against SFH Trading Limited by
reason of the alleged breaches of the logistical agreement
and long-term supply agreement by SFH Trading Limited.
The alleged breaches of the logistical agreement and long-
term supply agreement were dealt with under arbitration
proceedings which hearings were held at South China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission
and Shenzhen Arbitration Commission respectively. On 20
March 2013, South China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission issued an award of approximately
RMB784,000 (or approximately HK$991,000) in favour of
Viewscm for the alleged breach of logistical agreement
by SFH Trading Limited and on 12 April 2013, Shenzhen
Arbitration Commission issued an award of approximately
RMB703,000 (or approximately HK$888,000) in favour
of Viewscm for the alleged breach of long-term supply
agreement by SFH Trading Limited.

On 19 September 2013, SFH Trading Limited received two
court orders for the enforcement of arbitration awards issued
by South China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission and Shenzhen Arbitration Commission
totaling approximately RMB1,487,000 (or approximately
HK$1,879,000) and related legal expenses in favour of
Viewscm. The Company will inform its shareholders for new
development in due course.

SFH Trading Limited has been inactive since 1 April 2012
and was in net liabilities position as at 31 March 2014. SFH
Trading Limited was disposed during the year ended 31
March 2015.
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42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 42. ERBEEALTRRS
TRANSACTIONS
The Group had the following transactions with related REBRAFEGEBAEALTETATR
parties during the year. 5o
(@) Key management personnel (@) EEEEABZHM
remuneration
The key management personnel of the Group are the AEBZEEEBABARANRES
directors (2014: directors) of the Company. Details of (ZZF—IU4F : BF) o BIRBRENE
their remuneration as set out in Note 11 (2014: Note 11 (ZZ—MO4F : ffsx 1) prEmwE
11) to the financial statements are as follows: EE TS ENT
2015 2014
—E-5F —FmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Salaries and other short-term employee HehEMEEES
benefits Pyl 820 720
Post-employment benefits B A 22 -
Share-based payment VARS A7 2 A~F - 632
842 1,352
(b) Financing arrangement (b) mBEZLH
The Group
A5
Amounts due Related
to related parties interest expense
EABEA LR HEERISRX
2015 2014 2015 2014

—F-1f T MF —T-1Ff T MF
Notes HK$000  HK$000 HKS$'000  HK$000
Mz EMTR BRTT  BMTR BRTE

Amounts due to shareholders FERTAR R RIE /] - 13,410 - 990
Amounts due to FERRAE AR
related companies OR (i) - - - 6
Amount due to non-controliing JETIEEARAR R
shareholder 2R (i) 836 1,235 - =
836 14,645 - 996
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42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

42. EXBAEALRF @)

Financing arrangement (continued) (b) ®mEZH®

Notes: Hiat -

o The interest expenses charged on amounts due to (i) FERTRRER IR 2 AL S B S Th IR F HI|=E 5
shareholders were calculated at 5% per annum. The [EEtHE - EAIRRFRIBRIRE BAR 2 i#
outstanding balances of the amounts due to shareholders RERERENTE 32 #2EE -
at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in Note 32.

(ii) The interest expenses charged on amounts due to related (ii) FEASRAE X RIFRIE 2 | B 7 S TO R4 7
companies was calculated at 5% per annum. E5EFE -

(ii) The amounts was unsecured, interest free and no fixed (iii) Z R AR - 2 8 REE E &K
terms of repayment. °

Other related party transactions (c) HMBEBEALRS

2015 2014

—E-HF —T U

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt BT T VST T

Interest on promissory notes ANER 28 (i) 64 134

Sales to related companies MZEEEARHE (ii) - 4,368

Purchase from a related company m—fREAREE (i) - 1,589

Notes:

()

(i

This represents interest on promissory notes issued
to Winner Global and was calculated at a coupon rate
of 2% per annum (effective interest rate: 15.74%). The
outstanding balance at the end of the reporting period is
disclosed in Note 33.

A director of the related companies is a director of a
Group’s subsidiary.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the above
transactions were conducted on terms mutually
agreed by the Group and the related parties.
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43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised IFRSs that have been issued but not yet effective:

43. BE-—E—HF=A=1+—HLHE
ECEMEBERERZIERT » #:]
EARZREBZAUGERE

ARE B IR F A AT 2B M E R AR ER
LR R AENE RT R B 75 5 2R

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ BN B F R s 2| SRITHE!
F9%
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts? BB F R /R SETTIRIEERP 2
F 145
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with PR B &R /R REREAL 7 IS
Customers?® 515 5
Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of BRE TSR /R IS A LR TR L - &
Interests in Joint Operations® & 11 EBA ks
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative® B2 ERE 1 5 W2 s
BRI
Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable R tERIE 16 5 EEMES VIER
and IAS 38 Methods of Depreciation odEi Szl HES

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41

and Amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

F BB A

REEHEAlE 165
R AR
2N F2ETA

BE  EERED®

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: B 252285 19 57 TEErEE -
Employee Contributions* ZIBEIA EEH

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate RGN ERIE 07 5 BT HR
Financial Statements® ZIBETAR WA S
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43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
(continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception®

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle®

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs

2011-2013 Cycle*

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle®

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements beginning on or after
1 January 2016

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. In
April 2015, IASB tentatively decided to defer the effective date of IFRS
15 to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

limited exceptions.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these new and revised IFRSs is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 2751)

RESULTS e
Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1—-HLEFE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-1f —T-MF —FT-=Ff —T-—F —FT—F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000
BETr BT AT AT B%Trx
Revenue WA 7,822 63,946 76,550 115,616 866,655
(Loss)/profit attributable to the RNFHEB AENL
owners of the Company (E518) /& (56,508)  (490,133)  (326,601) (2,327,909) 341,486

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERAE
As at 31 March
M=B=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

“B-RF TP —F-=Ff —T-—F T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETR ARTT ARTT ARt AT

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets
EQUITY
Equity attributable to
the owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

BEE

BAaR

FHEE

s

ARAITEAA
FEfhEa

SRl

Bl

48 TF v
VO

¢

305,656 251,052 1,068,024 1,727,833 4,186,991
156,097 192,254 551,017 852,438 930,622

149,559 58,798 517,007 875,395 3,256,369
149,480 58,723 517,000 875,309 3,256,293

79 75 7 86 76
149,559 58,798 517,007 875,395 3,256,369
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